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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. CHIU Kung Chik (Chairman)
Mr. XIE Zhichun
Mr. ZHU Yi

(appointed on 24 April 2020)
Mr. LI Gaofeng
Mr. LIU Xin
Mr. HUA Yang

(resigned on 24 April 2020)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Zhichun (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Yi

(appointed on 24 April 2020)
Mr. CHIU Kung Chik
Mr. LI Gaofeng
Mr. LIU Xin
Mr. HUA Yang

(resigned on 24 April 2020)

AUDITOR (NOTE]

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

Note:

The Board has resolved to propose the appointment of BDO Limited (‘BDO”)
as the new auditor of the Company upon the retirement of Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2021
AGM"), subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
2021 AGM and the satisfaction of the BDO'’s client acceptance procedures.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20
July 2021.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
[EER (&)

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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183 Queen’s Road Central
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Tel: (852) 3105 1863 / (852) 3103 2007
Fax: (852) 3105 1862
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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
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SUNTERA (CAYMAN) LIMITED
(change of name with effect from 4 September 2020)
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (each a “Director”)
of China Fortune Financial Group Limited (“China Fortune” or the
“Company”’, together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as
the “Group”), | hereby present the overall performance of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The theme for the year of 2020 is: Upheaval. The river of history is
approaching us fiercely with COVID-19 sweeping across the world,
which has caused various significant events ranging from the panic
triggered at the beginning of the year, to the spread of the epidemic
across the globe and the numerous methods adopted against
the epidemic, to the development of vaccines and the exhaustion
suffered by everyone. COVID-19 has changed everyone’s way of
living in the most dramatic way and aroused people’s awareness
of the fragility of that the life we used to live. Over the past years,
turbulence has never been absent, with the accelerating trade tension
between China and the US and the occurrence of social movements
in Hong Kong. Nevertheless, the year of Gengzi (& T %) has been
the toughest, when the US has been torn apart by its election, while
Britain has been tormented by its Brexit, and the Sino-US relations
were under unprecedentedly high pressure; Meanwhile, the epidemic
was unsettled and attacked the world wave after wave. “The whole
world is under turbulent tides, and changes are everywhere.”

In the past year, there have been undercurrents beneath the global
market. Under the shadow of the epidemic, central banks in the
world headed by the Federal Reserve have released a huge amount
of capital into the markets. Global digital economy and technology
industry have experienced abnormal blooms. After the US market
experienced a rare event — four consecutive curbs in trading within
10 days in early March, the Federal Reserve injected vast amount
of capital into the market by the introduction of economic stimulus
packages. DJIA, S&P 500 and Nasdaqg as heavily weighted by
technology stocks experienced an accumulated increase of 7.3%,
an increase of 16.3% and an increase of 43.6% throughout the year
respectively, representing the largest increase throughout the year
since 2009. Similarly, the Hong Kong market under the bargaining
between China and the US has experienced an unprecedented
prosperity. Under the uncertainties caused by the implementation
of the National Security Law, the economic downturn under the
epidemic, and the replacement of the leaders of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, there were 154 companies had their listing in Hong Kong
throughout the year of 2020, the number of newly listed companies
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
ERHBE (&)

decreased 16% when compared with that in 2019. However, due
to the return of large-scale China concept stocks and the listing of
star-rated companies in the medical, consumption and technology
sectors, the total amount of funds raised by Hong Kong stocks was
about HK$400 billion, representing an increase of approximately 26%
compared with that in 2019. Among which, 12 companies recorded
more than 10 billion for their respective funding raising, representing
53% of the total fund-raising. In the “cold winter” brought by the
epidemic together with the blows from a shrinking GDP, impeded
trading, poor retails results and soaring unemployment rate, Hong
Kong’s capital market, unexpectedly, has ignited “a match in the
winter” as driven by its innovation and efficiency, ushering in new
vitality! | believe that in the coming future, Hong Kong’s capital market
will be more prominent as a bridge between China and the world!

In the prosperous capital market, our most competitive business —
investment banking business, has reported brilliant results. In the
2020/21 fiscal year, we completed 7 sole sponsoring projects and 9
IPO underwriting projects, including projects in highly-rated markets,
like ZERO2IPO and Evergrande Services. In a market-wide ranking in
terms of the number of IPO sponsoring, we have achieved impressive
results — being ranked 11th in the whole market and 1st in the
category of local brokerages.

In addition, we began to get engaged in bond underwriting business
in the last quarter of this fiscal year. As of the date of this annual
report, we had a number of premium sponsoring and underwriting
projects in the pipeline, which has further consolidated the Company’s
image as a top-notch investment bank based in Hong Kong and
backed by the mainland China, and built good reputation in the
industry. In addition to the sponsoring and underwriting business, our
investment, asset management and money lending businesses have
also brought about a “multiple blooming” effect for the Company.
At the same time, we were granted the recognition of Shenzhen’s
Qualified Domestic Investment Enterprise (QDIE) in the fourth quarter
of this fiscal year, equipped together with the recognition of Qualified
Foreign Limited Partnership (QFLP) obtained previously, Fortune
Asset Management (Shenzhen) now has the ability to perform
dual financing in the primary equity market in the mainland China.
This would greatly enhance the development of our cross-border
investment banking business.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

Over the past years, externally, the structure of the world has quietly
undergone earth-shaking changes, whereas, internally, the Company
has also undergone a series of reorganizations. Under the principles
of strict compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations and
stringent risk and cost control, strongly supported by the Board and
with the efforts of the fast-maturing management together with the
increasingly smooth cooperation, China Fortune will not disappoint
its shareholders. It will, step by step, march forward steadily and
powerfully on the road of stable growth. Here | would like to extend
my deepest respect and gratitude to investors and all sectors of
society for their support and concern, and to the shareholders,
the Board, the management and all our colleagues for their strong
support and hard work.

XIE Zhichun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WD

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Reporting Year”), revenue
and net investment gains of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$150,670,000 representing a decrease of approximately 9.24%
from approximately HK$166,017,000 for the year ended 31 March
2020. The decrease was mainly attributable to a certain decrease in
the revenue of each segment of the Group.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$13,495,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2021, as compared with the loss of
approximately HK$71,814,000 for the corresponding period in
2020. Net loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$13,495,000 for the Reporting Year, representing
a significant reduction of approximately 81.21% comparing with the
loss of approximately HK$71,814,000 for the corresponding period in
2020. The overall performance of net loss attributable to owners of the
Company was improved in the year ended 31 March 2021 mainly due
to (i) a decrease in finance costs mainly attributable to redemption of
convertible bonds upon their maturity; (ii) a decrease in staff costs; (iii)
a net investment gain from investment in financial assets; and (iv) a
reversal of the impairment loss on trade receivables.

The basic and diluted loss per share of the Company for the
Reporting Year was approximately HK1.47 cents as compared with
the basic and diluted loss per share of approximately HK7.85 cents
(restated) for the corresponding period in 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business of securities brokerage and margin financing is one of
the main revenue streams of the Group. During the Reporting Year,
the business of securities brokerage and margin financing recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$51,014,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 11.48% as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$57,631,000 for the corresponding period in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The net investment gains for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounted to approximately HK$5,702,000, representing an increase
of approximately 244.28% as compared to the net investment losses
of approximately HK$3,952,000 for the corresponding period in 2020.

The segment profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$11,635,000 (2020: approximately HK$17,108,000),
representing a decrease in profit of approximately 31.99% as
compared with the corresponding period in 2020.

The Group’s strategy is to focus and strengthen existing securities
operation and work in close collaboration with our corporate finance
business as well as wealth management business, in order to provide
a one-stop integrated financial services to better serve our institutional
and high net worth individual clients.

The corporate finance market was under a keen competition during
the Reporting Year. Segment revenue and net investment gains or
losses from corporate finance business decreased by approximately
25.97% from approximately HK$51,612,000 to approximately
HK$38,207,000 while the segment profit for the year ended 31 March
2021 amounted to approximately HK$319,000 (2020: approximately
HK$1,128,000), representing a decrease in profit of approximately
HK$809,000, as compared with the corresponding period in 2020.

During the Reporting Year, the money lending market was under
intensive competition locally. The Group recorded an interest
income from money lending of approximately HK$31,354,000
(2020: approximately HK$40,702,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 22.97% as compared with the corresponding period in
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEEBNWEIN (&)

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a segment revenue
from consultancy services and insurance brokerage services of
approximately HK$1,487,000 (2020: approximately HK$2,393,000),
representing a reduction of approximately 37.86% as compared with
the corresponding period in 2020.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a segment revenue
and net investment gains from asset management of approximately
HK$23,102,000 (2020: segment revenue and net investment losses
approximately HK$10,964,000), representing a significant increase of
approximately 110.71% as compared with the corresponding period
in 2020. The increase in segment revenue was mainly attributable
to the expansion of financial assets investment during the Reporting
Year.

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 22 November 2016, the Company (as the issuer) entered into
each of the Cinda Subscription Agreement, the PAL Subscription
Agreement and the Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement (each
as defined below) in relation to the issue of convertible bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$570,000,000.

(i)  The Company entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Cinda Subscription Agreement”) with Mankind Investment
Limited (“Mankind”), pursuant to which, Mankind agreed to
subscribe to the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$110,754,000 (the “Convertible Bonds to Mankind”).

(i) On 21 September 2016, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Pacific Alliance Limited (“PAL"),
and subsequently a supplemental agreement on 22 November
2016 (the “PAL Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which,
PAL agreed to subscribe to the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$153,585,000 (the “Convertible Bonds
to PAL"). On 8 January 2018, PAL sold the Convertible Bonds
to PAL to Value Convergence Holdings Limited.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

(i) The Company entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement”) with Riverhead
Capital (International) Management Co., Limited (“Riverhead
Capital”), pursuant to which, Riverhead Capital agreed to
subscribe to the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$305,661,000 (the “Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital”) in 4 tranches.

Completion of subscriptions (i), (ii) and tranche 1 of subscription (iii)
above (altogether, the “Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds”) took place
on 30 March 2017. The convertible bonds to Mankind, PAL and
Riverhead Capital all bear an interest rate of 2% and mature on the
third (3rd) anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible bonds
with both dates inclusive at the conversion price of HK$0.06 per
conversion share. Upon full conversion of the Tranche 1 Convertible
Bonds by all subscribers at the conversion price of HK$0.06, a total
number of 6,500,000,000 conversion shares would be issued, subject
to adjustments to the conversion price of HK$0.06.

The net proceeds raised through the issue of the Tranche 1
Convertible Bonds were approximately HK$385,000,000, in which
(i) approximately HK$180,000,000 was used for the injection of
capital to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and expanding
its margin financing and underwriting business; (ii) approximately
HK$150,000,000 for expanding its money lending business; (iii)
approximately HK$12,000,000 for engaging in private equity
investments; (iv) approximately HK$9,000,000 for strengthening
the capital base of its subsidiaries and (v) the remaining balance of
approximately HK$34,000,000 for the general working capital of the
Group.

The Convertible Bonds to Mankind was exercised in approximately
51.74% of original principal amount, which was equivalent to the
amount of HK$57,300,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.06 on
27 April 2017. After completion of conversion, 955,000,000 shares of
the Company were issued on 28 April 2017. Furthermore, tranche 1
of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital was also exercised in
full in the principal amount of HK$125,661,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.06 on 27 April 2017. After the completion of conversion,
2,094,350,000 shares of the Company were issued on 28 April 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEEBNWEIN (&)

Following the exercise of tranche 1 of the Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital, completion of subscription of tranche 2 took
place on 28 June 2017. The net proceeds raised through the issue
of tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital were
HK$60,000,000, in which approximately HK$50,000,000 was used for
further expanding its margin financing business and approximately
HK$10,000,000 for its underwriting business.

Following the completion of tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital, completion of subscription of tranche 3 took
place on 5 July 2018. The net proceeds raised through the issue
of tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital were
HK$60,000,000, in which approximately HK$36,000,000 was
used for further strengthening the proprietary trading business,
approximately HK$12,000,000 was used for engagement in private
equity investments such as pre-IPO investment, and approximately
HK$12,000,000 was used for the asset management business as
seed money to the existing funds and/or new funds.

The tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital was
exercised in 65% of original principal amount, which was equivalent
to the amount of HK$39,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.06
on 11 January 2019. After the completion of conversion, the number
of 650,000,000 shares of the Company were issued on 14 January
2019.

The tranche 4 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital were not
issued due to the non-satisfaction of the conditions precedent set out
in the Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement.

The Convertible Bonds to Mankind matured on 30 March 2020.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds
to Mankind, the outstanding principal amount of HK$53,454,000
together with all accrued and unpaid interests was subsequently
repaid on 3 April 2020.

The Convertible Bonds to PAL matured on 30 March 2020. Pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds to PAL, the
outstanding principal amount of HK$153,585,000 together with all
accrued and unpaid interests shall be paid by the Company to the
current bondholders of the Convertible Bonds to PAL. As disclosed
in the voluntary announcement of the Company dated 10 July 2020,
the Company fully settled and repaid the balance of the outstanding
principal and interest in relation to the Convertible Bonds to PAL.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021

PEEE —HI A BEATTMRERITERE - &
THRESEERZE—+tF AN Ei
T o BITE T AB AT BKREEE

%%ZME@%%%D%D%%E’Q@%
50,000,000 BT ARE - EREFERE
75 % %710,000,000 BT AS AR BIEER -

BEEE IR ERMRESTKIE - F
“HREBEBEEN =T — Aitﬂﬁam
Ko BITEMTAEATBRKRESSE

FT 18 2 3X T8 7% ¥ /& 60,000,000 %8 7T “¢
#736,000,000 8 T AR #E—FHH AHH &
BE ¥ 0 412,000,000 7T AR L EFL
ERAERE (WEXAHABRAKE) 4
12,000,000 BT AR HEEE R EBIEARR
REES R SHESCETES -

BRI RBEARATRBREFER = —NF
—H+—E&0%%nzﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
R&FERI65% * HHE 7 39,000,000 It °
6wommm%$“ﬂﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁ%&&
—NF—A+HEBET-

\—7

FOHOT SR EAR A MR EFEIT R EARRE
125 % PIT L B 5T R MR 4 R 2 22 K T 3 R 2 8%

77

BEABRBRESER - E-TFE=A=+H
BIEE o 1R IR B AR AR (E 5 MG TR R A
KRIEIE KR4S %E53,454,0008 L& R A fEET
MAMAEHEAER _ZE-_EFNA=BX
o

PALATAREARERN T _TF=A=1+H
FIHY o AR IR PAL AT AR B 3 MG K R 645 -
AABARPALAT R ESFNREESREE
AZ M RIEEA$ %58 153,585,000 78 T iE [E
FTE BT RAMNFE - MIAAAT B A=
TTFHATHEZERUERERE - AR
AIE M PALZBEUSENEEEATBRESE
B RERS R SHE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital was due
on 28 June 2020. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 8 July 2020 (the “Amendment Deed Announcement”), the
Company and Riverhead Capital entered into an amendment deed
(the “Amendment Deed”) on 8 July 2020 (after trading hours),
pursuant to which, Riverhead Capital conditionally agreed to extend
the maturity date of the tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital from the date falling on the third anniversary of the
issue date of the tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead
Capital (i.e. 28 June 2020) to the fifth anniversary of the issue date
of the tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital
(i.e. 28 June 2022) (the “CB Extension”). Subject to fulfiiment
of the conditions precedent as disclosed in Amendment Deed
Announcement, the Company shall execute a supplemental deed poll
(the “Supplemental Deed Poll”) to effect the CB Extension. A circular
containing, among others, further details of CB Extension and a notice
for the extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) was despatched to the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) on 29 July 2020.

At the EGM held on 27 August 2020, the ordinary resolution approving
the CB Extension contemplated under the Amendment Deed and the
proposed grant of the specific mandate as set out in the EGM notice
dated 29 July 2020 was not passed by the independent Shareholders
by way of poll at the EGM. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital, the outstanding principal
amount of HK$60,000,000 together with all accrued and unpaid
interests of the tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead
Capital were repaid on 4 September 2020.

For details of the Cinda Subscription Agreement, PAL Subscription
Agreement and Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement and the
relevant transactions, please refer to the circulars of the Company
dated 13 December 2016 and 29 July 2020, and announcements of the
Company dated 21 September 2016, 22 November 2016, 5 January
2017, 30 March 2017, 28 April 2017, 5 July 2018, 14 January 2019,
30 March 2020, 14 April 2020, 8 July 2020, 10 July 2020 and 27 August
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEEBNWEIN (&)

With reference made to the mentioned circulars and announcements,
Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds, tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds
to Riverhead Capital and tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital were issued pursuant to the resolutions passed at
the EGM held on 5 January 2017. The total funds raised from and the
details of the use of proceeds of the said tranches are as follows:

Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds

Approximate

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the

REWAIBRMBRRAE - £ AR
% FRWIRBEANABMBRESFME=H
TRERNABRBESIRER T —HF—
AR BSRTHRRERIAEG LERBEIRE
ETAET - BB LA ESHEEES

HEE NS FOR A

F-HtmRES

BEEEETT ¢

amount to apply year ended
Intended use on the proceeds 31 March 2021 Unutilized Expected timeline for
of the proceeds as previously REBE=-ZS=— proceeds as at the use of unutilized
as previously disclosed F=A=+—H 31 March 2021 proceeds and reasons
disclosed B IER LA I FEREER W-ZE-—%= for delay
ERFRBAERENR BKESXEAN 2BANMAE A=1+—-BXD HEARBAMSKEANE
ERZ BHeRE MIE RERIE HRRREERER
a. Expanding the HK$60,000,000 HK$60,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable
margin financing and 60,000,000/87C 60,000,000 77T 0BT TEMA

underwriting
businesses

BERARBREMEHER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEENWED T ()

Approximate

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended

use during the

amount to apply year ended

Intended use on the proceeds 31 March 2021 Unutilized Expected timeline for
of the proceeds as previously REBZz=T=— proceeds as at the use of unutilized
as previously disclosed F=H=+—H 31 March 2021 proceeds and reasons
disclosed P8 RRIER AT L FEREER RZZBZ-—f= fordelay
FRAFMRBAMERENRE HKESXEAN RE)AENFRE A=+—HAE® #EARBAMSKENE
ERR BOeRE ;A RFERIE HRRREEER
Establishment HK$120,000,000 HK$0  HK$120,000,000 The proceeds is planned

of a joint venture 120,000,000 87T 07 120,000,000 7T to be applied in

company to be
formed in the People’s
Republic of China (the
“PRC”) (the
“JV Company”)
under the Closer
Economic Partnership
Arrangement

BiR [EERKER]
BORH | EPEAR
AR ([PE ) KAz
aenE ([GEL

al)

accordance with
the intended use as
disclosed in the
circular dated
13 December 2016.
Documents to
supplement the
application made
to China Securities
Regulatory Commission
for establishment of
the JV Company was
last made on 27 July
2018 while the
timeframe is subject
to the said regulator’'s
approval
PS5 AT Sl B 5
RZE—RETH
T=RZBHAEKEZ
BERGER - F—X
ek D AVA= - VNI
BAXMHERZZE-N
FHtAZTHHRERT
THRESEEERER
g BRXBFLRE
BB HETEE
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Approximate

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEENWREDSN (F)

amount to apply year ended

Intended use on the proceeds 31 March 2021 Unutilized Expected timeline for
of the proceeds as previously REBZz=8=— proceeds as at the use of unutilized
as previously disclosed F=H=+—H 31 March 2021 proceeds and reasons
disclosed FriSFUERER I FEREER R-ZE-—%= for delay
FRAFMRBEMENENRE HKESXEAN RE)HNFRE A=+—HAE® #EAKRBAMSKENE
ERR BOeRE A FRMBNRIE HNRREEEH
Expanding its money HK$150,000,000 HK$150,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable

lending business 150,000,000 7C  150,000,0007& 7T 087t TEA
EREERER
Engaging in private HK$12,000,000 HK$12,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable

equity investments 12,000,000 7T 12,000,0007& 7T o0& TEA
DELERTRE
Proprietary trading HK$5,000,000 HK$5,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable
BEEE 5,000,000 7T 5,000,000 /7T 0BT MTEM
Strengthening the HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable

capital base of 2,000,000 7T 2,000,000 7T oI TR

wealth management

business
MR EERERE 2

BAERM
Strengthening the HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable

capital base of 2,000,000/ 7T 2,000,000 7T 0% TEA

corporate financing

business
HERPEREERR

BREE
General working capital HK$34,000,000 HK$34,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable
—REEET 34,000,000/7C  34,000,000/&7T 0BT MTEM

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEEE;—J-HHBEE *ﬁ (nlﬁ)

Tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the

FRTRERTRRES

Approximate year ended
amount to apply 31 March 2021
Intended use on the proceeds REZ Unutilized
of the proceeds as previously —EB-—F proceeds as at Expected timeline
as previously disclosed =HA=+—H 31 March 2021 for the use of
disclosed Frie g It EEREEH RZ=ZZT=—4% unutilized proceeds
FRFRBASRENRE  EEARESR BREVARE ZH=+—H &RAKXBAMERIEN
ERE ERNBAEHE MIE  ABAMBIE FEHRR
a. Further expanding HK$50,000,000 HK$50,000,000 HKS$0 Not applicable
the margin financing 50,000,000/ 50,000,000 7T 0BT MTEMA
business
E—HERTRAEFEE
b.  Further strengthening HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable
the underwriting 10,000,000/8 7 10,000,000 /57T 0%t MTEA

business

— AR BIHER

PEERERMEEERAR
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Tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEENWREDSN (F)

FoRTRERTRRES

Approximate year ended
amount to apply 31 March 2021
Intended use on the proceeds REZE Unutilized
of the proceeds as previously —EB-—fF proceeds as at Expected timeline
as previously disclosed =HA=+—H 31 March 2021 for the use of
disclosed Frie g IFEEREBEA HRZ=ZZT=—4% unutilized proceeds
FRFRBASRENRE  EEARESR BRE)ARE ZHA=+—H &RAXRBAMERIEN
ERR ERNBAEHE MIE REVAFBRIE FEHKR
Further strengthening HK$36,000,000 HK$36,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable
the proprietary 36,000,000 87T 36,000,000 87T 0BT MTEA
trading business
HE—FREREEEEEXRD
Further engagement HK$12,000,000 HK$12,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable
in private equity 12,000,000/%8 7T 12,000,000/8 7T 0BT NERA
investments
HE—F2ELERTRE
For the asset HK$12,000,000 HK$12,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable
management 12,000,000 7T 12,000,000 7% 7T 0% TEA

business to be used

as seed money to the

existing funds

and/or new funds
REEBTEXKMS -

AERAES R 3

HESHNETES

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

As at 16 October 2020, which is the date for convening the EGM
for the Shareholders’ approval for the share consolidation of the
Company, with details set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements (the “Share Consolidation”), the outstanding convertible
bonds of the Company were the tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds
to Riverhead Capital (the “Outstanding Convertible Bonds”),
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$21,000,000, which were
convertible into 350,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company (the “Existing Shares”) at the
conversion price of HK$0.06 per Existing Share. As a result of the
Share Consolidation and in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the convertible bonds of the Company, effective from the close
of business on Monday, 19 October 2020, the following adjustment
(the “CB Adjustment”) was made to the conversion price of the
Outstanding Convertible Bonds and the number of consolidated
shares falling to be issued upon the exercise of the conversion rights
attaching to the Outstanding Convertible Bonds:

Immediately before the
CB Adjustment becoming effective
SETRRESAREN

Number of

Existing Shares to be
issued upon full
conversion of the
Outstanding Convertible

EEEFNWRED T (&)

R-Z-_ZTF+A+<8  BEFEBREER
R LAE IR AL AR D B D& 6 (R4
&6t 2 BH (FHBENGRE SRR T
30) " ARRIM MR LB/ ES BAT
TERBETHNE =M BRRES ([HR
HRBWTBRES ) - Ae 4% 421,000,000
BT AR A REERIRERN0.06 BT
#/5 350,000,000 R AN A B AR G IR EE
0.01 B T2 (RERB]) - BRKRNDE
B RARAR AN B AT HARR & 55 MO G SR A1
BE_E-_TF+A+NB (BEH—) %8B
PR - HRRARATBRES 2 LIRE
KM R A AT R E S 2 5 IR T8
BEBEITZAMRMHEE LA THAZE ([
REFARE])

Immediately after the
CB Adjustment becoming effective
RETHRRESHBRENE

Number of

consolidated shares to be

issued upon full

conversion of the
Outstanding Convertible

Bonds Bonds
EARHBTBRRKRES Conversion price EARBABRERES Conversion price
EREAREBETRT per Existing Share EREHABRBETRT per consolidated share
ZRERBEE BRAERG ZHIRE ORGP EE BEREMHRHZHIEE
HK$0.06 HK$0.60
350,000,000 0.06/87T 35,000,000 0.60/87T

PEERERMEEERAR
B -FFRH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEEBNWEIN (&)

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, Certified Public Accountants,
reviewed the above adjustments and confirmed that the calculation
of the CB Adjustment was made in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the convertible bonds of the Company.

Save for the CB Adjustment, all the other terms and conditions of the
convertible bonds of the Company remain unchanged.

SUPPLEMENTAL LOAN AGREEMENT
RELATING TO THE EXTENSION OF
REPAYMENT DATE OF LOAN

On 29 January 2019, Fortune Finance Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Lender”), Shine Well Holdings
Limited (the “Borrower”) and Mr. LAl Tse Ming, being a sole director
and sole shareholder of the Borrower (the “Guarantor”) entered into
the loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”), pursuant to which, the
Lender agreed to grant to the Borrower a loan in the principal amount
of HK$155,000,000 bearing an interest rate of 12% per annum for
a period of 12 months (subject to extension) (the “Loan”) from and
including the date of utilization of the Loan (the “Drawdown Date”).

On 13 May 2020, the Lender, the Borrower and the Guarantor entered
into a supplemental loan agreement (the “Supplemental Loan
Agreement”), pursuant to which, among other things, the Lender
agreed to extend the repayment date of the Loan from 12 months
after the Drawdown Date (i.e. 30 January 2020) to 21 months after the
Drawdown Date (i.e. 31 October 2020) on the terms and subject to
the conditions therein. Subject to the Lender’s prior written consent,
the repayment date (the “Repayment Date”) could be further
extended for a further 6 months to 30 April 2021.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The entering into of the Supplemental Loan Agreement, when
aggregated with the interest income derived from the Loan since its
drawdown constitutes a major transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and is
therefore subject to the announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

At the EGM of the Company held on 27 August 2020, the ordinary
resolution approving the Supplemental Loan Agreement and
extension of Repayment Date of Loan as set out in the EGM notice
dated 29 July 2020 was passed by the independent Shareholders
by way of poll at the EGM held on 27 August 2020. Pursuant to
the announcement of the Company dated 30 October 2020, at
the request of the Borrower, the Lender has on 30 October 2020
agreed to further extend the Repayment Date to 30 April 2021. All
the outstanding principal amount of the Loan, together with all the
accrued and unpaid interests, were repaid by the Borrower on 10
February 2021.

For details of the Loan Agreement, Supplemental Loan Agreement
and the extension of the Repayment Date, please refer to the circular
of the Company dated 29 July 2020 and announcements of the
Company dated 29 January 2019, 13 May 2020,15 May 2020, 27
August 2020 and 30 October 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEEBNWEIN (&)

OUTLOOK

In the foreseeable future, the global economy will inevitably be under
the influence of the development of the pandemic. Meanwhile, as
the settling down of the US election and the economic recovery of
countries around the world at different paces, the bargain between
China and the US would continue. Uncertainties would exist in the
new international relationships in a post-COVID-19 world. However,
we still firmly believe that we human beings will eventually overcome
the virus, and the long-term growth of China’s overall economy will
continue. We have strong confidence in the Chinese market and
invest a lot in it. Based in Hong Kong and possessing a global vision,
we provide services to Chinese enterprises and help more Chinese
enterprises enter the international capital market and meanwhile
assist more international investors to explore the long-term value
of Chinese market. China Fortune will adhere to its philosophy of
“be steady, accurate, quick and decisive”, assessing market trends
accurately, making decisions quickly to respond to the changing
market. Under the principles of stringent risk and cost control, we
will achieve further breakthroughs in our business and bring better
rewards to the Shareholders.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2021, the nominal value of the total issued share
capital of the Company was approximately HK$91,531,000
comprising 915,307,885 shares of the Company of HK$0.10 each (the
“Shares”).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries of the
Group, the Group ensures each of them maintains a liquid capital
level that is adequate to support the level of activities with a sufficient
buffer to accommodate increases in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increases in the level of business activities. During the
Reporting Year, all the licensed subsidiaries of the Group complied
with the liquid capital requirements under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to Shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
convertible bonds, corporate bonds, lease liabilities, loans, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
which comprises issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of the
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital, and take appropriate actions to
adjust the Group’s capital structure. The overall strategy of the Group
remains unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

For certain subsidiaries of the Group, they are regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) of Hong Kong and
are required to comply with certain minimum capital requirements
according to the rules of SFC. Our management monitors, on a daily
basis, the subsidiaries’ liquid capital level to ensure they meet with
the minimum liquid capital requirement in accordance with the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules. The range
of liquid capital is from HK$100,000 to HK$3,000,000 or 5% of their
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher.

One of the subsidiaries of the Group is a licensed insurance
intermediary under the Insurance Ordinance and is required to
maintain a minimum net asset value of HK$100,000 at all times.

There is no non-compliance of the capital requirements of the Group
members imposed by the respective regulators during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEEBNWEIN (&)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND GEARING RATIO

During the Reporting Year, the Group mainly financed its operations
by cash generated from operating activities, loans and issuance of
the corporate bond.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$787,720,000 (2020: approximately
HK$1,033,779,000) and approximately HK$567,605,000 (2020:
approximately HK$714,325,000) respectively, while the current ratio
was about 1.39 times (2020: 1.45 times).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s aggregate cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$263,850,000 (2020:
approximately HK$315,132,000), of which approximately 73.29% was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") (2020: approximately
35.38%), approximately 24.57% was denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”) (2020: approximately 38.45%), and approximately
2.14% was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) (2020: approximately
26.17%), representing approximately 33.50% (2020: approximately
30.48%) of total current assets. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had
bank loans with accrued interest in approximately HK$161,318,000
(2020: approximately HK$252,600,000).

During the Reporting Year, no financial instruments were used for
hedging purposes. As at 31 March 2021, the gearing ratio, measured
on the basis of total borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, was approximately 102.71% (2020:
approximately 154.71%). The decrease in ratio was mainly due to
the decrease in bank loan payables during the Reporting Year. The
debt ratio, defined as total debts over total assets, was approximately
66.06% (2020: approximately 72.27%).

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has issued 1 year
corporate bond with face value of HK$10,000,000 to an independent
third party, which will be matured in December 2021 and carry
fixed interest rate at 6% per annum with interest payable on the
maturity date of the corporate bond (both dates exclusive). The
abovementioned corporate bond has been early redeemed on 9 April
2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$101,230,000 and approximately HK$420,000 respectively
(2020: approximately HK$222,173,000 and approximately HK$nil
respectively), with net gain on these financial instruments at
approximately HK$18,952,000 (2020: net loss of approximately
HK$13,384,000).

INVESTMENT PRODUCTS

The Company had and would continue to seek opportunities to make
proper use of idle funds within the Group and, where appropriate,
facilities from bank(s) or other financial institution, to invest on medium
or low risk investment products, including but not limited to stocks,
bonds, derivatives and structural products.

BONDS ISSUED BY LV'AN CHUANGXING LIMITED

References are made to the announcement and further
announcement dated 11 April 2019 and 12 April 2019 respectively
with regards to a subscription of bonds. On 11 April 2019, Marvel
Champion Investment Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, placed an order, through a broker, to subscribe bonds
issued by Lv’an Chuangxing Limited, an offshore financing vehicle
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Greenland Holdings Corporation
Limited (stock code: 600606.SH, a state-controlled enterprise group
headquartered in Shanghai, with its main business in real estate,
energy and finance), at the investment costs of approximately
HK$86,477,600 in total (including transaction cost). The principal
amount of such subscription was USD11,000,000 (approximately
HK$86,477,600) in compare with the aggregate principal amount of
USD200,000,000 of the same bonds. The interest rate of the bonds
was 6.38% per annum. The bonds was matured on 15 April 2020.
During the Reporting Year, an amount of USD27,000 (approximately
HK$210,000) was recognised as interest income from the investment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEEBNWEIN (&)

References are made to the announcement and further
announcement dated 9 May 2019 and 10 May 2019 respectively
with regards to a subscription of new senior notes. On 9 May
2019, Marvel Champion Investment Limited, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, subscribed senior notes issued by
E-house (China) Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code: 2048.
HK) which offers, with its subsidiaries, a wide range of services
to the real estate industry, including real estate agency services
in the primary market, real estate data and consulting services,
and real estate brokerage network services in the PRC, at the
investment costs of approximately HK$65,891,000 in total (including
transaction cost). The principal amount of such subscription was
initially USD8,447,000 (approximately HK$65,891,000) in compare
with the aggregate principal amount of USD300,000,000 of the
same senior notes. Interest in the investment worth approximately
USD5,063,000 (approximately HK$39,488,000) was disposed in the
year ended 31 March 2020 with a gain of USD130,000 (approximately
HK$1,018,000). And the remaining interest in the investment worth
approximately USD3,473,000 (approximately HK$27,086,000)
was disposed in the Reporting Year with a gain of USD 16,000
(approximately HK$123,000). An interest income of USD79,000
(approximately HK$619,000) was recognised from the investment
during the Reporting Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

NOTES ISSUED BY EASE TRADE GLOBAL LIMITED

Reference is made to the announcement dated 18 March 2020
with regards to an acquisition of notes. On 18 March 2020, Marvel
Champion Investment Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired notes issued by Ease Trade Global Limited in
the principal amount of USD10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$78,000,000) at a total consideration of approximately
USD9,820,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$76,596,000). Ease
Trade Global Limited has carried on no business other than entering
into arrangements for the issue of the notes and lending of the net
proceeds thereof. Ease Trade Global Limited is a direct, wholly-owned
subsidiary of Poly Property Group Co., Limited (stock code: 0119.
HK, guarantor of the notes), which in turn is a subsidiary of China
Poly Group Corporation Limited (Keepwell Provider of the notes, a
central state-owned enterprise under the supervision of State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council). The fair value of the investment as at 31 March 2021 was
USD10,027,000 (approximately HK$77,670,000, representing about
8.13% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2021). The interest
rate of the bonds is 5.20% per annum and as a future prospect, it is
expected that the bonds will continue to generate a stable income
to the Company based on this interest rate until maturity on 10
April 2021. During the Reporting Year, an amount of USD518,000
(approximately HK$4,045,000) was recognised as interest income
from the investment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

There was no material acquisition or disposal of the Group during the
Reporting Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(as at 31 March 2020: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEEBNWEIN (&)

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSET

As at 31 March 2021, the debt securities of approximately
HK$77,670,000 and the entire share of a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Marvel Champion Investment Limited, have been
charged as the secured assets for the banking facilities (as at 31
March 2020: the debt securities of approximately HK$185,357,000
and the entire share of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Marvel Champion Investment Limited).

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has properly put in place credit management policies
which cover the examination of the approval of client’s trading and
credit limits, regular review of facilities granted, monitoring of credit
exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with overdue
debts. The policies are reviewed and updated regularly.

FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

During the Reporting Year, the Group mainly used Hong Kong dollars
in its business transactions. The Board considers that the Group’s
foreign currency exposure is insignificant.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 81 employees in total (2020:
86 employees). The related employees’ costs for the Reporting Year
(excluding Directors’ remunerations) amounted to approximately
HK$74,094,000 (2020: approximately HK$78,998,000). The Group
remunerated employees based on the industry practice and
individual’'s performance. Staff benefits include contributions to
retirement benefit scheme, medical allowance and other fringe
benefits. In addition, the Group maintains the share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants based on their contributions. For details of the share
option scheme, please refer to the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. XIE Zhichun, aged 63, was appointed as an executive Director,
the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) in January 2017. He was further appointed as
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) in March 2017. Mr. Xie is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Xie graduated from Heilongjiang
University in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree in philosophy. He then
further studied and obtained a master’s degree in economics from
Harbin Institute of Technology in 1993 and a doctorate in economics
from Nankai University in 2004.

Mr. Xie has extensive experience in banking, securities and
investment fields. He is currently the vice chairman of the consultation
committee of Shenzhen Qianhai Shekou Free Trade Zone and Qianhai
Shenzhen Hong Kong Cooperation Zone. He is also a professor of
China Center for Special Economic Zone Research of Shenzhen
University and a postgraduate supervisor of PBC School of Finance of
Tsinghua University. Mr. Xie is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited (listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. (listed
on both the main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange).

Mr. Xie has held various key positions in certain banks, securities
firms and insurance companies in the PRC and listed companies in
Singapore, and has extensive experience in management of financial
institutions. Mr. Xie was an independent non-executive director of
SuperRobotics Holdings Limited (listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange) from August 2018 to May 2019 and a non-executive
director of China Smartpay Group Holdings Limited (listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange) from April 2017 to October 2018. He
was a deputy general manager of China Investment Corporation
(“CIC”) (PRI EHBREMAR]) and an executive director and
general manager of Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (FRESEEFR
EH{T/~ 7)), a subsidiary of CIC which makes equity investment in key
state-owned financial institutions in the PRC, from 2014 to 2015. From
2008 to 2014, Mr. Xie was an executive director and deputy general
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EECHABE (F)

manager of China Everbright Group Limited (B} KEBEAR)
and the chairman of Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (3%
KXBAAZRB AR AR and Sun Life Everbright Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (X ARKBEEERKMABMRAF]). From 2006 to 2008, he
was the vice president and director of reorganisation and listing office
of China Everbright Bank Company Limited. From 2001 to 2006, Mr.
Xie was a director and chief executive officer of Everbright Securities
Company Limited, an executive director of China Everbright Group
and China Everbright Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange), a vice chairman (unattending) of China Enterprises
Association (Singapore), a director of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities
Co., Ltd. and Everbright Pramerica Fund Management Co., Ltd. and
a vice chairman (unattending) of Securities Association of China.

From 1997 to 2001, he acted as an executive director and president
of China Everbright Asia-Pacific Company Limited (delisted from
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited in May 2016), a
director of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd., the chairman of
China Everbright Asia-Pacific (New Zealand) Company and China
Everbright (South Africa) Company, a director of China Everbright
Asia-Pacific Industrial Investment Fund Management Company (#
Bt R ATEREEESER /A R]) and Thailand Sunflower Company
(Z=HE M BEZAR]). From 1992 to 1999, Mr. Xie was a director and
vice president of Everbright Securities Company Limited, a director
of China Everbright Financial Holding Company (Hong Kong) (F
Bt K& s A B)(EFE)), a general manager of northern head
office of Everbright Securities Company Limited, a deputy director
of preparation team and deputy president of China Everbright Bank,
Dalian Branch and the general manager of the international business
department of China Everbright Bank, Heilongjiang Branch.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021

EREIBRIE - REXAKBASRBRAR
NEIMARKAEEBERNBERARES
R BZETREFE_TT \FAFERK
RITRITTR (RIEPENRBITEELTH
RETE) BZTT—FE_TTRFMHE
RAREBEHFERETLTES NAAE - BIRG®
EHRBEAREARB MPBEYEIERAR
NE) (RBERZPTER ™) ITESE ~ #140
BHRECERHERIER (THE)  FREE
EFRARRAARBEESEERREER
TEESEXBEAER (THE) -

BE-—NMNEFE_ZTZT-—FEPEXK
TARBRAF (BERZZE—R"ERAEHM
REFRXZPABRAFGE RITESR
BE - PREEBSFAFES  KLATK
(Arass) RERPEA (FIF) ARES
R PEARGTAIEREEZSEERQA
AFEERAZEQARERE  B- AN _FE
—HANFERRBLFBERABESLEIR
B REXAEBERAR (FE) EF
RAREFAR AR BEPELIE - B
RIRFTAREDTEEHHAERLATR - A
N B RIRTT BRI TRIR E IS B AR
E e



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. ZHU Yi, aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director in
September 2018. He was further appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”’) and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in April 2020. He joined the Group in May 2017 and is
the department head of the Compliance and Risk Management
Department of the Group, responsible for overseeing the legal and
compliance, risk management and internal control of the Group. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Zhu graduated
from Peking University in 2008 with bachelor’'s degrees in Laws
and Economics respectively. He then further obtained a master’s
degree in Laws from Southern Methodist University in the United
States of America (the “USA”) in 2010 and a master's degree in Laws
from Peking University in 2011. Mr. Zhu is a Chartered Financial
Analyst (CFA) charterholder, and possesses of a non-practicing
lawyer qualification in the PRC and the New York State of the USA
respectively.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhu worked with a leading global
information and communication infrastructure and smart terminal
provider in the PRC for several years, mainly responsible for the
legal and compliance, financial analysis and project management of
its cross-border capital investment projects. He has extensive and
hands-on experience in project evaluation, deal structure design, due
diligence, legal instruments drafting and negotiation, etc. in dealing
with the merger and acquisition, joint ventures, private equity and
venture capital projects of this group.

Ms. SUN Qing, aged 60, was appointed as an executive Director
in April 2020. She joined the Group in August 2019 and is the
department head of the Executive Directors Office of the Group,
responsible for human resources and administrative management of
the Group. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Ms. Sun graduated from Beijing Correspondence College of Finance
and Commerce in 1988 majoring in industrial accounting. Ms. Sun
also obtained the accountant qualification awarded by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC in 1994.
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Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sun worked in Everbright Securities
Company Limited (listed on both the main board of the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) for nearly 20 years,
mainly responsible for the company’s finance, human resources and
comprehensive back office management. She has over 20 years
of working experience in the financial industry and has extensive
experience in various management tasks such as finance, auditing
and human resources.

Ms. Sun was a non-executive director of IBO Technology Company
Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) from July
2020 to February 2021.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. HAN Hanting, aged 36, was appointed as an executive Director
and a member of the Nomination Committee in October 2017. He
was re-designated as a non-executive Director and ceased to be a
member of the Nomination Committee in September 2018. Mr. Han
joined the Company in 2015 and was the chief operating officer of
the Company from November 2016 to September 2018. Mr. Han was
an investment manager of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
during the period from 2009 to 2013. Mr. Han obtained a bachelor’s
degree from University of Warwick majoring in Mathematics,
Operational Research, Statistics and Economics in 2006.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Han had worked as a researcher in
CCB International Securities Limited. During the period from May
2013 to May 2016, he was an executive director of Momentum
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as Infinity Financial Group
(Holdings) Limited, listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange).
Mr. Han has more than 10 years of experience in investment banking
industry and had successfully led merger and acquisition projects for
a number of Hong Kong listed companies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. CHEN Zhiwei, aged 37, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in April 2018. Mr. Chen graduated from Tsinghua University
with a bachelor’'s degree in Economics in 2004. He then further
studied at the National University of Singapore and obtained a
master’s degree in Science (Estate Management) in 2009.

Mr. Chen has over 10 years of investment and research experience in
the finance industry. He joined China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company
Limited (“Cinda (HK)”) in 2010 and is currently the deputy general
manager of Cinda (HK), responsible for managing the investment
and financing businesses of Cinda (HK). Mr. Chen is currently an
executive director of Zhongchang International Holdings Group
Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange). He is also
a non-executive director of Modern Land (China) Co., Limited (listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange), Silver Grant International
Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as Silver Grant International
Industries Limited, listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange)
and SouthGobi Resources Ltd. (listed on both the main board of the
Stock Exchange and the Toronto Stock Exchange).

Mr. Chen was the executive assistant to the chairman of TIG Group
in Singapore between 2007 and 2010, responsible for TIG Group’s
private equity investment business in the Greater China region. He
was a research scholar at the National University of Singapore during
2005 and 2007.

Mr. WU Ling, aged 67, was appointed as a non-executive Director
in December 2011. Mr. Wu holds a bachelor’'s degree in Economics
from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law. He is a senior
economist and has over 20 years of experience in the area of banking
and financial services related business in the PRC. Mr. Wu was an
executive director and vice chairman of China Cinda (HK) Holdings
Company Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in July 2014. He is also a member of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”). Mr. Chan is
currently a senior partner of Messrs. Peter K.S. Chan & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries (a law firm which provides various services including
corporate matters and litigations). Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1979 and a
postgraduate certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong
in 1980. He has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since April
1982 and has been admitted as a Notary Public since April 1997
and a China-appointed Attesting Officer since January 2000.
Mr. Chan has also been a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors since August 2004 and a chairman of the Appeal Tribunal
(Buildings Ordinance Cap.123) since February 2007.

Mr. Chan is currently a non-executive director of Sino Harbour
Holdings Group Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange). He is also an independent non-executive director of
Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company Limited (listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange) and Pak Tak International Limited (listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange).

Over the past three years, Mr. Chan was a director of Guanghe
Landscape Culture Communication Co., Ltd., Shanxi (listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange) from June 2016 to October 2020 and was
a non-executive director of Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited (listed
on the Singapore Exchange) from August 2006 to March 2020. He
was also an independent non-executive director of Luxking Group
Holdings Limited (listed on the Singapore Exchange) from June 2005
to October 2019 and Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (delisted from
the Stock Exchange in June 2020) from May 2014 to September
2019.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. CHIU Kung Chik, aged 36, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in March 2017. He was re-designated
from a member of the Audit Committee to the chairman of the
Audit Committee in March 2020. He is also the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Chiu graduated from the University of Chicago with
a bachelor’s degree in Economics. He has extensive experience
and knowledge in investment banking, capital financing, corporate
restructuring, merger and acquisition, complex transaction
structuring, etc. Mr. Chiu currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Clean Energy Group Limited
(listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange).

From 2008 to 2015, Mr. Chiu worked with UBS AG in the investment
banking department in its Hong Kong office, primarily focusing
on advising large scale corporate clients on their capital market
activities. During the aforesaid period, he had completed a number
of high-profile capital market transactions, merger and acquisition
transactions as well as debt financing transactions.

Mr. LI Gaofeng, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee in October 2017. Mr. Li graduated from Henan Institute
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in Economics
majoring in Investment Management in 1995. He further obtained
a master’s degree in Economics majoring in International Finance
from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics in 1998. Mr. Li is
a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Li has worked in the insurance and securities sectors for many
years and has rich experience in finance, investment and investor
relations. He worked for Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
for several years and served as the deputy general manager, chief
financial officer and chief investment officer. He also held senior
management positions with the financial institutes such as securities
companies and mutual funds in the PRC.
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Mr. LIU Xin, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in March 2020. He is also a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Liu graduated from Hubei University in
1982 with a bachelor’s degree in Arts. He then further obtained a
master’s degree in Economics from Wuhan University in 1989 and
a doctor’s degree majoring in Economics from The University of
Leeds in 2007. Mr. Liu was honoured as a Senior Economist by the
People’s Bank of China in 1996. He also published extensively in
world class journals and books as a co-author with well-known British
scholars. Mr. Liu is currently a senior advisor of Deloitte China and
an independent non-executive director of Zhongchang International
Holdings Group Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange).

Mr. Liu has extensive experience and knowledge in finance and
investment banking. From 2007 to 2018, Mr. Liu worked in BNP
Paribas Hong Kong Branch and was appointed as the managing
director as well as the head of Global Risk Solutions (China) in
Global Markets department and Fixed Income department. Mr. Liu
also worked with China’s State Administration of Foreign Exchange
(SAFE) as the director of the Investment Division from 1989 to 2001,
and accumulated rich knowledge in interpreting Chinese policy and
regulations for the Chinese financial system.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 117 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in the share capital and convertible bonds of
the Company during the Reporting Year are set out in notes 30 and
28 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 120 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s distributable reserve
is approximately of HK$77,472,000 and HK$127,526,000 as at 31
March 2021 and 2020 respectively.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 252 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
is set out in the section headed “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS” on pages 8 to 28 of this annual report. These discussions
form part of this Directors’ Report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group can be found throughout this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, as far as the Board and the
management are aware, there was no breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees and customers to meet its short-term
and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31 March 2021,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and
its employees and customers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the applicable
environmental laws as well as to protect the environment by
minimizing the negative impact of the Group’s existing business
activities on the environment.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s original share option scheme was adopted on 12

February 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), which was early terminated

and replaced by a new share option scheme approved by the
Shareholders on 19 August 2011 (the “2012 Scheme”). A summary of
the 2012 Scheme is set out below:

1. Purpose

2. Participants

3. Total number of
shares available
for issue under
the 2012 Scheme
and the percentage
of the issued shares
that it represents
as at the date of
this annual report

To provide incentives and rewards to the
eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations.

Eligible participants include any employee
(including Directors), any business associate,
any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support
to the Group or any invested entity, and any
shareholder of any member of the Group
or any invested entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the
Group or an invested entity.

As approved by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company held
on 27 August 2020 (the “2020 AGM”), the
scheme limit of the 2012 Scheme has been
refreshed to issue share options to subscribe
for up to 915,307,885 Shares, representing
10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date of the 2020 AGM.

The scheme mandate limit is adjusted to
allow the Company to grant share options
for up to 91,530,788 Shares upon the Share
Consolidation became effective on 20
October 2020.

The total number of Shares available for
issue under the 2012 Scheme as at the date
of this annual report was 91,530,788 Shares,
representing approximately 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.
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4. Maximum entitlement
of each participant

5. Period within which
the shares must be
taken up under
an option

6. Minimum period for
which an option
must be held
before it can be
exercised

7. Amount payable on
acceptance of the
option and the
period within which
payments shall be
made

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the 4.  BRZEEH
total number of Shares issued and to be =
issued upon exercise of the share options

granted to any grantee (including both

exercised and outstanding share options) in

any 12-month period up to the date of grant

shall not exceed 1% of the Shares then in

issue.

For any grant of share options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates
would result in the Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all share
options already granted or to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in any 12-month
period exceed 0.1% of the Shares then in
issue and with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5 million, the proposed grant is also
subject to the approval by the Shareholders.

The period during which the share option 5. REBREY

may be exercised is determined by the BERERR

Board at its absolute discretion, save that no 2R

share option may be exercised more than 10

years after it has been granted.

As determined by the Board. 6. BRETTO
(B AT ESR
B2&R
HiR

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the 7.  EMERIER

Company upon acceptance of the share Sk
option which must be accepted within 28 REELEE
days from the date of offer. 3.2 5B
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8. Basis of determining
the exercise price

9. Remaining life of
the 2012 Scheme

The subscription price shall be determined
solely by the Directors, which shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the share option; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the share option; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant of the share option.

The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from its adoption date
until 18 August 2021, subject to the early
termination provisions contained therein.

No share option was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled during
the year ended 31 March 2021 under the 2012 Scheme.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company did not have any outstanding

share options granted but yet to be exercised under the 2012

Scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the
date of this Directors’ Report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. XIE Zhichun (Chairman)

Mr. ZHU Yi (Chief Executive Officer?)

Ms. SUN Qing

(appointed on 24 April 2020)
Mr. HUA Yang

(resigned on 24 April 2020)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. HAN Hanting

Mr. CHEN Zhiwei

Mr. WU Ling
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

Mr. CHIU Kung Chik

Mr. LI Gaofeng

Mr. LIU Xin

# Mr. ZHU Yi was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from
24 April 2020.

Pursuant to Article 116 of the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), at each annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM”) one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director, including those appointed for
a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. XIE Zhichun, Mr. ZHU Yi, Mr. CHEN Chiwei and Mr.
CHIU Kung Chik shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 29 to 36 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into employment contracts or letters of
appointment with each of the Directors for a specific term, subject to
the renewal provisions contained therein and retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGMs. None of the Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has employment contract or letter
of appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his favor, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has maintained Directors’ liability insurance during the
year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this annual report
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of each of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company and their associates in
the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Approximate
percentage

Total interest of the

Interest in in Shares/ issued share
Interest in underlying underlying capital of the
Name of Director Capacity Shares shares shares Company
R,/ RN
REERH HERG 2 BERITRA
BEEpE 4] NPz R 2R RS BAESH
Mr. XIE Zhichun Interest of controlled 274,435,000 35,000,000 309,435,000 33.81%
(“Mr. Xie") (Noe) corporation
fREERE RIEH)EEER
([RkE]) ™
Note: BT -

Mr. Xie was deemed to be interested in 274,435,000 Shares and 35,000,000
underlying shares of the Company held by Riverhead Capital (a company
which was owned as to 80% by Mr. Xie). Such underlying shares may be
issued upon the exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the convertible
bonds (at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.60 per conversion share
upon the Share Consolidation became effective on 20 October 2020) in
an outstanding principal balance amount of HK$21,000,000 issued by the
Company to Riverhead Capital on 5 July 2018 pursuant to the subscription
agreement entered into between the Company and Riverhead Capital on 22
November 2016 subject to the fulfilment of the conditions as contained therein.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company, had or was deemed to have
any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY",
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2021 was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company, their respective
spouse or minor children (natural or adopted) to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Mr. Xie is the controlling shareholder of Riverhead Capital, who holds
80% of the shareholding interests in this company. Save as disclosed
in the section headed “ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS” under the
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” section of this annual
report, no contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING EERNBRER2ER

—— BUSINESS

REBEZE-_Z-_—F=ZA=+—HLtFE =&
EREE N EEREAEEEEE T A g
indirectly, with businesses of the Group (‘Competing Businesses”) ST %% ([HBEK]) RHEBRE LTH
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were as  BIZE T E 2 Emalin T ¢

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the interests of the Directors in
the business which compete or are likely to compete either directly or

follows:

Description of

Competing
Name of Director Name of company Businesses Nature of interest
g DEER BREBHE REME
Mr. Xie China Taiping Insurance Fund and asset As an independent

(Executive Director)

Rkt
(BITEE)

Mr. HAN Hanting
(Non-executive Director)
BRHELE
(FEHTTEE)

Holdings Co. Ltd.
(“Taiping Insurance”)
IR TR IERR A PR A 7]

([RFRER])

China Minsheng Banking
Corp. Ltd.
(“Minsheng Banking”)

FERERTRNARAF
([ERAERT))

CVP Securities Ltd.
(“CVP")

ENBHFBERAR
(T2X])

management

EEREEEE

Fund and asset
management, securities
dealing and broking,
investment banking

HehEEER
BHFEE ML
RERITER

Securities broking and
margin financing

BARLERIFRRE

non-executive director of
Taiping Insurance
KRB 2B IENTES

As an independent
non-executive director of
Minsheng Banking

RAERITZBUFNTES

As a non-executive director
of CVP
ENZIEHTES

(R LA EESN - EEFNERIME
AR BRI HF R A B F 2 (IR EHF
A o

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in
any business apart from the Group’s businesses which compete or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses of the
Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2021, as far as is known to the Directors and as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO, the substantial Shareholders (other than
a Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company

were as follows:
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R-Z-—F=A=t+—B BEZEMAKR
RIBAR D RIRE 5 NS (R0 5 336 1R7ATF
BEZELMARLHE  TERR (ARRES
EATHARERRIN) RAR R SRR
REA ZEmEORR T

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES AND R 2\ q]fig (7 R 1FEF IR 17 = #F
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY: B
Approximate
percentage
Total interest of the
Interest in in Shares and issued share
Interest in underlying underlying capital of the
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares shares shares Company
RBRAR RN
REBR® HERHZ BRITRA
BRREE/ MR 2] R 2 s ZREH BRH EOER
Riverhead Capital (International) Beneficial owner 274,435,000 35,000,000 309,435,000 33.81%
Management Co., Ltd.
(“Riverhead Capital”) "
TRER (ERR) ERAERRA EHuEBA
(BI%ER])H=
Ms. SUN Zhuyin Interest of Spouse 274,435,000 35,000,000 309,435,000 33.81%
("Ms. Sun”) (e
BrExt B
(THR&L])m=n
Jadehero Limited Beneficial owner 80,000,000 — 80,000,000 8.74%
(“Jadehero”) (Mee2
ERBRAA E&AAA
([BE)) "2
Southlead Limited Interest of controlled 80,000,000 — 80,000,000 8.74%
(“Southlead”) o2 corporation
EEARAR Rt EE RS
(T4ER )2

HEEG S M EEARAT
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Approximate
percentage
Total interest of the
Interest in in Shares and issued share
Interest in underlying underlying capital of the
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares shares shares Company
RERBK L YN
REBRG L) g ERTRA
BREB/BA L) R 2 #x ZHER iR BREIL
Santo Limited (“Santo”) (2 Beneficial owner 141,643,000 — 141,643,000 15.47%
Santo Limited ([ Santo )= EREEA
WHOLE ADVANCE LIMITED Interest of controlled 221,643,000 — 221,643,000 24.22%
(“Whole Advance’) M2 corporation
AEBRARA R EERER
(&R0
Liberal Expansion Limited Interest of controlled 221,643,000 — 221,643,000 24.22%
(“Liberal Expansion”) (\o©¢2) corporation
BIABRAR R AR
(1/&Bh ) =2
Mr. ZHAO Xu Guang Interest of controlled 221,643,000 — 221,643,000 24.22%
(“Mr. Zhao”) Noe2) corporation
iz} i ovited R AR
(T# %t | )
Notes: BaE -

1. As at 31 March 2021, Riverhead Capital beneficially held 274,435,000

Shares and 35,000,000 underlying shares of the Company which may
be issued upon the exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the
convertible bonds (at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.60 per
conversion share upon the Share Consolidation became effective
on 20 October 2020) in an outstanding principal balance amount of
HK$21,000,000 issued by the Company to Riverhead Capital on 5 July
2018 pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and Riverhead Capital on 22 November 2016 subject to the
fulfilment of the conditions as contained therein. Riverhead Capital is
owned as to 80% by Mr. Xie (the executive Director and Chairman) who
is also the sole director of Riverhead Capital. For the purpose of the
SFO, Mr. Xie was deemed to be interested in the Shares and underlying
shares held by Riverhead Capital.

Ms. Sun is the spouse of Mr. Xie, therefore, Ms. Sun was deemed to be
interested in 274,435,000 Shares and 35,000,000 underlying shares of
the Company which Mr. Xie has a deemed interest therein under the
SFO.
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2. As at 31 March 2021, Jadehero beneficially held 80,000,000 Shares
and Santo beneficially held 141,643,000 Shares. Jadehero is owned as
to 80% by Southlead. Southlead was deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Jadehero. Southlead and Santo are wholly-owned by
Whole Advance. Whole Advance is wholly-owned by Liberal Expansion
which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhao. For the purpose of the SFO,
Mr. Zhao, Liberal Expansion and Whole Advance were deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Jadehero and Santo.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors were
not aware of any substantial Shareholder (who was not the Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which was
required to be entered in the aforesaid register pursuant to section
336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. These related party transactions
are either connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions fully exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and/or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share was held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue attributable to the 5
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 46.85%
of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 14.35% of the Group’s total revenue.

The Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the
Directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of the Group’s
suppliers.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers during the year ended 31 March 2021.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group and the
employer’s retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities throughout
the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s compliance with the corporate governance codes are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 54 to 78 of this
annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

There are no significant events occurred after the Reporting Year.

TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES

HONG KONG

The purchase, sale and transfer of Shares registered in the
Company’s Hong Kong branch register of members will be subject
to Hong Kong stamp duty. The current rate charged on each of the
purchaser and seller (or transferee and transferor) is 0.1% of the
consideration or, if greater, the fair value of the Shares being bought/
sold or transferred (rounded up to the nearest HK$'000). In addition, a
fixed duty of HK$5.00 is currently payable on an instrument of transfer
of Shares.

Profits from dealings in the Share arising in or derived from Hong
Kong may also be subject to Hong Kong profits tax.

CAYMAN ISLANDS

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of Shares are exempt from Cayman Islands stamp duty.

CONSULTATION WITH PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS

Intending holders and investors of the Shares are recommended
to consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as
to the taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing
for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in Shares. It is
emphasized that none of the Company or its Directors or officers will
accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders
of Shares resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding,
disposal of or dealing in such Shares.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
gﬂEEg RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
Directors’ information of the Company since 27 November 2020
(i.e. the date of the Board’s approval of the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2020) to 29 June 2021 (i.e. the date
of the Board’s approval of the annual results for the year ended 31
March 2021) were as follows:

1)  Ms. SUN Qing resigned as a non-executive director of IBO
Technology Company Limited (listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange) with effect from 10 February 2021.

2)  Mr. LIU Xin was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Zhongchang International Holdings Group Limited
(listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) with effect
from 12 May 2021.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the Directors’
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules since 27 November 2020 (i.e. the date of the Board'’s
approval of the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2020) to 29 June 2021 (i.e. the date of the Board’s approval of the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2021)

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. CHIU Kung Chik (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. CHAN Kin Sang, Mr. LI Gaofeng and Mr. LIU Xin.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the internal controls and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited consolidated financial statements
and annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEREE ()

AUDITOR &M

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ASBEHE_ZT-_—F=A=+—HILFE
ended 31 March 2021 were audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong ~ Z4R& ISR ERE LA (B8) @H60=
Limited (“Grant Thornton”) which will retire at the conclusion of the  FEIER AR ([BE]) T - R FRE
forthcoming AGM. [ERRRBE RS ERFFRIE

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in auditor of the B EiltFT# T EIN - RA TR B E=FHEHE

Company in any of the preceding three years. BT AL ERED o

On behalf of the Board REESS

ZHUYi x B

Director EE

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021 BB ZE-—FAZTNH
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREERARE

The Company’s commitment to the highest standards of corporate
governance is driven by the Board which, led by the Chairman, assumes
overall responsibility for the governance of the Company, taking into
account of the interests of the Shareholders, the development of its
businesses and the changing external environment.

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
fundamental in ensuring that the Company is well managed in the
interests of all of its Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has
complied with all code provisions and, where appropriate, met the
recommended best practices of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transaction. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating of the Group’s
overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s business
operations and performance, preparing and approving financial
statements, considering and approving material contracts and
transactions as well as other significant policies and financial matters.
The Board takes the responsibility to oversee internal controls and
risk management systems and to review of the effectiveness of such
systems, monitoring the performance of the senior management
and determining the policy for corporate governance. The Board
also gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the senior
management for the day-to-day operation, business strategies and
administrative functions of the Group.

BOARD COMPOQSITION

As at 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this annual report, the
composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

HITES FHITES

Non-executive Directors

TRERHE (F)

EEg

EESHABENITAEE 2 BERE &
A MEBEARBZRHEENRKE  HER
PEMBHRR  EEMMEEREH R
5 NWEREMBEZRELGBER - EFF
BEEEAMEELEARERRS - Wink
ZEZRGZAERE  UREESREERBX
BEHRIERERRE - EFGMEKT
SREEERMASERTEEE XBERK
RATHRE 2 HE T 4a TRAMEIE R ©

EFECHA

R-B-—F=A=t—BREERFHRA
Hl EFgoMAmmT

Independent non-executive
Directors
BYFHITES

Mr. XIE Zhichun (Chairman)
REAELE (&)

Mr. HAN Hanting
BWRELE

Mr. ZHU Yi (Chief Executive Officer) Mr. CHEN Zhiwei

KBELE (BEHTE) BREEEE
Ms. SUN Qing Mr. WU Ling
BRERL RERE

The Chairman and the independent non-executive Directors have met
at least once every year without the presence of other Directors and
the management and such meeting was held on 27 November 2020.

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang
BRI 54

Mr. CHIU Kung Chik
HAESLE

Mr. LI Gaofeng
FRlEEE

Mr. LIU Xin
Bkttt

TEMBUFATESEHEMEEREEE
THESHNERT  BFEKIBIT-RE
& MZegREN T _TF+—A-++t
S
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERERARE (&)

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS, COMMITTEES

MEETINGS, GENERAL MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’

ATTENDANCE RATE

Number of Board meetings, committees meetings and general
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
attendance rate of the individual Directors are set out below:

EFEEHs  ZEEEH

AEZBEREZLFEE

KR

REBEE-T-_—F=A=1T—HILFERR
TRESEEH ZBegRMBRRAEZ
FEARERESZ HERFEINOT

Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Directors (“BM”) (“ACM”) (“RCM”) (“NCM”) (“AGM”) (“EGM”)
B 210 RE B3R (&
EZge ZE98E ZEEg8E ZEggR BEXRE BRAE
(TEze (EnzEe (FMzEe (RE€ZBE® (RREE (TR
g =i =i ) =g ) gl X8 HAXxg)
Executive Directors HBiTES
XIE Zhichun (Chairman) BEE (2F) 99 NATEF 2R 22 1 op
ZHU Yi (Chief Executive Officer) ™= 5K 3% (B/EH77E)ME) 99 NAZEF N 111 11 2
SUN Qing oe2! b 88 NATEFR NIATNER NATER 1 op
HUA Yang (e = N 1 NATRER 11 11 NARER N/ANER
Non-executive Directors FHTES
HAN Hanting BHE 99 NANER NANER NANER 17 22
CHEN Zhiwei BREE 99 NAZEF NAZTEA NATEF 1 22
WU Ling R & 8/9 NARER NATER NATER on 12
Independent non-executive Directors BV FEHTES
CHAN Kin Sang PRfzE 99 33 NANER NATNER 1 212
CHIU Kung Chik BAE 99 33 212 212 il 202
Ll Gaofeng St 99 33 2L 22 1 op
LIU Xin 2 m 99 33 22 22 1 2
Notes: B3
1. Mr. ZHU Yi was appointed as a member of each of the Remuneration 1. RBREENRZZT-_TFOA-FTMUAEE

Committee and the Nomination Committee on 24 April 2020. One RCM
and one NCM were held since his appointment.

2. Ms. SUN Qing was appointed as a Director on 24 April 2020. Eight BMs
were held since her appointment.

3. Mr. HUA Yang resigned as a Director and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 24
April 2020. One BM, One RCM and one NCM were held prior to his
resignation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The biographical details of all existing Directors are set out in the
section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS” of this
annual report. None of the Directors has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s))
with other Board members.

The Board is provided with relevant information concerning matters
to be brought for its decision. Regular board meetings are held at
approximately quarterly intervals and at least 14 days notice will
be given to the Directors before each board meeting is held. Board
papers are dispatched to the Directors at least 3 days prior to the
meetings.

Directors have to declare their interests before the meetings in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Directors who are
considered to have a conflict of interest or material interests in the
proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be counted
as the quorum of the meeting and are required to abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions.

The Company maintains the minutes of the board meetings for
inspection by Directors.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the
Executive Committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”).
Decisions on important matters are reserved to the Board while
decisions on the Group’s general operations are delegated to the
Executive Committee. Important matters including but not limited to
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, approval of annual
and interim results, other significant operational and financial matters
and those affecting the Group’s strategic policies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERERARE (&)

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to the management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. The independent non-executive Directors are
responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the
Company and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

According to the code provision under the CG Code requiring
directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organizations and other significant commitments as well
as their identity and the time involved to the Company, the Directors
update the Company regarding offices held in public companies and
organisations, and other significant commitments on a regular basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters relating to
the approval and monitoring of policy matters, overall strategies and
budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.

Newly appointed Directors are provided with briefings and orientation
on their legal and other responsibilities as a Director and the role of
the Board.

Information package comprising the latest development in laws,
rules and regulations relating to the duties and responsibilities of
Directors will be forwarded to each Director from time to time for their
information and reference. “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” published
by the Companies Registry of Hong Kong, and “Guidelines for
Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors”
published by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors have also been
forwarded to each newly appointed Director for their information and
reference.

In addition, the Company has also from time to time provided
information and briefings to Directors on the latest development
of the laws, rules and regulations relating to Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. The Company has, on an individual basis, advised
Directors on queries or issues arising from the performance of their
duties.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, one in-house seminar on the
topics of “Privatisation of HK listed companies” and “Resumption and
cancellation of listing” was provided by the Company to its Directors.
Besides, individual Director who had participated in other continuous
professional training organized by professional bodies and/or
government authorities also provided the Company with his records
of continuous professional development. Such training records were
kept by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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The Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed and

refreshed by the following means:

(1)

Participation in in-house seminars and/or briefings provided by
the Company relating to the updates on legal and regulatory,
corporate governance requirements and industry-related issues;

Participation in the continuous professional training seminars/
conferences/courses/workshops organized by other professional
bodies and/or government authorities on topics relating to
directors’ duties and/or their respective professionalism; and

Reading materials relating to the latest development in laws,
rules and regulations in relation to the directors’ duties and
responsibilities, corporate governance and finance industry,
as well as watching videos prepared by the Stock Exchange in
relation to the aforesaid topics.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, all the Directors participated RE

TRERHE (F)

EE_—FZA=+—HAILEFE

in continuous professional development and the relevant details are ~ BEFCLHEFEEEER - A BT

set out below: LU

Training(s)
Members of the Board received
EEgmE [EF:3-dwd-r|
Executive Directors BITES
XIE Zhichun (Chairman) EE (/) (1)&(3)
ZHU Yi (Chief Executive Officer*) K% (BEHTE ) (1)&(3)
SUN Qing (appointed on 24 April 2020) BRE (RZFE_FFNA—FAEZF) (1)&(3)
HUA Yang (resigned on 24 April 2020) By (R-E-FF/YH =/ HFHT) N/A

TEHA

Non-executive Directors FHTES
HAN Hanting BEHE (M&(3)
CHEN Zhiwei BREE (M&(3)
WU Ling RE (M&(3)
Independent non-executive Directors BIKHITES
CHAN Kin Sang (ot PeR i A (MiazD (2)&(3)
CHIU Kung Chik HAE (M&(3)
LI Gaofeng el (1)&(3)
LIU Xin 21 (M&(3)

* *

Mr. ZHU Yi was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from
24 April 2020.

Notes: 5T

(i) Mr. CHAN Kin Sang was absent from the in-house seminar provided by (i)
the Company on 27 November 2020.

RREEN S -_TFONA-_+NBEER
FAEEFHNTE °

BRIBESLAEWENEARTR_ZE_EF
F+—AZ T+t RARRHREFTE -

PEERERMEEERAR
B -FFRH

61



62

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE
DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in
respect of possible legal actions against its Directors and officers.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are currently performed by Mr. XIE
Zhichun and Mr. ZHU Yi respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for taking the lead in formulating the
overall strategies and policies of the Group. He ensures that the
Board functions effectively and all material issues of the Company are
discussed in a timely manner. The Chairman also leads the Board to
establish good corporate governance policies and procedures for the
Group as a whole.

The Chief Executive Officer, supported by the other executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company, is responsible
for the daily business operations and management of the Group. He
monitors the implementation of the Group’s strategy with respect to
the achievement of its business objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into letters of appointment with the Company
for an initial term of one year with effect from the date of appointment
subject to the terms of renewal contained therein and retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee are disclosed on
both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee was established in October 2005.
It currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHIU Kung Chik (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. LI Gaofeng and Mr. LIU Xin, and two executive
Directors, namely Mr. XIE Zhichun and Mr. ZHU Yi. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee was revised on 29 February
2012 and are aligned with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The
main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(f)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive for the
Company;
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(g) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(h)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings to discuss and deal with the following major
matters:

— to review the remuneration package of all Directors and senior
management; and

— torecommend the remuneration package of the newly appointed
Director, namely Ms. SUN Qing, to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee was established in December 2007. It
currently comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. XIE Zhichun
(chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. ZHU Yi; and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHIU Kung
Chik, Mr. LI Gaofeng and Mr. LIU Xin. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee was revised on 29 February 2012 and are
aligned with the provisions set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(a) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and may select individuals nominated for directorship;

(c) to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Nomination Committee identifies and nominates qualified
individual to the Board for consideration. All newly appointed
Directors are subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the AGM
or at the next following general meeting of the Company immediately
following their appointment pursuant to the Articles of Association. In
considering the new appointment or re-nomination of Directors, the
Nomination Committee will focus their decisions based on attributes
such as integrity, industry experience and professional and technical
skills together with the ability to contribute time and afford to carry out
their duties effectively and responsibly.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings to discuss and deal with the following major
matters:

—  toreview the composition of the Board;

— to review and assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and

— to recommend the appointments of Mr. ZHU Yi as the Chief
Executive Officer and Ms. SUN Qing as executive Director
respectively for the Board’s approval.

A nomination policy was adopted by the Company in November 2018
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
nomination procedures in identifying and recommending candidates
as Directors for the Board’s consideration. In assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee
will take into account (i) the Company’s actual needs, (ii) the
candidate’s skills and professional experience that are complementary
to the other members of the Board and (iii) the diversity of the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, etc.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy from
time to time and discuss any revisions required, and will recommend
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity of its
Board members. It had adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”)
in August 2013. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy
and competence. The ultimate decision will be based on merits and
contributions that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives amongst the structure,
size and composition of the Board, when making the recommendation
to the Board for appointment or re-appointment of Directors, the
Nomination Committee will take into account certain objective criteria
such as gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills and knowledge, and length of service,
etc. Besides, it will also take into account factors based on the
Company’s business model and specific needs from time to time.

In addition, the Nomination Committee will from time to time review
the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness. It
will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The Audit Committee was established in April 2001 and currently
comprises four independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. CHIU Kung Chik (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. CHAN
Kin Sang, Mr. LI Gaofeng and Mr. LIU Xin. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee was revised on 30 December 2015 and are
aligned with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The main duties of
the Audit Committee are as follows:

(a) to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging of an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should
report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations

on any matters where action or improvement is needed;

to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them. In
reviewing these reports before submission to the Board, the
Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting;

(b)
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(e)

(i)

regarding (d) above:

(i)  members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditor; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the
reports and accounts, it should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditor;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate Board’s risk committee, or by the
Board itself, to review the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed its
duty to have effective systems. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The Audit
Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

to report to the Board on the matters set out above; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee held
three meetings to consider and approve, inter alia, the following

matters:

(a)

to review the half-year and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board, with a focus on compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other requirements
in relation to financial reporting of the Audit Committee;

to review and discuss the effectiveness of the internal controls
system throughout the Group, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, and risk management;

to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and other financial reporting matters;

to discuss with the auditor on the annual audit scope; and

to recommend to the Board for re-appointment of Grant
Thornton as auditor of the Group for the ensuing year and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of Grant
Thornton.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was established in April 2017 with written
terms of reference that specifies its authorities and duties. It currently
comprises all executive Directors (except for the Chairman) and
the relevant department heads of the Company and is chaired by
the Chief Executive Officer. The Executive Committee is primarily
responsible for supervising the day-to-day operation of the Group,
implementing business strategies made by the Board and making
investment decisions within its authorities, etc. The Executive
Committee meets as and when necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties:

(iy  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board has duly discharged
the above-mentioned duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the auditor’s remuneration paid
or payable by the Group to Grant Thornton in respect of the audit and
other non-audit services were as follows:
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Audit services Z RS 950,000
Non-audit services IERZ ERTS

— other professional services — HEMEZERE 350,000

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The reporting responsibilities of Grant Thornton to the Shareholders
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 108 to 116
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2021
and ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair view
of the affairs of the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flow
and in compliance with the relevant laws and disclosure provisions of
the Listing Rules. In preparing the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021, the Directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently;
made prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates; and have
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has appointed
Ms. LI Ching Yi (“Ms. Li”), a senior manager of listing corporate
services department of Trident Corporate Services (Asia) Limited, as
a company secretary of the Company on 16 October 2020 following
the resignation of Ms. MOK Ming Wai as a company secretary of
the Company with effect from 16 October 2020. Ms. Li worked and
communicated closely with Mr. ZHU Yi, an executive Director of the
Company. Ms. Li has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board gives high priority to balanced, clear and transparent
communications which allow Shareholders and investors to
understand the Group’s prospects and the market environment in
which it operates. The Company communicates with Shareholders
and investors in different ways to ensure that their views and concerns
are understood and addressed in a constructive way.

In March 2012, the Board has established a Shareholders communication
policy and a Shareholders’ guide is in place to ensure that Shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Group. The policy is regularly
reviewed to ensure its effectiveness and is uploaded on the Company’s
website.

The Company’s website has become the primary platform of communication
between the Company and the Shareholders. The investor relations
section of the website is kept under regular review by the Company to
ensure that information related to Shareholders is disseminated in an
accurate and timely manner.

The particulars of Shareholders’ rights relating to, inter alia, putting
forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings, convening of extraordinary
general meetings and making enquiries to the Group are as follows:

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021

DNEMWE

@E—E—fiiﬂ:+famiﬁ'§§
ELITHR_Z_ZF+ A+ BHEIELD
ngmwgévm AER-_TE-_TF+
AT RBZAERAERBERAT LTA
AR RERFTERLLE ([FELL])
BARRRZABIME - TR TEAQBNIT
EERRALERTAERER - THLEE
BB EMABIE3 290G HELETDLR5

/N 2 SRR LR

IRERAER

EXgaEERHEE  BEWAERNER -
EREMEEE THASEENIT S RAEE
E’J”“%W%f&iﬁ RAREBTER S H
BRREEEEITER  UWBRESNER
B FIRAR - ILA@*“HE’\J?\?ﬁEfE o

R-T——F=F EF2CHFIRBHR
RN RRES| - UHERRRER IS E
- HRREZEBENAEBER o ZRK
B TR A R ALY & 15 Bt st ARER
HAMIE -

AARBUMBKARARERRER FE
T o AQETEREHAULNIEEEBER—

 ATBRELR R A 2 B R s dE T B
mﬁm

BRE (EPEHE) RRRERAS LIEZE
& ARRRBIAE RAAKEHHZE
MBI



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Pursuant to Article 120 of the Articles of Association, no person, other
than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director, signed by a Shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed for election as a Director) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given, and a
notice in writing signed by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the registration office. The minimum length
of the period during which such notices are given shall be at least
seven days, commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

To include a resolution relating to other matters in a general meeting,
Shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and procedures
as set out in section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong). The relevant Shareholders’ Guide has also
been published on the Company’s website.

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of
any two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one member of the Company which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may
be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

The Board is grateful to Shareholders and other stakeholders for their
views, and welcomes their questions and concerns raised in relation
to the management and governance of the Group.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by post to the Company at Units
No. 4102-06, 41/F, COSCO Tower, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong or by email to info@290.com.hk for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

A dividend policy was adopted by the Company in November 2018
(the “Dividend Policy”) which sets out the guideline for distribution
of dividends to the Shareholders. The Dividend Policy aims to strike
a balance between the Shareholders’ interests and the Company’s
capital requirement for business operation and development needs.
The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board will take into account,
inter alia, the Group’s financial results and liquidity, its business
strategies and development plans, as well as other factors that the
Board may consider appropriate.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association (in both
English and Chinese) is available on both the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year ended 31 March
2021, there is no change to the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for establishing and
maintaining sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems, and for determining the nature and extent of risk it is willing
to take in pursuing business objectives of the Group. Yet, such risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Company has a risk management policy in place to formalize
the procedures in identifying, evaluating and monitoring the risks
which may be encountered by the Group in the course of business.
By tackling the risks in a systematic way, the Board believes that the
same can be minimized or under control at a reasonable level.

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
are as follows:

1. each business unit/department identifies the risks that encountered
or may be encountered by them in the course of business/
operation;

2. business units/departments compile a list of risks which
contains the following information for every single risk identified
by them: (a) risk classification; (b) contents of risk; (c) measures
taken; (d) risk ranking; and (e) recommendations to deal with
such risk, and email this list to the Executive Committee and
the Compliance and Risk Management Department (the “CRM
Department”) for review and assessment;
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3. the Executive Committee and the CRM Department discuss,
assess and determine whether further action is required to be
taken against the identified risks or whether such risks should
be reported to the Board;

4.  if reporting to the Board is required, the Company Secretary will
send the materials to the Board for discussion and revert the
Board’s decision to the relevant business unit/department for
action/follow up.

Besides, internal control measures and/or procedures have also
been designed and implemented for safeguarding the Group’s assets
against unauthorized use or disposal, maintaining proper accounting
records, and monitoring the compliance with the applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Although the Company does not have an internal audit function,
it has established a CRM Department to monitor the overall risk
management and compliance issues of the Group on an on-going
basis. Quarterly reports on compliance, risk management and internal
control issues of the Group will be prepared by the CRM Department
and tabled before the regular Audit Committee and Board meetings
for review and discussion. Modifications and improvements on the
existing risk management and internal control policies will be carried
out from time to time as required.

Apart from the internal review of the risk management and internal
control systems on a quarterly basis, the Company also engages
independent internal control advisors to conduct reviews of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group or specific business segments of the Group at regular
intervals:

1. A comprehensive review for the Group’s overall risk
management and internal control system was conducted in
2017. The scope of review included trading of listed securities
cycle, human resource and payroll cycle, cash management
and treasury cycle and financial reporting cycle for the
Company, etc. The internal control advisor performed interviews,
reviewed the relevant documents and reported major findings
and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. No material
issue on the Group’s risk management and internal control
system was identified after the review. All recommendations
from internal control advisor were followed up closely to ensure
that they were implemented within a reasonable period of time.
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2. A review for the risk management and internal control system
of the business of securities brokerage and margin financing
is conducting as at the date of this report and the scope of
review includes operation and compliance manual, underwriting
placement procedure, securities margin financing control for the
company, etc. The internal control advisor has been performing
interviews and reviewing the relevant documents. No material
issue for the risk management and internal control system of
the business of securities brokerage and margin financing is
identified as at the date of this report.

Hence, the Board considers that the existing risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate to
meet its needs in its current business environment.

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

To ensure timely, fair, accurate and complete disclosure of inside
information and for compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, an updated policy on handling the inside information has
been approved by the Board in August 2017, pursuant to which, the
Company has taken a series of procedures to identify and preserve
the confidentiality of the price sensitive information and to disclose
the same to the public in a timely manner, if required. All staff are
also required to observe the code of ethical standards stated in Staff
Handbook to keep non-public information confidential.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication by maintaining regular
meetings with institutional Shareholders, fund managers and
analysts through different means including meetings, presentations
and correspondence. In an effort to enhance communications with
the Shareholders and investors, the Company maintains a website
(www.290.com.hk) to disseminate information relating to the latest
business developments and all corporate announcements.
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The AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly
with the Shareholders. An AGM circular was distributed to all
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM held
on 27 August 2020 (the “2020 AGM"), setting out the details of
each proposed resolution and other relevant information. Separate
resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of the Company on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors. Shareholders have the opportunity to participate and
vote in general meetings and are informed of the rules and voting
procedures that govern the general meeting.

The 2020 AGM of the Company was held at 43rd Floor, COSCO
Tower, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Chairman and
the chairmen of Board committees, accompanied by other Directors,
attended the 2020 AGM. Please refer to the table set out on page
56 of this annual report for details of attendance of the individual
Directors at the 2020 AGM. The external auditor of the Company,
Grant Thornton, also attended at the 2020 AGM to answer questions
raised by the Shareholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW

China Fortune Financial Group Limited (“China Fortune” or the
“Company”,
to present its Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the

together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased

“ESG Report”), which summarised the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) initiatives and accomplishments for the year
ended 31 March 2021 (the “Reporting Year”).

Founded in 2002, China Fortune has firmly established two
cornerstone businesses, investment banking and security brokerage,
supported with a comprehensive service portfolio, including
proprietary trading, asset management, corporate finance, money
lending and equity investment. The Group’s operations are located
primarily in Hong Kong SAR with offices in mainland China.

ESG investing has been moving mainstream as Climate Change
related disasters and risks reshape the principles of investment
decisions. As a significant player in China’s financial market, China
Fortune has been vigilant on those trends and the impacts that may
assert to our business.

The board of directors (the “Board”) has the overall responsibility for
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting in achieving green operations
for sustainable development. The management is responsible for
monitoring and managing ESG related risks and the effectiveness
of the ESG management systems. In order to identify and assess
relevant the ESG issues, the Group has discussed with various
management personnel and other key stakeholders. The summary of
the material ESG issues, which are covered in the ESG Report, are
listed in the section headed “Materiality Assessment”.

In the reporting period, we have conducted preliminary analysis
under the TCFD framework -a first step to lift sustainability from risk
management to integrate with our strategy. We shall ensure that
relevant ESG factors will be incorporated in how we run our business,
design our products and interact with our stakeholders going forward.
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SPECIAL MEASURES TO FIGHT COVID-19

This reporting year was marked with a couple waves of coronavirus
strikes in Hong Kong amid a global pandemic. During the period,
we decided not to change our employment policy and not to lay
off people, or cut pays or implement unpaid leave, so that China
Fortune will fight the pandemic together with its people and come out
stronger.

At the beginning of the outbreak, the Group provided highly sought-
after protective measures for staff, such as face masks and sanitizing
packages, through its overseas network. The Group also made
flexible work arrangements including home office for our staff on the
basis of no compromise on customer service quality. The ratio of
work from office (WFO) vs home (WFH) was at 2:8 at the peaks of the
epidemic, and 6:4 at milder times.

Sanitizing measures were put in place in office when employees
returned to work. Employees’ body temperatures were also taken
regularly, and the Group issued a policy to arrange employees to
go for immediate medical treatment should their body temperature
exceed 37.3°C at Group’s expense where necessary.

REPORTING SCOPE

This report serves to provide details of the Group’s ESG policies and
practices of its business in Hong Kong and mainland China, which
has been prepared and compiled under the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “ESG Reporting Guide”).

This report covers all its business operations, including subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and branches in mainland China.

The content including data in preparing the ESG Report is primarily
based on the internal policies and documents as well as information
provided by various key stakeholders.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

ESG PRACTICE

OUR APPROACH

China Fortune started the ESG journey from our own operations to
ensure 100% compliance on all applicable rules and regulations.
But we understand this is not enough should we aim to be a leading
player in our sector. This year our CEO and CFO took lead in
exploring ESG practices. We made commitment in two areas:

1)  Continue green operation within China Fortune

2)  Our stakeholders’ concerns are duly anticipated and addressed

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

China Fortune employed the materiality assessment to first identify
major stakeholders and understand their needs and expectations.
Those material topics reflected are compared against China Fortune’s
own strategic and operational focus to produce a series of aligned
priorities.

The Group assessed and analysed the importance of ESG reporting
issues, with fine-tuning in between years to reflect the ever-evolving
external environment. We made certain adjustment in 2020 following
the materiality assessment conducted in previous year.

Business Fgcus O/j\lcjﬂ uﬁ% <
XGEE |# ,'D &>

o v+ o ,'
Vs [P
|
v 09000 Issue Prioritization

o -
Stakeholder Engagement
FinE2H

RE - #HERERRE (KA)

R - HEREREN
B 1PIHI T 1

TEERHESEEETERE HEME
AEH  WERTE2ETHAEERMRELE
Bl - BRMAR  FERBTEELRE L
BB RN - At - RAINEEATE
KBRS EHRMTRE e RERE
151 o FAPIBLIA T MDD T4 H A

1) #ETPEERNRELE

2) EREANMERERNENRIEE
BT

TEERNAEEMFEELREEIERD
FoUWTRESNFLLYE - AR
MRANERTREPEERE S AR NEE
BEHAETIE - KRR —RIERNESL
EH-

AEEFERDITRE HEREARES
HNERM  WHEFERETMER - AR

THIE (LASNEBIES - BRI A FHITH
EBU R T DL T -

\ 1
($ /

¢ 7
[ e

Material Issues

BREE

TEERTREEBRAR

—E-—FERH



82

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE  -dHgRERHE (K)

Stakeholders and engagement

Stakeholders are interest groups who are involved in our business
and have significant impact on our success. China Fortune applied
the following principles to reassess our stakeholders and their
importance in the reporting year:

— Impact on the viability of our business model
— Impact on the efficiency and reputation of our Group
— Impact on the direction and quality of our decision-making

Having almost two decades’ development, we appreciate the
importance of effective communications with external and internal
parties. We have built channels in our daily operation to understand
views and expectations from our stakeholders, who are customers,
employees, shareholders, regulators, suppliers and the community.

Despite travel bans and social distance measures, we managed to
keep the same level of communications frequency through on-line
means including video and audio tools during this reporting year. The
table below provides highlights of stakeholder engagement activities.

Expectations

Stakeholders Communication Channels

i ERSH

FhER/ZEBMEBALHRMOKINEE

FENTREE - PEERRANTRA
EHFEROERERAREFENER
M

—  BAMERBEAATENZE
— HAKERERRBENTE
— HEMARRTALEENTE

BT — TR - RAEREINBEA
BEFTETAEREENEEN - RPERE
LETFERURERE - L THENED
BEALHE  ZERNERETF REE K
R EEHRE - HERRUR -

BEBMIKITES R X BRER - BER
BEFE - HOAXRBEBRERA EET
BREARNG LR CHSHERRERER - T
RINEF N ELEEZHHME

Management Responses

EEEEE
e Ensuring contractual

B E BERE )]
Customers e Customer service hotline e |Integrity
5P e emalil e High quality services

e Company website
o EFARISEAR

. BB

o AFBIL

e Complaint handling
mechanism

. W

o BHERY

o RFFRRIRMS]

obligations are in place for
protection of customers’
benefits and rights

Collecting customers’ opinion
from various channels in

order to improve customer
satisfaction
BREITEHNEL  MRER
P 2 S AR
NEERBUETFER A
RAZFPMER
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Communication Channels

¢ Trainings and workshops

e Performance evaluation or
appraisal

e [nternal announcement

o HIIKRIEY

o BUEMHEER

AEIYN=

Expectations

e

® Humanity and labour rights

e QOccupational health and
safety

e Career development

e Equal opportunity

o ANBNMETHEZ

s BERELLZE

o EXITR

o TEHEKE

HERERARS (&)

Management Responses
EEEDE

Paying attention to
occupational health and safety,
creating a comfortable working
environment

Encouraging employees to
participate in continuous
education and professional
trainings to enhance
competency

Holding team building

function to increase workplace
collaboration

Setting up contractual
obligations to protect labour
rights
TEBERELRL S - EEEF
TR
SEIEE2EBEEEREE
AR B

BREER G ARETIE
EENE

HET & NEERES TR

Shareholders

PR

e Annual general meeting
and other shareholder
meetings

e Financial reports

e Announcements and

circulars

s MEBFREGLAMBKRE
PN

o HMESERE

o RENEK

e Financial performance

e [nformation transparency

e QOperating risks
management

e Corporate sustainability

o WMERIR

o ERBEAE

o LERRETE

o EAFEER

Ensuring efficient
communications and
information disclosure through
shareholder’s meetings,
annual reports and regular
announcements published
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Stakeholders Communication Channels Expectations Management Responses

EEELDE

] BERE HE

— Government e Routine reports e Compliance with laws and Upholding integrity and
and Regulatory e Written or electronic regulations operating business in
Authorities correspondences e Fulfil tax obligations compliance with law and
B REEKE o flIITHRE e Cooperation for mutual regulations
o EHENEFBERE benefits Paying tax on time in return
o BFERRER contributing to the society
s BIIMBAEME FEHMENMETARERLE
o A{EEHEHEEF ESi
RRHR AR ST S
Suppliers e Business cooperation e Fair and open selection Ensuring contractual
g e FESE e Supply chain management |  obligations are in place to
o NERFHMEE protect mutual benefit
o (HEEIEEIR Performing supplier selection
with due care to ensure fair
and open procurement
BREESHNEE - (REHRE
Mz
BRREEDIRALIER - R
NG
Community e ESG reports e |nvolvement in communities Encouraging employees to
1T o RIE B REAWME e Environmental protection participate in volunteer and
awareness charitable activities
e Compliant operations HEEELHEETIREEEY
o tH[ELH
o RIREH
o SHKE
Sustainable business focus AFEEREE
Factors such as business strategic objectives and policies, industrial ~ FEIVESRES BIZ MR « 1TEIZE R @
standards, legal and regulatory responsibilities, environmental ~ NMEEET « RIBFRE BRER - RIEE
protection, use of resources, service quality control, and employee  EEFHINEERESZAEZAHFIEZEKEE
protection have been taken into consideration for identifying the — ZENGEERDFTAZRE ©
important business focus and issues.
Through internal forums and discussions, China Fortune identified BB AIE# Ml 0 PEERE WM E#
four major sustainable business development priorities among all ~ FEFRIETE 1£KE’]TF‘:}‘ BXGRELR
issues. They are: DRE
e Product responsibility e EmEF
e Operational practices o EEEN
e Talent attraction and development o  AFRE|HEHBE
e Quality of customer services s EPRBEE
84 China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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Material issue prioritization

Materiality matrix below mapped out a series of material issues and

their respective level of importance on their influence on stakeholders

and significance of economic, environmental and social impact.

While the 13 items from last year’s assessment remained valid,

we made fine-tuning to two items along Level of Significance of

Economic, Environmental and social impacts: Employee Development
and Training, and Customer service.

Materiality Martix during the Reporting Period
RABEHBHNWESHER

Influence on Stakeholder assessments & decisions
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High
A
Customer privacy
Employee development and training protection
1B B &R MIE o XPBARE
[ J
AML & CTF

REERRRRGE @
1 (]
Eﬁ Customer service
Ll 2 E RS Anti-corruption
D R&E

= =/
ﬁ ° °
« ® Product responsibility
2 Employees’ health and safety EREE
o RERFEHEZS
R
Ho
&
HE Waste management
B Water consumption o EYIER
KRB
[ ) ® Recruitment and promotion
BEREF
Emissions
BB )
® ® Energy consumption
Community Investment BEREFE
HEIRE
Low Significance of Economic, Environmental and Social Impacts High
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Based on above materiality matrix and final validation, we concluded
the following four material issues to prioritize in our business, as well
as our reporting.

ERN S B A MR - 4R
BHATHEBEAEE  ZFFERERM
MEBARREDEBEERE -

Customer privacy protection

EFALRRE

Product responsibility
EmEFE

Anti-corruption

RES

Material Issues

EXEE

SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS OPERATIONS

As a financial institution, China Fortune provides services to a wide
range of corporate and private clients who trust us to bring financial
solutions and grow their assets and wealth. We are committed to
the quality of our products and customer services throughout our
operations.

We abide by a number of laws and regulations including but not
limited to: Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Companies Ordinance, Trade
Descriptions Ordinance and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. We
also have developed a series of internal policies and procedures with
regular updates to ensure strict compliance.

During the reporting year, there is no non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations in relation to product responsibility and product
quality.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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Employee development and training
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1. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

REBBRERZE  EARMHAER
FREIRD - BASEERERRERS
ER B RS AR EETR -
ERAEEAERREMEHT—ER T
TR ERRE— RIlE R B ER
TR o

Product Quality starts with product safety, which is at the core of our
commitment to all clients. We have placed great importance to due
diligence and risk monitoring processes in product planning and
on-going management. Product reliability is the next layer of quality
assurance initiative. It is conducted by a set of check and balance
processes amongst various professional teams.

ELEREm  AKBRKSRAREERR
g2 ARERE ST A S B REREER A KR
BRATHIEIEARE

At operation level, senior officers are assigned to supervise the daily
operation to ensure compliance with the Group’s internal policies and
risk control management requirements.

In early 2020, it came to the awareness of the management of certain fraudulent China Fortune corporate website
and mobile apps. A fraudulent WeChat group was also identified to have guided members in the group making
deposits on-line to unidentifiable bank account.

We reported such potential fraud immediately to the Hong Kong Police and police authorities in mainland China, and
filed a brief with relevant regulators. At the same time, we made public announcement through external engagement

channels exposing such fraudulent acts in order to protect our reputation and the interest of customers.

R-ZE_TFY) BEEERBILRETHRENTRERAR AL LBEHRMAIEN - FRER —ERFFREFAE

SIBEERKERGZ LERETRRITHRP ©

HAZAELERRTEAMERE BRRABEEENEGETA » LRABEERERERIGR - Rk - Rf1E
U

(=h
BINERS R

2. CUSTOMER SERVICES

China Fortune aspires to provide the best customer experience as we
can in product variety, product quality and customer communications.
We believe in providing quality advice and insights to customers
and have established a dedicated team of professionals with diverse
experience and in-depth knowledge of our services. They offer
valuable counsel to customers across our major service offerings.

Our customer service quality assurance measure is guided by the
principle of transparency. The role of quality reviewers has been
established many years ago with designated duty of overseeing the
process of customer service, including assessing service quality
through telephone tapes on sample check basis.
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In addition, we actively seek customer feedback on regular basis
and close gaps where possible, as we believe feedback is a valuable
mechanism for us to build a stronger customer-oriented corporate
culture. “Complaints handling procedure” is one of internal policies,
providing detailed process to follow when dealing with customers’
complaints. A variety of customer communications channels were set
up, such as telephone hotline and dedicated email address. Both are
made prominently on the client statements to ensure customers are
aware of those channels for their opinions.
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3. CUSTOMER PRIVACY PROTECTION AND CYBER
SECURITY

Customer’s data privacy is handled with utmost care at China
Fortune and is the most important commitment we have made to our
clients. The Group had developed Privacy Policy to comply with the
applicable data protection laws and regulations, for instance, the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. It also ensures that appropriate
technical measures are put in place to protect the personal data
against any unauthorised use or access.

We have established a system whereby all data is categorised, while
authorisation on usage, filing, editing and access are clearly defined.
In principle, staff only access client personal data on a need to-know
basis when opening and maintaining client’s account. The head of
legal department is also the Group’s Information Security Officer with
the responsibility to ensure the relevance and the enforcement of the
Privacy Policy.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

During the pandemic, extra network security measures were taken
when some of our employees had to work from home. It covered
remote access policy and procedures upgrade, intrusion detection
systems and monitoring, virus and malware protection, vulnerability
management, incident response planning, and patch management
etc.

By the end of this reporting period, we did not receive any complaints
in relation to breaches of customer privacy, losses or misuse of
client’s data.

China Fortune treasures the trust that our clients put into our advice
and service, and we have never taken it for granted. We appreciate
that ample competition helps improve the quality of product and
service and benefits customers at large. Therefore, we advocate
for fair competition and follow best practice in product and service
marketing activities. We respect the intellectual property rights of
others and protect those of our own.

The Group respects the intellectual property rights and strives to
protect intellectual property rights of its own and third parties. All
software installed by the Group are purchased through legitimate
sources. During the Reporting period, the Group did not aware of any
infringement of intellectual property case.

As a company providing financial services, the Group has limited
issue on advertising and labelling. In the Group’s dealings with its
clients, information provided should be complete, true, accurate,
clear, and complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding
the proper advertising, including but not limited to the Trade
Descriptions Ordinance.
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5. SUPPLY CHAIN

As a financial service provider, the Group’s suppliers are mainly
general office supplies providers. In order to provide a fair assessment
of suppliers’ selection, the Group evaluate needed services based on
a combination of capability, efficiency, competitiveness and reputation
of the suppliers before entering into the contractual agreements. If
any inconsistency is found between the Group’s requirements and
their act, the Group will suspend the cooperation until improvement is
made.

BUSINESS ETHICS AND PRACTICE

The Group advocates an operating environment of fairness and
a corporate culture of integrity and honesty. Employees, senior
management and directors are guided with the Group’s principles of
business ethics and integrity.

1. ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD

China Fortune has zero tolerance towards any form of corruption,
bribery, forgery, extortion, conspiracy, embezzlement and collusion.
Anti-corruption policies and procedures are crystalized in both Code of
Conduct and Employee Handbook to drive both mind-set and behaviour
change. Head of Compliance and Risk Management Department leads
all related work streams from policy setting to enforcement.

All employees are required to act in full compliance of all anti-
corruption related internal policies, laws and regulations, including
but not limited to Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201, Law
of Hong Kong). Anti-corruption trainings are mandatary for all
employees including board directors.

The Group’s operation policy requires:
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No confidential commercial information of the Group shall be disclosed, discussed and shared with third parties

for personal interest.

All employees are prohibited to give and accept personal, commercial, regulatory or contractual advantage, by

using the excuse of work or the authority granted from the Group.

If any misconducts are found and proven, the Group will apply disciplinary actions in accordance with set Policies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

During this reporting year, there was no concluded legal cases
regarding corruptive practices was brought against the Group or its
employees.

2. ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING ["AML"]) AND
COUNTER TERRORIST FINANCING (“CTF”]

China Fortune has taken AML and CTF as one of the most imperative
compliance requirements, and formulated relevant policies with
regular updates to ensure that all business operations comply with
relevant laws and regulations, including customer acceptance
policies, customer due diligence process, ongoing monitoring, and
customers and transactions record keeping.

The Group also regularly conducts internal trainings relating to AML
procedure and CTF recent updates on relevant regulation and other
topics related to licensed regulated activities.

3. WHISTLEBLOWING SYSTEM

China Fortune formulated a whistleblowing system for employees
and external parties to report any suspected irregularities or doubts
on misconduct. Such report will be raised directly to the Chairman
of Audit Committee by post or email. The investigation shall be
conducted in a fair and impartial way for every reporting. If there is
any evidence of illegal conduct or breach of laws and regulations, it
shall be referred to the relevant public or regulatory bodies such as
the Hong Kong Police Force, the Independent Commission against
Corruption, the Securities and Futures Commission, or relevant
regulatory body. Disciplinary actions would be adopted once the
guilty or misconduct is proven.

During this reporting year, there were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices was brought against the Group or
its employees, and no reports was received through our whistle
blowing channels. And the Group has not identified any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong
including but not limited to Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

RE #HERERHE (H)

RAREFE  AEEXHEEHMESRE
ST ERRM

2. RAE ([RALE) RRE
FE ([REEE])

A ER SRR AR ARESB
ARRRE Y —  RESIEIIEEE T T
B AR £ IR R Rk
B BEERFETRE  BFARBLER
1 BERE  ARES R HRURE -

REETE RO EREF RRREE - 8
FAGRPIR T IR 3 M AR A R EA BN
HibrErTREbEd -

3. HIEX

HEERE B R RE R AMIEER RINEEA
THEREFMERERTAXTETR - £
BEESAILRREFATNATAKTETR
B ARABTRER T AERANELEZE
SIFERE c BRBENHEREURFR
ERTETT - WA EARIRERIEETR
HESOERIER  ERHEERARNEE
Wg - MBEBEBE  RBAE  EF AN
EERERLZ e HBEERE - TAL
RITETHKRBE  BRRLRTH -

RAREFE - AEEXEREHESILE
BITROERRMN - TMEAEBRIRRERE
IR - o) - AREARFERIEMEE
ERBBEBERLERNER - BEEL
BRI K LR AR A6 ) o

PEERERMEEERAR
“ERC-FER

91



92

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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EMPLOYMENT AND COMMUNITY

OUR PEOPLE POLICY

Talents have long been recognised as one of the major competitive
strengths in finance industry, and China Fortune has continued its
investment to attract and retain talents. Our hiring, appraisal and
promotion policies are merit-based regardless of individual's gender-
orientation or racial background, and relevant processes are clear
and transparent.

The Group recognises its employees’ qualifications, experiences and
work performances by offering attractive remuneration packages. In
order to retain talents, remuneration packages are reviewed annually
and bonuses are paid each year to recognise employees’ hard work
throughout the year.

By the end of this reporting period, China Fortune has a total of
80 full time and 1 part time employees, and among them, 76 were
based in Hong Kong and 5 in mainland China. The ratio of female
and male employees as a percentage to total staff was 46% and 54%
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respectively, with an overall turnover rate of 18.6%. £18.6% °
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Management Team 2020
T ZEEREK

15%

51%

= Male B4
Female Z I

m Under 31 3154
41-45 41 2 455%

During the reporting year, the Group has not identified any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong
including but not limited to Employment Ordinance, Minimum Wage
Ordinance, Hong Kong Bill of Rights Ordinance, Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance and Race Discrimination Ordinance;
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance.

STAFF BENEFIT AND WELL-BEING

In addition to the statutory benefits, such as paid annual leave,
maternity leave, paid sick leave and marriage leave, the Group
continues to offer employees with causal Fridays, festival gifts,
training subsidy, qualification allowance, travel and overtime
allowance. Qualified members were also offered with housing
allowance under our Staff Residential Rental Subsidy program.
Various social activities for employees, such as gatherings and sport
activities, were organised regularly with themes on the importance of
health and well-being.

Acknowledging the relatively longer time spent in front of computers
as the reality of finance industry practitioners, the Group has provided
protective equipment and furniture, such as ergonomic chairs and
lightings, to help relieve body stiffness and eye stress. Regular breaks
during the day with desk-side stretch exercise have always been
encouraged. The management team will continue to seek feedback
from staff on the support needed from the Group so that the staff can
be more focused and well-motivated to deliver first-class service to
customers.

Employee Age Distribution
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The Group offers a variety of communications means with the staff,
for instance, weekly all-staff-meeting and management meeting.
In additional, Group Townhall Meeting is held regularly. All these
channels effectively cascade Group policies and principles
throughout the organisation.

The level of professionalism of our team is the building blocks
of China Fortune. We hold that principle and enable continued
professional training of staff as such that they will play to their strength
and deliver high-quality performance. The Group encourages staff to
participate external seminars and industrial events to keep abreast on
industry challenges and best practices, at the same time, the Group
offers internal trainings in areas of legal, compliance, business ethics
and other licensed regulated activities. The Group offers subsidies on
external training programs, license fee and qualification allowance

The Group also regularly conducts internal trainings relating to the
anti-money laundering (*AML”) procedure and counter-terrorist
financing (“CTF”) recent updates on relevant regulation and other
topics related to licensed regulated activities.

Due to social distance measures, most of the training courses were
postponed and only limited training courses were held. During the
Reporting Year, 33% of the employees of the Group participated in
the training. Categorised by gender, 24% of male employees out of
all male employees were trained, while 39% of female employees
out of all female employees were trained. Categorised by employee
category, 18% of management out of all management were trained,
while 38% of general staff out of all general staff were trained.
Average training hours of male employees were 9 hours, and that of
female employees were 19 hours. The average training hours of the
management were 4 hours, while that of the general staff were 24
hours.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Our business itself does not create significant direct impact on or
engagement with the community in neither environmental nor social
aspect. However, we believe that contribution to social causes
and development of local communities is part of our corporate
social responsibility. We welcome opportunities of sponsorship or
partnership for charity events, and organizing volunteer work to
support vulnerable groups in Hong Kong. In the early of COVID-19
pandemic, the Group donated 6,100 medical masks to non-profit
organizations.

ENVIRONMENT

Climate change is always a hot topic for discussion and it increases
both financial and physical risks of all the companies around the
world. Our primary responsibility is to reduce our greenhouse gas
("GHG”) emissions and by ensuring that our assets and operations
are prepared to withstand, or respond to, expected climate impacts.
In addition, the Group will continue to invest in and provide funds
to climate-friendly companies, which develop and innovate the
environmental-protection products and technologies.

Climate change leads to the increase of extreme weather events,
which disrupt the daily operations of the Group. The Group developed
emergency measures to response such events, as outlined in the
Staff Handbook, including procedures to approach typhoons and
black rainstorms.

Meanwhile, green education is the essential way to minimize the
emissions. We seek to educate our staff members to increase the
office environmental awareness. We advocate for lower the brightness
of the monitor screen and switch off the monitors during the lunch
hours.

The Group provides financial products and services to a wide range
of corporate clients and individual customers. For our staff to carry
out daily work, we rent office spaces which have been furnished with
office equipment. We use electricity, water and waste management
services provided by the leased premises. The only direct (scope
one) emission was generated by usage of company-owned vehicles.
There are times that certain executives travel to meet customers,
business partners and other stakeholders for business purposes,
resulting in petrol and jet oil consumption and indirect emissions of
GHG.
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During the reporting year, China Fortune has not identified any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that
would have a significant impact on the Group. The relevant laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance and the Waste Disposal Ordinance. No hazardous waste
as defined in the “1989 The Basel Convention on the Control of
Transboundary Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal”
was generated.

GHG EMISSIONS AND AIR EMISSIONS

In the reporting year, there were limited business travels due to social
distance measures caused by the pandemic, a total approximately
92.29 tones carbon dioxide equivalent (“tC0O2e”) of GHG emissions,
which was 50% lower than previous period. Table of resource
consumption, emissions and waste are produced below with details.
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GHG Emission Unit
BERBEHEN By
Scope 1 — Company vehicle tCOe

#HE1— RAAE

Scope 2 — Purchased electricity

M i EE

tCOe

#HE2—INEES Wi — SULHRE

B

Scope 3 — Print paper and business travel

tCOe
#E 3 — TR R HE Ik

M i EE

Total emission — Scope 1, 2 and 3

tCOe
gk E —®E1 - 2%3

M i EE

Emission Intensity tCO, e/head

HEEmE M-SR EE A
Notes:

1. GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent

and are based on, including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued
by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix
II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by HKEX, “Global
Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report
(AR5), and the 2019 Sustainability Report published by the HK Electric
Investments.
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52.36 73.70 65.99
21.87 89.15 102.77
92.29 184.56 188.34
1.14 2.15 2.00
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Although air emissions are not significant due to the Group’s business
nature, following measures have been taken to minimise the pollutants
emitted during our business operation:

o Choose the shortest route when vehicles are travelling between
the Group’s operating locations and destinations to reduce
consumption of fuel;

o Turn off engines for idling vehicles; and

o Conduct regular vehicle maintenance to ensure efficient use of
fuel.

The Group’s air emissions performance was as follows:

Air Emissions Unit
BERBER B
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) g
AEEY) (NOX) =)
Sulphur Oxides (S0O,) g
At ® (so,) 2
Particulate Matter (PM) g
STHLT (PM) =
SEWAGE DISCHARGE

As the Group does not consume a significant volume of water during
our daily operation, our business activities did not generate material
discharges into water during the Reporting Year. Moreover, both the
water supply and discharge are solely controlled by the building’s
management office, and so the provision of water withdrawal and
discharge data or sub-meter for individual occupant are not feasible.
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WASTE MANAGEMENT

The solid wastes generated by the Group are non-hazardous wastes,
including domestic garbage and recyclable wastes, for which the
Group has taken various measures to minimise the impact and
promote “green office” concept. In particular, the Group promotes
think before you print” attitude in order to encourage paperless office
by facilitating the use of electronic means for communication such as
intranet, email, internal workflow system. Relevant waste reduction
measures include:

° Digitalise the business operation to reduce printing and paper
copies;

o Encourage duplex printing and reusing any single-side printed
papers;

° Set up recycling bins to collect recyclable products, such as
papers and toner cartridges; and

° Encourage employees to reduce the use of one-off products.
During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total non-hazardous wastes

disposal was approximately 1.47 tonnes. The Group’s waste disposal
performance was as follows:
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Non-hazardous Waste Unit
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Office paper tonnes
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Consumption intensity tonnes/head
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

ENERGY CONSUMPTION

We encourage employees to establish energy-saving habits at office
and also implement rules to be more environmentally friendly, such
as maintaining indoor temperature at 25.5°C, using LED bulbs,
conducting regular maintenance to avoid unnecessary energy usage,
using energy-saving mode one electronic devices where possible,
etc.

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total energy consumption
was approximately 130,052.64 KWH, which was decreased by
approximately 24.05% from 2020.

Energy Consumption Unit
BEIRHFE B
Petrol KWH

i FEEF
Electricity KWH

g T LB
Total energy consumption KWH
RERERE TR
Total energy consumption intensity KWH/Head
HEELIRERT R FEREEA
Notes:

1. Actual petrol consumption was approximately 6,666 liters, 8,163.27

liters and 7,229.00 liters in 2020-21, 2019-20 and 2018-19 respectively.

RE - #HERERRE (KA)

ﬁb///%_ /é 2:%

BB REERENAEEHENTIE -
HITEBRRROBG WIJﬁquiW/mEf%#v
EBMEK255E « FALED B8 - TH%(E
NBREMTIVERAE [UEEREEE
AHNETFRES -

RAFEFE - AEEA @aa/ SHEE A A
13005264 F R M- -ZFF {4
24.05% °

2019-20 2018-19

—E-hEE B N\EZE

S —E-NF

64,602.64 79,113.13 70,058.83

65,450.00 92,124.00 83,537.00

130,052.64 171,237.13 153,595.83

1,605.59 1,991.13 1,634.00
BsE

1. RIZBTFEZ_FT_— T—NEF

EIEEFR T )\i;‘é_f NEF
MER S MEEED R4 A6,666AF -
8,163.27 AFt 1 7,229.00 AFt ©

TEERTREEBRAR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE #HERERHE (F)

WATER CONSUMPTION

The Group’s water consumption is minimal as it operates in office
premises of which both the water supply and discharge are solely
controlled by the building’s management office, and therefore the
provision of water withdrawal and discharge data or sub-meter for
individual occupant are not feasible. Yet, the Group promotes water
saving practices in the workplace by encouraging its employees
to reduce water use in order to raise the awareness on water
conservation, including:

o Conduct regular maintenance and repair of toilet flushing
system;

° Remind employees to turn off taps tightly after using to avoid
dripping of water;

° Use water-saving appliances in water facilities where possible;

o Notify relevant department if problems are found to avoid
wasting water resources; and

° Post water-saving reminders in pantry and toilets to remind
employees on water conservation.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021
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APPENDIX

CONTENT INDEX

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EFH -
—REERERE
BER

Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 : HRY
General Disclosure

—ARIE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RiE  HERERBRE (A)

B 8%

ABEES

Description

ik

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
Exhaust Gas and GHG emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

BERBRRREREHW  AKRIHHEES BFR

EEBRBYNELESM

(a) BX: &

(b) BTFHBETABEATENHEEEZZLRIINE
B} o

Section/Declaration

a- o1

Environment
IR

KPI A1.1 (comply or
explain)
BABERUERIR AL (1
BFRLEREE)

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BER A TERR S ARRE B A EE -

Environment — GHG Emissions
and Air Emissions, Waste
Management

RIE — RERERN R
W EEE IR

KPI A1.2 (comply or
explain)
BIRERIERAL.2(F
BT RLERRE)

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity.
BERBATNE (AMGE) RBE -

Environment — GHG Emissions
and Air Emissions

RIE — RERBHERREREE
ke

KPI A1.3 (comply or
explain)
RARE DR A1.3 (R
B TLARIE)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity.

PMEARERENEE ANE) REE -

Environment — Waste Management
RIE— BEWER

KPI A1.4 (comply or
explain)
RASRAERUEIRA1.4 (T
B TRLAREE)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and
intensity.

PREABREREENEE AHE) REE -

Environment — Waste Management
RIE— EWER

TRIEREREBARAR
“ERC-FER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—BREERERE
MiEE

KPI A1.5 (comply or
explain)
BIREDIEIRA1.E (D
BTRLARIE)

RE  -dHgRERHE (K)

Description
Rt

Description of reduction initiatives and results achieved.

WK PR B B i AT SRR -

Section/Declaration

2E B

Environment — GHG Emissions
and Air Emissions, Waste
Management

BIE — RERBHEM N ERE
- BEER

KPI' A1.6 (comply or
explain)
BABERUEIRA1.6 (1
BTRLEREE)

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HlEEEENEFTEEYN L  RIEELEENEG
KPT1GRCR -

Environment — Waste Management
R — BEYER

EEA2 : EREH
General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERER (BFEEIR - KEEMERME) BBEER -

Environment — Energy
Consumption, Water Consumption

KPI' A2.1 (comply or

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total

Environment — Energy Consumption

explain) and intensity. IRIR — BEIRERE
BREDUEZE A2 (T RS DM ERE L SEEEREEERTE -

BFRLEREE)

KPI' A2.2 (comply or Water consumption in total and intensity. Environment — Water Consumption
explain) BIFKERRE - IRIR — KRB
RARERURIRA2.2 (1

BFRLEREE)

KPI' A2.3 (comply or Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results | Environment — Energy Consumption
explain) achieved. IRIR — BEIRERE
FASRAERIEIR A2.3 (1 | H I gE IR A ke ot 8 R PTG AR ©

BFRLERRE)

KPI' A2.4 (comply or Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing  Environment — Water Consumption
explain) water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and | 383% — KR )HFE

RASRAE IEIZ A2.4 (N | results achieved.

BTHAEIE) i 3 SR B PR _E AT AE (R AR - BA 3R T oK s as

FHEINFTIEARR ©

KPI A2.5 (comply or
explain)

BB IR A2.5 (T
HBFRLERRE)

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and with reference to per unit produced.
SN mATABEMHNRE (UBETE) REBEESIE

=
= °

Not applicable to China Fortune’s
business

TEARTEERNER
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Annual Report 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—REERERE
MiEE

RE

Description
Rt

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BE A3 : RIERAAREIR

General Disclosure

—RARIEE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.

EBEIT AR RAREREREATENBR °

CHERERERSE (H)

Section/Declaration

BH B

China Fortune considers the
protection of the environment
being important for the well-
being of society and the next
generation, and its operation does
not have significant impact on
environment or involve significant
usage of natural resources.
PEEARAREREL TGN
T—RORUEHEE - HEE
WAESHIRRESEATENE
RAAXEBAREIR -

KPI A3.1 (comply or
explain)

BIRAERHEIR A3 (B
BT RLERRE)

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

R ESHRBERARAERNEAZE N EKRE
BEBTENTTE -

Not applicable to China Fortune’s
business

NERAR B E R R

Aspect B1: Employment

EEB1 : (B

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Information on:
(a)
(b)

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

AR RE  BELREA  TERE - REA - &
#e - ot - RIBRAREMAFS REF

(@) B &

(b) EBFHBETARE
o

TENBREIERAOINE

Employment and Community —
our people policy

BENEER — ATEEK

KPI B1.1
(recommended
disclosure)
RREMIEEB1.1 (2
AIKER)

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
and geographical region.

RIER - EEEE - FiRERN MR DNESEEH -

Employment and Community —
our people policy

BENEER — ATEEK

TRIEREREBARAR
“ERC-FER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—BREERERE
MiEE

KPIB1.2

R EMIEIRB1.2

RE  -dHgRERHE (K)

Description
Rt

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

IR FiARI KRB D EBRAE o

Section/Declaration

2E B

Employment and Community —
our people policy

BENEER — ATEE

BEB2: RERHEZE
General Disclosure
—fEEE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

ERRH L2 TIERERREREBEBEIETN

(a) B &

(b) BFHBETABEAZENHBERZLRIN

Employment and Community
—  Our people policy
—  Staff benefit and
well-being
Introduction — Special measures
to fight Covid-19
(ST
— AABUER
— BN RAEt

#EE - B 2019 BN m SRR
allbcyiic]

BHEB3 : BERE
General Disclosure

—RARIEE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BRERTEEB BT TIERE M MB N REERBUR - it
FIES -

Employment and Community
— Employee development and
training

BRENTER —EBBRNE

KPI B3.1
(recommended
disclosure)

R EMIEIEB3.1 (2
AIKER)

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

BURIREEEN (NeRERE HPREBES) 25
IXIMEEB DL ©

Employment and Community
— Employee development and
training

BENER — EBHR N

KPI B3.2
(recommended
disclosure)

RS RUEIR B3.2 (32
EIKER)

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

R MRERRE D - BREETRE I FIEE -

Employment and Community
— Employee development and
training

BRENRATE — BB RN

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RiE g EREREE (A)

Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General it =3:0 - 1]
Disclosures and KPIs

TEHR - EH -
—RIFERBEARE

BIER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EME B4 : & T#A|

General Disclosure Information on: Employment and Community —
—MRH R (a) the policies; and our people policy

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that | &8 & ttE — AABER
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

BRI E Tk Ta -

(a) BZE: &
(b) BTHBTAEEAZENHEBEIERLBRIDN

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
BEB5 : fEEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the | Sustainable Business Operations
—MRH R supply chain. — Supply Chain
EIRHEENRE Mt S RRBUR o AIRHE RS EE — B

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: Sustainable Business Operations
— R E (a) the policies; and Al BB

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

BRMREHREMMRBOHRRERZS  EE  RERL

BEE AR ER -

(@) BE: &k

(b) BFHBETABEAZENRHBEEZZLAND

Bkt

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints | Sustainable Business Operations
(recommended received and how they are dealt with. — Customer service
disclosure) BEBNERMRISHIRFEE A RELE A - AIFEESEE — BP RS
RS MUIEIR B6.2 (2
HIKER)

TRIEREREBARAR

B
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—BREERERE
MiEE

KPI B6.3
(recommended
disclosure)

RABAE MUIE1R B6.3 (32
EIKER)

BiR - HERERES (H)

Description
Rt

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

1 B R AR AR E R A RV IE A -

Section/Declaration

2E B

Sustainable Business Operations
— Responsible marketing

AREEGEE — BEEEH

KPI B6.5
(recommended
disclosure)

RSB BUEIR B6.5 (32
HRE)

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
fitOE & & ERRIE RALBEE - ARMBEERITRER
il

Sustainable Business Operations
— Customer privacy protection
and cyber security
AIEEGEE — BERPILEBR
EYSEER Vs

BEB7 : R&ES
General Disclosure
—fEI R

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRADIEFEER - $1R - BRFROARER

(a) BE: &
(b) BTFEHBETABEATZENHEBEZLRIN

Business Ethics and Practice

BEBERES

KPI B7.1
(recommended
disclosure)

R EMIEIRB7.1 (2
AIKEE)

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RAREREAHBTAIEESREW D EENES
FRARMNEE LFDRER -

Business Ethics and Practice

FRBENER

KPI B7.2
(recommended
disclosure)

BB RURIR B7.2 (32
HIRE)

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

fR Py S b M BRIRIR T - ARABRRITRER A

Business Ethics and Practice —
Whistleblowing system

BEBRERER — R

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RiE  HERERBRE (A)

Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General it =3:0 - 1]
Disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - E@m-
—REBEREARE
ot

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS8 : HEIRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the | Employment and Community —
—REIEE needs of the communities where the issuer operates | Community

and to ensure its activities take into consideration the {EfE kit — ttl&
communities’ interests.

BN E2ERBERESEMELETEMRREER
EEEE R RN AR -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental | Employment and Community —
(recommended concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Community

disclosure) EIEREE (IWHE  REEE B THEK - @#F X EEXEE — LR
RARAEIEIEB8.1 (3 b - BBF) -

HIRER)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus | Employment and Community —
(recommended area. Community

disclosure) EEFHBEFBAER (NS ERFRE) o B Rit@ — 4=
BABAERUEIR B8.2 (32

HIRE)

TRIEREREBARAR

B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBEHRES

a Grant Thornton
- H[E

To the members of China Fortune Financial Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Fortune Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to 251, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BURBEMKESE ()

BRRETEE

ARET FEERERMNERAE - AR
HAHRSRE W RENBARRBEENS
H o R EERERMBABRGEMBRE
RERKMEENERRKEE  MEMATE
UZEERERERBNER

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matters
HRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAPWETNAEEZEE

Expected credit losses on loan and trade receivables

BURERKEZ BN HAHEERHE

Refer to notes 2.17 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the key sources of estimation uncertainty in
note 4

BEFFEFRZM T 2.17 K 21 A R 15 4 1551 TR ZE 2 £ ZX)F

At at 31 March 2021, the Group’s loan and trade
receivables of approximately HK$152,284,000 net of

Our audit procedures to assess sufficiency and
appropriateness of expected credit loss allowances
expected credit losses of approximately HK$2,475,000
on aggregate.

included the following:

HAFHAEREEERRENT O EMEE TN ETIEF

RZEBE-_—F=A=1+—H  BSEEZEKEZK
B 5 EWBRIA) 152,284,000 7 T IR A H{E B &8
HEEEZ) 2 475,000 78 7T °

Assessing the expected credit losses of loan and trade
receivables requires the management’s judgement
and uses of estimates in determining the probability
of default occurring by considering the aging of
receivables, historical payment record and loss
experience, fair value of collaterals and forward-looking
information.

AEERKERLE SRBERENEESREFTEERE
JE HEr DA R AT - BB E BB W FIRRE - B
RS EERR  ERRORFEALELE
HETEERONAREMN -

BETHIRIA

inquired management regarding credit policies,
and evaluated the controls that management has
established to oversee and keep track of loan and
trade receivables.

AREEEAMEERR Y hTERERZLN
HRWE T E 5 FE W R FROE 1T BB A0 BR i &0 22
Bh o

tested on a sample basis, the values of collaterals
including pledged securities and properties of margin
financing accounts and mortgage loans respectively;
UHBREEAAFERERE MRBERNE R
WEE - BEERESNYE

reviewed and questioned on a sample basis, credit
profiles and reports of selected customers;

NS EEHEET PN EABREREETE
B K FR A

TEERERMEEERAR
B 55K
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BYZBEBRESE (H)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matters (Continued)
BRENSE ()

FEREETEIE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

EMWETTMAEEZER (8)

Expected credit losses on loan and trade receivables (Continued)

BHRERKEZRBUER 2 AMEEEHE (&)

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the key sources of estimation uncertainty in note 4 (Continued)

BRFFEEREN T 21 RITiE 41571 THEIEEZ F ZHR (&)

We identified expected credit losses of loan and trade
receivables as a key matter due to significant balances
and the extent of estimation involved.
ZRINERBEHRMAERT F MWEKRMEE - HFIH
EWRERRE ZFRBERNTEHREEEIRHETE R ER
EitEHE -

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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reviewed expected credit losses individually for the
rationale and indicators, and questioned the basis
leading to the loss; and
EEERIEMEEEBEENTEIRENEER  LHE
EERAEAELRER &

assessed the estimated future cash flows by
examining the historical repayment records, historical
loss rate of trade and loan receivables, information
regarding the current creditworthiness and any
significant changes in credit quality of the debtors,
and the adjustments to forward looking information.

FiRREBREERLTHE EBRERNEZERTH
EEEEX EBEABNEERGEEEREMERKN
SEEBAER LB MEES TGS RKE SR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

The Key Audit Matters (Continued)
ERESSBE ()

BYZHBMBES (&)

FEREETEIE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

RANFANMAEEZER ()

Revenue recognition of sponsor services income and recognition of contract assets and contract liabilities in

relation to sponsor services income arising from corporate finance services
REBARBVAZKRBEEAURECERMERBEEEZRBARBBAMBHNENEERSHEERR
Refer to notes 2.6 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the critical accounting judgement in note 4

BRRFE N TEIREZN T 2.6 R 22 L R}fit 4 BEX 251 AT

As set out in note 2.6 and 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, sponsor services income was recognised
over time during the course of the work performed by
the Group based on the input method with reference
to time incurred compared with the budgeted time
(“percentage of completion”).

kR G SRR 2.6 R4FTEL - (REBARRBEKA
EREBR AT R EEARERBERRE ([ERE
D) BE EREETITERER -

During the year ended 31 March 2021, included
in the income from corporate finance services of
approximately HK$38,207,000 is sponsor services
income of approximately HK$25,947,000.
REBE_Z-_—F=RA=1+T—HBLLFE REAR®
WA (Bt ARERERFVAL 38,207,000/87T) &
#]25,947 0007 T °

As set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2021, the Group’s contract
assets and contract liabilities in relation to the sponsor
services income arising from corporate finance
services amounted to approximately HK$519,000 and
approximately HK$380,000 respectively.

MR A M RARM 22 E R T =-—F=A
=+—HB H BRECEMERBELEZREAR
BRABBE 2 EHNEEREHNEEDRIRZ 519,000
7T % #9380,000/8 7T ©

Our procedures in connection with recognition of revenue

of sponsor services income, and the recognition of relevant

contract assets and contract liabilities in relation to sponsor

service incomes arising from the corporate finance services
included the following:

B BREARBWAZ Was R IA N B0 3R & RS 2 4
ZRBEARBEABRZENEERANARE - RIIPTA
TR BRETIIRIE

obtained an understanding of the Group’s
methodology for revenue recognition, including
evaluated management’s judgements on the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue
recognition from sponsor services income;

T BREZWSRERA L BETHEEER
IR B RE A BR 1S WA B W 25 & 58 K By T P4 L Y
I

obtained the project reports, on a sample basis, and
assessed their reasonableness of the percentage of
completion by comparing the actual time incurred
to the budgeted time, enquired the management
for reasonableness of the total budgeted time and
checked to relevant supporting evidences;
MEIREEERE  UEBANRES CHRERES
KETATIEMENEEHYMEREESHEE
ERNHAERGBUARER B FEBERTEES
bR

TEERERMEEERAR
B 55K
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BYBRBMKRESE (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continved) FEARETEIE o

The Key Audit Matters (Continued) How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

MRETEE (K EMWETTMAEEZER (8)

Revenue recognition of sponsor services income and recognition of contract assets and contract liabilities in
relation to sponsor services income arising from corporate finance services (Continued)
REABRBBRAZBEEZURECEBERBEE ZRBARBBRAMBHENEERGVAERR (&)
Refer to notes 2.6 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the critical accounting judgement in note 4 (Continued)

BRLIFETEHRZN T 2.6 R 22 U RHfit 4 EX @71 Ak ()

We identified the recognition of sponsor services —  recomputed all sponsor services income based on the
income, contract assets and contract liabilities in percentage of completion and checked the contract
relation to sponsor services income arising from sum to the respective sponsor mandates; and
corporate finance services as a key audit matter due to BIEZTKB D LEHTEMERBARBKEKA @ I
its significance to the consolidated financial statements. EHFACERERBFEANEGHNEE &k

BB ECERERBEEZRBARBEBATA L

REARBBA - GHNEEREHNBERRHF A — — checked to the supporting evidences for work
HARETEE  REDAHGEUBREAMEBE performed, the milestone billings and settlement of
Koo billings during the year and subsequent to the year

end, on a sample basis to determine whether contract
assets and contract liabilities are properly recognised.
RERNRFRERD TR IHE BRERREE
REMEREXHBBAEETANEERGHNEE

ELIRE R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2021 annual report
of the Company, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BYBRBMKRESE (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BYBRBMKRESE (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

29 June 2021

Lam Yau Hing
Practising Certificate No.: P06622
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REREEREMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2021 2020
—B=-—-F —E-TEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE FET FHT
Revenue WA 5,6 131,718 179,401
Net investment gains/(losses) BB (B8) F58 10 18,952 (13,384)
Cost of brokerage and other services 440 BREL A BR TS 2 PR AN (29,256) (21,057)
Other income Eablg A 7 9,155 8,317
Reversal of expected credit losses B EITEEMEEEE
(“ECL")/(ECL) on loan and trade ([FEHEERBE])
receivables, net FEWRE R R E 5 AR
<2 (EEEEEE) F88 8 7,120 (5,409)
Staff costs BT 10 (66,252) (89,742)
Other operating expenses Hibas &= 10 (55,799) (59,583)
Finance costs BhE R AR 9 (23,223) (58,326)
Share of losses of associates FE(RERE N ElEE (347) (2,363)
Share of losses of joint ventures EhEaE R alEE (5) (30)
Loss before tax R A 518 10 (7,937) (62,176)
Income tax expense Frisif X 11 (5,558) (9,638)
Loss for the year EEEEBE (13,495) (71,814)
Other comprehensive Hib2mEmBA (FAX)
income/(expense)
Items that may be reclassified fE1E A EFT TR B iR
subsequently to profit or loss: LA -
Exchange differences arising BREBINEBES:
on translation of foreign operations ZIEHZERE 6,581 (7,430)
Share of other comprehensive FEIGE A AR EMt 2
income/(expense) of associates WA, (Bs) 7,631 (4,903)
Share of other comprehensive ElAZ R REMEE
income/(expense) of joint ventures WA/ (%) 77 (65)
14,289 (12,398)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) &AXEE2EUK A~ (FI%)
for the year g 794 (84,212)
HK cents &1l HK cents 781l
(Restated)
(FE5)
Loss per share for loss attributable to 72 B #H A ELEE
owners of the Company ZEBREE
Basic AR 14 (1.47) (7.85)
Diluted e 14 (1.47) (7.85)

TREEREREBARAR
RO FER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R

As at 31 March 2021 R —FE - —4#=A=+—H

2021 2020
s —ECTE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BsE FET FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property and equipment LIEIE T 15 22,131 22,373
Goodwill S 16 3,994 3,994
Loan receivables FERER 21 31,107 3,448
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 17 6,978 6,978
Interests in associates REtE N R 2R 18 102,450 95,166
Interests in joint ventures RELERAz#EE 19 1,064 992
167,724 132,951
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BRHEYAEZRER
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (RAFEIA
BEkR) CeREE 20 101,230 222,173
Loan and trade receivables JEWERNE Z IR 21 121,177 353,618
Contract assets BRIEE 22 519 1,132
Other receivables, deposits HAa IR - Zek
and prepayments TERIR 23 27,534 27,159
Tax recoverable G EEE 5,991 —
Bank balances and cash — trust RITERNIRE — 558 24(a) 267,419 114,565
Bank balances and cash — general RITEBREIRE — —K 24(b) 263,850 315,132
787,720 1,033,779
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables, other payables B SR - HAibfE
and accruals RRIE R BT E A 25 293,910 333,679
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEIAEZRER
ZEBRE 20 420 —
Contract liabilities BHEE 22 380 110
Lease liabilities HEaFE 26 7,696 14,006
Loan payables ERER 27 161,318 252,600
Convertible bonds AR ES 28 21,604 61,937
Corporate bonds naElfES 29 78,955 43,064
Tax payable FEBTIIE 3,322 8,929
567,605 714,325
Net current assets REBEEFE 220,115 319,454
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBARE 387,839 452,405

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
mEMBRRE (F)

As at 31 March 2021 R—FE-——4#=HA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T F#ET T
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Lease liabilities HEEE 26 11,194 1,269
Convertible bonds AN ES 28 — 19,300
Corporate bonds NRIEH 29 52,337 108,322
63,531 128,891
Net assets EEFE 324,308 323,514
Capital and reserves EXR#iE
Share capital (&N 30 91,531 91,531
Reserves =] 232,777 231,983
Total equity RSB 324,308 323,514
XIE Zhichun ZHUYi
HREE KRB
Chairman Director
EY =

TREEREREBARAR

—E-—FEH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmEER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

T ARTREAEL
Convertible
i Share Share  Translation bond Special Capital Other  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserve reserve reserve losses equity
TaR
i RiEE ERGE E5RE ThEE BARE Bt ZitER ERiE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
(note 28)  (note 31(a)  (note 31(b))  (note 31(c))
(Witoe)  (W:31@)  (MEE310)  (HEE3i()

At 1 Apri 2019 K-F-hEMF-R 91531 689,003 (5.421) 71,982 1352 1863 (3440)  (451316) 407726
Loss for the year TEEER - = = = = = = (71814) (71814)
Other comprehensive expense FEEEMRERAY -

for the year:
Exchange differences arisingon ~ BEENEREL VRN ZE

translation of foreign operations — — (7.430) — — — — — (7.430)
Share of other comprehensive EEBERTEB IR

expense of associates — — (4,903) — — — — — (4903)
Share of other comprehensive EEAEANEMRERS

expense of joint ventures — — (65) — — — — - (65)

Total comprehensive expense REE2ERREE
for the year — — (12,398) — — — — (71.814) (84,212)

Lapse of conversion option at maturity ZIZ3E A RMEAR (K 28)

(note 28) - - - (52.829) - - = 52823 =
At31 March 2020 RoB-TE=f=1-H 91531 689,003 (17819) 19,159 13524 1863 (3440)  (470307) 323514
At 1 April 2020 R=Z-Z4WA-A 91,531 689,003 (17,819) 19,159 13524 1863 (3,440 (470,307) 323514

Loss for the year TEEER - - - - = = = (13,495) (13,495)

Other comprehensive income FREFEMRENA -

for the year:
Exchange diferences arsingon ~~ AEBNEBELVEREE

translation of foreign operations — — 6,581 — - — — 6,581
Share of other comprehensive EEBEADEBIERA

income of associates — — 7631 — — - — - 7631
Share of other comprefensive EhEERALB2ERA

income of joint ventures — — m — — — — - m

Total comprehensive income FEERENAEE
for the year — — 14,289 — - — (13,495) 79

Lapse of conversion option at maturity ZIZ38 R (Mt 28)

(note 28) - - - (13.999) - - - 13998 -
At 31 March 2021 R-F--%=f=1-A 91,531 689,003 (3,530) 5,161 13,524 1,863 (3,440) (469,804) 324,308
China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —EFF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B sE FE T FAET
(Restated)
(FEE5)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Loss before tax B ATEE (7,937) (62,176)
Adjustments for: EPRHEANT&IE -
Bad debt written off on trade B 2 EWERK
receivables 2 MsHIE AR 10 1,650 600
Depreciation of property MEREETE
and equipment 15 6,403 10,406
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 15,584 18,904
Dividend income g S A (191) (1,151)
Finance costs BB 9 23,223 58,326
Loss on disposal/written off of HE M KR
property and equipment ki 1,186 2
Interest income FBUA (579) (4,143)
(Reversal of ECL)/ECL on loan and (B RIEREEEE)
trade receivables, net /S ERER K
B SRR
HEEE BRI 8 (7,120) 5,409
Net investment (gains)/losses ®E (W) EBEFE 10 (18,952) 13,384
Share of losses of associates FEAR B & R AR R 347 2,363
Share of losses of joint ventures EhaE R aEE 5 30
Operating cash flow before BEESEHI LY
movements in working capital ReERE 13,619 41,954
Decrease in other non-current assets HEMIERBEER D — 126
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets AT EFI AR Z S8
at FVTPL BEmMmLD, 7 (8M) 135,540 (114,269)
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables  EWEFF A, (3E0) 188,886 (47,187)
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 R FR 21,366 44,049
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets A& ERD (38MN) 613 (1,132)
(Increase)/decrease in other HEMEWREIE - ek
receivables, deposits EfERIE (Ggm) R
and prepayments (375) 64,388
(Increase)/decrease in bank balances  R{T4&8MIEE — 125
and cash — trust () (152,854) 417,003
Decrease in trade payables, B Z RN - EAEN
other payables and accruals FIERETERRL (39,769) (423,829)
Increase in financial liabilities at FVTPL A FEIIABZRE 2 /b
BIEEN 4,775 —
Increase in contract liabilities AHEEEM 270 110
Cash generated from/(used in) RS, (FTHR)
operation bk 172,071 (18,787)
Dividend income received BUAE B U A 191 1,151
Income tax refunded BEiREIFTEHR — 4,890
Income tax paid =ENIZIEEE (17,156) (1,436)
NET CASH GENERATED BEERRSE ()
FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING HEEEE
ACTIVITIES 155,106 (14,182)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
GmERERER (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2021 2020
—B-—-F —ETF
— Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
liEss FET FAT
(Restated)
(ggE5))
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Interest received BUF B 579 4,143
Purchases of property and equipment  BE A% & &4 15 (4,858) (25)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED RETE (FTA) e
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES HeF8 (4,279) 4,118
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEES
Redemption of convertible bonds B[Ol &S 28 (63,600) (12,422)
Repayment of loans BEER (748,251) (778,545)
Repayment of corporate bonds BEARES (32,810) (10,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (14,458) (18,487)
Proceeds from issue of corporate bond  E7TA RlfEZH 2 FT{S5K1A 10,000 —
Proceeds from loans B ZPTSF0R 657,469 930,180
Interests paid ERFE (17,040) (21,855)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED mMETE (FTA) g
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BHEFE (208,690) 88,871
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%fﬁwz
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WD) /B nEEE (57,863) 78,807
Effect of foreign currency translation ﬁl\eﬂﬁﬁ‘lﬁizgﬁr‘ 6,581 (7,430)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUOZRERBESEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 315,132 243,755
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAERBESZEY,
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances HRIRTTAERR
and cash — general Be ——M 24(b) 263,850 315,132
122 China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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1.

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in securities and insurance brokerage,
asset management, corporate finance, margin financing and
money lending services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. Figures are rounded up to the nearest thousand
unless otherwise specified.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021 were approved by the board of directors on 29
June 2021.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new and amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for the financial
instruments classified as at FVTPL and fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), which are stated
at fair values. The measurement bases are fully described
in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgment of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power over the entity, only substantive rights
relating to the entity (held by the Group and others) are
considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of intra-
group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in
a disposal group. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the reporting date. All dividends whether
received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition
profits are recognised in the Company'’s profit or loss.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021

2. FESTTEE @

HAKEREH —BHBARZ
ZHl#E - AIHEEBRIATSIMIEA
ZEBAE ()RR EZRF
BREFRERD R EZ AN
R(NMBARZEE (BREEE)
K BB R R IR A i 28 2 SE A
AREME °

BRI PNCIDEESS (el T N
HEAR - BRIAQR OB
MRT - KB AR AT
MREEBEIR - KATBRER
BEEBIGAMRA -

Y /B8 X BB A R AR R IR R
= B HE W R R R B R BT
R o NPT U B2 AR E B
KOV BT S IB RS F
2R BN A R R BB T E



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control of those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions relating
about relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost
and subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate or joint
venture recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed
and equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any
costs directly attributable to the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the determination of the Group’s share of
the associate or joint venture’s profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the
associate or joint venture is carried at cost and adjusted
for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the associate or joint venture’s net assets less any
identified impairment loss, unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). The profit or loss for the year includes
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associate or joint venture for the year, including
any impairment loss on the investment in associate or
joint venture recognised for the year. The Group’s other
comprehensive income for the year includes its share
of the associate or joint venture’s other comprehensive
income for the year.

Where the associate or joint venture uses accounting
policies other than those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances, adjustments are
made, where necessary, to conform the associate or joint
venture’s accounting policies to those of the Group when
the associate or joint venture’s financial statements are
used by the Group in applying the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate or a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or
joint venture, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate
or joint venture is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or joint venture.

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment in
its associates or joint venture. At each reporting date, the
Group determines whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in associate or joint venture is impaired.
If such indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) of the associate or joint venture and
its carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate or joint venture, including
cash flows arising from the operations of the associate or
joint venture and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the
investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &2 =% = —

FZA=+—AIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.3 ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

2.4

(Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the
date when it ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses, unless classified as held for
sale or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale.

GOODWILL

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising on acquisition of investment in an
associate or a joint venture is set out in note 2.3.

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised
as an asset at the date that control is acquired (the
acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as the excess
of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBBRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.4

2.5

GOODWILL (Continued)

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
(“CGUs”) and is tested annually for impairment (note 2.20).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued, after deducting any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental cost
directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.6 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue arises mainly from the commission income for
securities and insurance brokerage, advisory services
for asset management, corporate finance and interest
income for money lending, margin financing and asset
management.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group
follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied.

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services
to its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

The Group provides securities dealing and brokerage,
placing and underwriting services. Commission income
from securities dealing and brokerage, placing and
underwriting services are recognised at a point in time on
the execution date of the trades at a certain percentage
of the transaction value of the trades executed and the
relevant placing and underwriting are completed.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

The Group provides advisory services for asset
management and corporate finance services which
included advisory services and sponsor services.
Depending on the nature of the services and the contract
terms, the revenue for advisory service is recognised over
time based on the services transferred to customer up to
date if one of the following criteria is met:

—  The customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefit provided by the Group;

— The Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customers control as the asset is
created and enhanced; or

— The Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use and the Group has a right to
payment at an amount that reasonably compensates
it for its performance completed to date at all times
throughout the contract.

Otherwise, the revenue for advisory service is recognised
in time when the service is completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group treats all sponsor services promised in
the contract as a single performance obligation. In
determining the timing of satisfaction of the performance
obligation, the Group examines its services on contract
basis and considers that it has a right to payment at an
amount that reasonably compensates it for its performance
completed to date at all times throughout the contract.

Sponsor services are recognised over time during the
course of the work performed by the Group, using the
input method, i.e. the time incurred compared with the
time budget, which depict the Group’s performance
towards satisfying the performance obligation.

The Group provides services for money lending and
margin financing and invests in debt securities under asset
management business. Interest income is recognised
on a time proportion basis by using the effective interest
method.

The Group provided consultancy services to customers.
The customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefit provided by the Group, hence the revenue is
recognised over time based on the services transferred to
customers up to date.

The Group also provided insurance brokerage.
Commission income for insurance brokerage is recognised
at a point in time on execution date of the insurance
contracts executed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as
‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right
to use an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this
definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets
three key evaluations which are whether:

o the contract contains an identified asset, which is
either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is
made available to the Group;

° the Group has the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its
rights within the defined scope of the contract; and

o the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how
and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout
the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease and non-lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the consolidated
statement of financial position. The right-of-use asset
is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs
incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset at the end of
the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of
the lease commencement date (net of any lease incentives
received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-use
asset for impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable payments based on an index or rate,
and amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be
reduced for lease payments made and increased for
interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured to
reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit or
loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

For any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16 “Lease”, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were not a
lease modification.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising
a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 — & —

— = A=A

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.7

2.8

LEASES (Continued)

(Continued)

On the consolidated statement of financial position,
right-of-use assets have been included in property and
equipment.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange rates
at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into Hong
Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the reporting
date. Income and expenses have been converted into
the Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates, or at the average rates over the
reporting period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBmRME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.8

2.9

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the accumulated exchange
differences in respect of that operation attributable to the
Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed to non-
controlling interests are derecognised, but they are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit plans under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RENBHRME (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESFBE »

(Continued)

2.10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 210 1EE 57 ()

(Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiary are required
to contribute certain percentages of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which
they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All
changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised
as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as
other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable
income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the average tax rates that are expected to apply to
the taxable income of the periods in which the temporary
differences are expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an
estimation of (i) when the existing temporary differences
will reverse and (ii) the amount of future taxable profit in
those years. The estimate of future taxable profit includes:

— income or loss excluding reversals of temporary
differences; and

— reversals of existing temporary differences.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.11 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES

(Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.

2.12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment (other than cost of right-of-use
assets as described in note 2.7) are initially recognised at
acquisition cost. They are subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Depreciation on property and equipment is provided to
write off the cost less their residual values, if any, over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements Shorter of remaining
lease term or expected

useful life of 3 years

Furniture and fixtures 25% per annum

Office equipment 25% per annum

Motor vehicles 25% per annum

Right-of-use assets Remaining lease term
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

2. FESTTEE @

MENREZITENEER G
AHAME A R ER A A0 T 4 R B
8 LA SH B AS B R BR B B (10
) :

MEVREE SR IHAEHK
3F A
A {55 A A1
ZBEE
CRUVSEE RS BE25%
MDERE B 25%
- FF25%
fEFREAE BTHEH

BEZKHEE WEERE
FREMNZHE R HETR &
REERELHE -

WEES L ETEL 2 WSk E R
BHEMSHIAREEE CRHEE
ZEFEETE - WNBEARER o

BEXAFTABERAEINE
ERERAS—HERNEE - AR
R BB Z A B AR 2 KRR
Mz A A Be SR AN R B AT A Kk
THBKARBER] SERTH - FTBEA
A (AN 1E KRB RAR) RE
ERFRA 2 BRI B RS
B o

TEERERMEEERAR
B 55K

145



146

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.13 CLUB MEMBERSHIP

The club membership are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

2.14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN

GOODWILL)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets, with indefinite useful lives, are tested for
impairment as described below in note 2.20.

2.15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank —
general and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of bank balances and cash as defined
in note 24.

Deposits with banks or other financial institutions with a
maturity of more than three months and within one year at
acquisition are classified as short-term deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RENBHRME (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESFBE »

(Continued)

2.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 216 AT A

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component and are measured at
the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15, the
Group’s financial assets are initially measured at fair value,
in case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The Group’s financial assets are classified into at
amortised cost or FVTPL or FVOCI. The classification
is determined by both, the entity’s business model for
managing the financial asset and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All income and expenses relating to financial assets those
are recognised in profit or loss are presented within other
income and finance costs, except for ECL of loan and
trade receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost which are presented as separate line item
in the profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect
its contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
from these financial assets are included in profit or loss.
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting
is immaterial. The Group’s bank balances and cash —
trust and general, loan and trade receivables and other
receivables and deposits fall into this category of financial
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBBRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets those are held within a different business
model other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect and
sell” are categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of
business model, financial assets whose contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are
accounted for at FVTPL. All derivative financial instrument
fall into this category.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment, the
Group elects to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in “Fair value reserve — non-recycling” in

equity.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Dividends are
included in revenue line item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, loan payables, lease
liabilities, corporate bonds, convertible bonds and
financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially
measured at fair value, and where applicable, adjusted for
transaction costs unless the Group designated a financial
liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, except for derivatives which
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships, which are carried subsequently at fair value
with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges reported in profit or loss are
included in finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note
2.7.

Borrowings (including loan payables and corporate
bonds)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RENBHRME (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESFBE »

(Continued)

2.16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 216 @ T A (&)

(Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds those can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at the time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group which contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified
separately into respective liability and equity components
on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bond and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the call option for conversion of
the bond into equity, is included in equity as convertible
bond reserves.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The equity component will remain in equity until conversion
or redemption of the bond.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

When the bond is converted, the equity component of
convertible bond and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the convertible
bond reserves are released directly to accumulated
losses.

Trade payables and other payables and accruals

They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

They represent derivative financial instruments and are
recognised at fair value at the end of each reporting
period with gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-
looking information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans and other
debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost
and trade receivables and contract assets recognised and
measured under HKFRS 15.

The Group considers a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past
events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable
forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the
future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is
made between:

— financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”) and

— financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
and whose credit risk is not low (“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category
while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2
category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life
of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

For trade receivables (excluded margin financing), the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL
and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date. These are the expected shortfalls
in contractual cash flows, considering the potential
for default at any point during the life of the financial
assets. In calculating the ECL, the Group established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience and external indicators, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables (excluded margin
financing) and contract assets have been grouped based
on the days past due. The contract assets relate to
unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the ECL rates for trade receivables (excluded margin
financing) are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.

The Group measures the loss allowance on other financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including regulatory
deposits, loan receivables, margin financing receivables,
other receivables and deposits and bank balances —
trust and general) equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of
default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESFBE »

(Continued)

2.17 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 2.17 L EBIE (&

(Continued)

(Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial assets at the
reporting date with the risk of default occurring on the
financial assets at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions those are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &2 =% = —

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

F=H="+—HILFE

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the end of each reporting period.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if it
has a low risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual
cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when contractual payment
are 90 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate. In certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset is
default when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collateral held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RENBHMRME (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESFBE »

(Continued)

2.17 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 217 ZAEERE %)

(Continued)

(Continued)

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost are set out in note 34(b).

2.18 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognizes
revenue (see note 2.6) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.17
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 2.16).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 2.6). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognizes
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.16).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.20 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

[OTHER THAN CONTRACT ASSETS]

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:
° Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary;

° Property and equipment (including right-of-use
assets);

° Other intangible assets;
o Club membership; and

° The Company’s interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they are impaired. All other assets
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e., a CGU). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those CGUs that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purpose and not be larger than
an operating segment.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which goodwill
has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or
value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RENBHMRME (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESFBE »

(Continued)

2.20 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 20 F2HEE (8HEE

[OTHER THAN CONTRACT ASSETS]

(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

2.21 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income is presented in
gross under “Other income” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.22 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.23 RELATED PARTIES

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

(iii)y  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2 — & ——

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.23 RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

3. NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

AMENDED HKFRSs THAT ARE EFFECTIVE FOR
ANNUAL PERIODS BEGINNING FROM 1 APRIL
2020

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning from 1 April 2020.

° Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material

° Amendment to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Except for the amendment to the HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions”, the Group has not applied any
new standard, amendments or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current year. Except for the impacts of early
adoption of amendment to the HKFRS 16 as discussed below,
the application of the above amended HKFRSs has no material
impact on the amounts reported and/or disclosures set out in
this annual report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

3. NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs (continvesy 3. ¥15] R BT 2 BB
HamEEH =

AMENDED HKFRSs THAT ARE EFFECTIVE FOR R-ZE_FFIH— AR
ANNUAL PERIODS BEGINNING FROM 1 APRIL Z F R L A IS 5] &
2020 (continued) BRI EER (#)

The amendment to HKFRS 16 which provides a practical BBV BHREERE165E (BRI A)
expedient that allows lessees not to assess whether particular RE—IBAIITEE A - AFFAEA
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the THHERFEERFSHARIEERE
COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and, instead, EYNEEHeEERETEREER
account for those rent concessions as if they were not lease X MEKZEHEHSEEARIEIKE
modifications. The Group has elected to apply the practical HEBN AEBEDEEHAEEN
expedient to all qualified COVID-19-related rent concessions KEEFTA & 18 B ik 7R = i &
granted to the Group during the year. Consequently, rent — A EERERIITRES A
concessions received have been recognised in the profit or At - WEIWBEESEBBERAFE (5
loss in the year in which the event or condition that trigger BZENRBE 2 SHIGH) Bk
those payments occurred (note 15). There is no impact on the PR (HEE15) - ZEFHR=Z=
balances of equity at 1 April 2020. THEMA-—BEREHRPIELE -
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs E M8 iE e K L34 2 & B R

& ZER

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial R EHREMBRER 2 EEAER
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been B AFHI KBTI ENBHRE
published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted ERLEFBEEMARER - BREAR
early by the Group. SEREFERA -

. HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related . BAENBREES RREORAE

amendments® FATH CHES
o Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework? o BAUMBEREER BLSERSIAS
F3% (BTK)

TEERTREEBRAR

B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

3. NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs (continueq)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

(Continued)

. Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

. Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

. Amendment to HKFRS 16

. Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

. Amendments to HKAS 1

. Amendments to HKAS 8

. Amendments to HKAS 12
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Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions

beyond 30 June 2021

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Income Taxes — Recognition exemption®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs (continueq)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

(Continued)

. Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use?

. Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

. Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS
2018-2020°

J Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised) ~ Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combination®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
= Effective date not yet determined

J Effective for business combination/common control combination

for which the acquisition/combination date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2022

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

The Directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will
be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first
annual period beginning on or after the effective date of the
pronouncement. The Directors expected that the adoption
of these new and amended HKFRSs will not have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
reported and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

JUDGEMENTS MADE IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue from sponsor services is recognised over time
by reference to the progress of satisfying the performance
obligation at the reporting date. This is measured based on
the time incurred compared with the time budget, which depict
the Group’s performance towards satisfying the performance
obligation. Significant estimates and judgements are required
in determining the accuracy of the time incurred and the extent
of the time budget. In making the above estimation, the Group
conducts periodic review on the time incurred and make
reference to past experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4 BEXE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION B BA
U NCERTA' NTY (Continued)

e

FIE R AT
2 ZEERF @)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 145 T BB =2 £ B HK)R
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future TIHRRBEFERBARRZEE
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the R REMMAEETTAREZRC EER
reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material B BB T —UMBRFEANEER
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities BEFRAEANRBAZ 2 ENRR

within the next financial year.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation ErEmERTRERAGTEES KD
of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been BrASELBN 2 EREE -T2
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group REER  ~&EEERFREELE
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the UTEEFTEA 2 R KRR EMEBUREE
CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the BRIRE - DIFrEHE - WEBRRKRRE
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less MEERTER - AR EEAENREE
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at B2 —F=A=+—8 " ?ﬁﬁ
31 March 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill is approximately 2 BREE#) /3,994,000 7T (— 2
HK$3,994,000 (2020: HK$3,994,000). No impairment loss has T4F : 3,994,000787T) e A= —¢
been recognised as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. Details of the RZF-_TF=A=+—H " @Eﬂﬁ

impairment testing on goodwill are set out in note 16. REEE - BEREARCFS %@E’QW
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, the Group makes allowances on items subjects
to ECL (including loan and trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits and contract assets) based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period as set
out in note 2.17. As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate carrying
amounts of loan and trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits and contract assets amounted to approximately
HK$152,284,000 (net of ECL allowance and bad debt written off
of approximately HK$2,475,000 and HK$ 1,650,000 respectively)
(2020: approximately HK$357,066,000 (net of ECL allowance
and bad debt written off of approximately HK$9,595,000 and
HK$600,000 respectively)), approximately HK$26,344,000 (net
of ECL allowance of nil) (2020: approximately HK$26,758,000
(net of ECL allowance of nil)), and approximately HK$519,000
(net of ECL allowance of nil) (2020: HK$1,132,000 (net of ECL
allowance of nil)), respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2 — & ——

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
U NCERTA' NTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other items within the scope of ECL under
HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in which such estimate
has been changed.

The Group determines whether the interests in associates
are impaired required an estimation of the future cash flows
expected to arise and the expected dividend yield from the
associates in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount
of interests in associates is approximately HK$102,450,000
(2020:HK$95,166,000) and no impairment loss has been
recognised (2020: nil).

The Group determines whether the interests in joint ventures
are impaired required an estimation of the future cash flows
expected to arise and the expected dividend yield from the
joint ventures in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of
interests in joint ventures is approximately HK$1,064,000 (2020:
HK$992,000). No impairment was recognised during the year
ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil).
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5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable
for services provided in the normal course of business. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March

2021 and 2020 is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERMTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

A

WA B A IE % 5 55 18 A2 7 AT 52 (AR 7%
2 WHR N MR IR 2 AR - AR E

HE_ZTZ-_—%FK

—E-_FTF=H

=t HLEFERAZOWET

2020

—EB-—%F —E T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Dividend income & B A 191 1,151
Income from securities brokerage B H 4D ERK 2 WA

business 46,464 57,056
Interest income from money lending & 27 2 F| 2 A

business 31,354 40,702
Income from insurance brokerage RERESACETS 2 WA

business 1,385 2,260
Income from asset management ~ BEBIEESZUA

business 9,748 18,570

Margin interest income from BARILETE 2 FFREF B

securities brokerage business 4,369 7,705
Service income from corporate ERE 2 RFBUA

finance 38,207 51,957

131,718 179,401
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. R EVE N U E (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

5.

The Group derives revenue from the services over time and at a

point in time in the following table.

WA @)

AREBREEBAMNE -—BREBELN
RAEWAIITE ©

2021 2020
—B=-—F —T_FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
(Restated)
(FEE5)
Revenue from contracts with RERRHETNRE TP E L2 WA
customers by timing
of recognition
Overtime: FERFIET -
Service income from corporate ERE TSR A
finance 32,093 44 014
Income from asset management ~ EEEEEEHTERA
business 4,874 5,425
At a point in time: RE—HFETE -
Service income from ERE 2 R A
corporate finance 6,114 7,943
Income from securities brokerage — FEH A4 ETEFTSA
business 46,464 57,056
Income from insurance brokerage RERAS4C E TS FTSIA
business 1,385 2,260
Revenue from contracts with FAT P B 75 S 5 242 R
customers within the scope F15REBE RN
of HKFRS 15 KEEFALDZWA 90,930 116,698
Other information: HibER
Dividend income g BHA 191 1,151
Interest income from asset BEEEEBAEHNSWA
management business 4,874 13,145
Interest income from money EFTEFTE A EWA
lending business 31,354 40,702
Margin interest income from BARILETB PSRN BWA
securities brokerage business 4,369 7,705
131,718 179,401

EER SR EEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

5. REVENUE (continueq)

The unsatisfied performance obligations are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance is focus on the type of
services provided. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1)  The securities brokerage and margin financing segment
engages in securities brokerage and margin financing in
Hong Kong;

2)  The corporate finance segment engages in the provision
of corporate finance services;

3) The money lending segment engages in the provision of
money lending services in Hong Kong;

4)  The consultancy and insurance brokerage segment
engages in the provision of consultancy service and
insurance brokerage in Hong Kong; and

5) The asset management segment engages in the
provision of asset management and advisory services to
professional investors and the management of financial
investments.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021

WA @)

RERBOEERH—FRIUT -
I BB R AR 5 AR
PEERSRERA N2 HBER
T AR -

7 EER

RERDEMFEDBREMNE - @
Exg (AXBLERRAN) EHRE
BT EFRATRERS < 85 - RE
EARBZAHREDEE  ETRLE
IRRAFTHEE 2 RBE 7D BRI #4755
BE o

BEEME  AREREZEVBERS
R 8 Z AT E M EE D HRIAT

1) BFELEMFRBESH  RNE
BRERFELLFRRE

2) TERmENSH RELERE
AR

3) MESHB REBREMER
7%

4) ERRRRELOH  REBR
BRI RIS KRR L IRTS © I

5) BEBENHE WEMFEXKE
EFRHEEETE LA ARE AR
TRNEERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

AZREW] L
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEREH @)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the LB ER 2 FETBUR B E 2 AT AR
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note SEGTBEMER - DEEEER
2. Segment results represent the results from each segment BEEDE2¥E  MEE SR RTIT
without allocation of central administration expenses, directors’ BHX - EFHFMEE TEMEEK
remunerations, and other operating income. This is the measure Ao b hmEZELERKARSE AE
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes TERIPERRRFA G ZEERE -
of resources allocation and performance assessment. Inter- DEEWATIIZIRI T B E -
segment revenue are charged at prevailing market prices.
Information regarding the above segments is reported below. AL 2ERZ2HRAT o
- R
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS TESA R FEAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results AEEZAREREEDEBE5 2K
by reportable and operating segments. AREESITIAT o
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE-_Z_-_—F=A=+—HLEFE
Securities Consultancy
brokerage and
andmargin ~ Corporate Money insurance Asset Inter-segment
financing finance lending  brokerage management  Unallocated elimination  Consolidated
BEEER BRR
FREE  LERE HE  RREL  EEER B HHEHY Ba
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TR Tin ThR TER TR Thn ThR
Revenue WA 50,869 38,207 31,354 1,385 9,852 51 - 131,118
Inter-segment revenue AHEEA 145 - - 102 - - (247) -
Net investment gains RElwRE 5,702 - - - 13250 - - 18952
Total &3t 56,716 38,207 31,354 1,487 23,102 51 (247) 150,670
Finance costs BERA (253 — (500) - @m) M (B
Oers 14 (R54) (e @0) (%) (MY (MBS (4SH  (1%503)
Segment resuls HoEE 11,635 319 14,263 (206) 956 (34552) - (7585)
Share of losses of assocates EIEREATRE (347)
Share of losses of oint venfures ElLAELTER (8)
Loss before tax Rt (7987)
Income tax expense FHRR (5,558)
Loss for he year KERER (13,495)

HEE% S M EEARAR
—E-—FERH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

PaNkyi P21\ Sy
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 6. DEREH @)
w3 Wz g
R SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued) DEEUA R FAE ()
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE-Z-ZF=-A=+—-HLEFE
Securities Consultancy
brokerage and
andmargn -~ Corporate Money ~ insurance Asset Inter-segment
financing finance lending  brokerage  management  Unallocated  elimination  Consolidated
EHER ERR
it S HE RREE  EEER AR HEREH #a
HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TR Tin Thn Th Tin Tin Thn Th
Revenue WA 64,944 51957 40,702 2,260 195538 - — 179,401
Inter-segment revenue AHERA (7313) = = 133 513 = 6,667 =
Net investment losses REEETE (3952) (345) = = (9,087) = = (13384)
Total 3 53679 51612 40,702 2,393 10,964 — 6,667 166,017
Finance costs BANA (26) = = = (2.201) (56,099) = (58.326)
Others i (%5) (50484 (3393) @75 (18743 (#8%7) 6667 (167.474)
Segment resuls A 17,108 1128 37309 (312) (%0 (10503%) - (7))
Share of losses of associates ElBeLnER (2.363)
Share of losses of oint ventures ElLAELTER (30)
Loss before ax RitnEE (62176)
Income tax expense HiEHER (9,638)
Loss for the year KEEER (71,814)
176 China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continveq) 6. DEER =)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DESEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities AEFEZBRERCED RS2 &

by reportable and operating segments:

ERBBEINWAT :

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Segment assets DEEE
Securities brokerage and margin =~ FH& L MFTRERE
financing 389,324 250,805
Corporate finance TERE 45,061 47,783
Money lending wE 102,685 289,948
Consultancy and insurance AR RARBR AL
brokerage 1,837 720
Asset management BEEHE 122,098 309,841
Total segment assets DEEELE 661,005 899,097
Unallocated Ao 294,439 267,633
Consolidated assets REEE 955,444 1,166,730
Segment liabilities DEEE
Securities brokerage and margin =~ BH& L MFFREEE
financing 272,437 115,588
Corporate finance TERME 15,107 12,841
Money lending & 2,640 4,996
Consultancy and insurance EEPE R
brokerage 466 149
Asset management BEERE 5,412 884
Total segment liabilities HEBEEE 296,062 134,458
Unallocated Aol 335,074 708,758
Consolidated liabilities RERE 631,136 843,216

TREEREREBARAR
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
certain property and equipment for general operations,
other non-current assets (excluded financial assets at
FVOCI), interests in associates and joint ventures, certain
other receivables, deposits and prepayments and certain
bank balances and cash — general; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain other payables and accruals, lease liabilities,

liability component of convertible bonds, corporate bonds,

loan and tax payable.

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERMTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

DEER )
DEEEREE &)

LEEE D BRR KD E D #REE IR
BHmME :

e KBRET RELMELRME-
HERBEE (TEERAF
BIAREMEEREZERE
E) RBERRRAERRZ
s AT HMEWRR  2E
R IANFIRA KB TRITER N
RBe — —RIN IBEEED

E&2nE &

e KBETHMENFEREFE
A-HERE  JBRBRESZA
B#n ~ REES - R RER
MIEIN PIBRBEDEERLS

HE -

Bt sbE#)

Consultancy and
insurance
brokerage Asset management Unallocated Consolidated
ERRRRES 3] AR 58
2021 021 20 2021 22 2021 22

k- Jnl

HKS'000.
T

Sy -7-a: [N

e

ZRC-F 50 o5

HKS000 JAEIUR  HKS000 EYSYVON  HKS'000 [y
it Tin A TR R TR

ot Ja:3

Securities
brokerage and
margin financing Corporate finance Money lending
BHERRTERE bERE il
2021 20 201 20
“E-f - e 230-f i
HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 S0
T 1A TE7
Amounts ncluded i the measure of REABEEAATERR
seqment st or segment assels: PAZRE:
Addiions to non-current assets FEERRE
(exclude financia assets) (FofEsmEE) - 9 - = - =
Bad debtwiten offon trade recevatles  BABMERIHEZE - = 1,650 60 - =
Depreciation on propery and equipment ~ $IERAERE 89 9 9 9 - =
Depreciaon on right-of-use assels [pREEESE - - - - - -
(Reversalof ECLY e
ECL on rade receivables, net EARIES (054) 5409 - = - =

BHEEEREE
ECL on loan eceivables i
Loss on disposal of property
and equipment

LENETBIER

- ) TR Y W nm T
- - - - BT 0
- - L85 030 68 1046
- w M8 BT BB B B
- - - - — s 54w
- - - - - -

- - - 1,186 - 1,186 2

The amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision

maker but not included in the measure of segment results or

segment assets are not material for both years ended 31 March

2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Revenue from customers which individually contributed over
10% of the Group’s revenue during the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020 is as follows:

DEER )
FEEFEEH

BE_ 2 -G _ZT-_FF=HA
Z+—BIFE  KEHAEBRKRA
BRUE10% A E 2 ERIZF 2 WA
T~

Customer 1 EFE1
Customer 2 ®F2
Customer 3 ®F3

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FHT
18,901 19,399

N/A FiEA* 19,381

18,284 N/A @~

Note: The revenue contributed from customer 1, 2 and 3 is derived from
the money lending business, the securities brokerage business,
and the securities brokerage and corporate finance business
respectively.

The corresponding revenue did not individually contribute over
10% of the Group’s revenue or did not have any transactions in
the respective years.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s operations are mainly located and carried out in
Hong Kong. Accordingly, no geographical information related
to revenue has been presented. The following table sets out
information about the Group’s property and equipment, other
non-current assets (excluded regulatory deposits and financial
assets at FVOCI), goodwill, interests in associates and joint
ventures (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of property and
equipment, the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of goodwill, and the location of operations,
in the case of interests in associates and joint ventures.

Wi FF 1 2 RIZBRIBATIDRIRE
BIEET - EFREFEHREFLL
REEBERT -

©ARMARE AR REBHA%
M A\ B AR 10% DA 3 4 75
CETE

s BB )

AEELEETERNEBRRES
BIE - AR IEHRAZ EE
B TRIREBAKENERD
B HiERDHEE (Feimaehs
REATEFALMEERSZ SR
BE) WE RBEATRASAR
il ((REFRBEE]) &8 -
EEERDEEZ MEBUEENEE
TERME  HOERRENSER
EARMSEINE HEEMEE
REBENE RABLATRAZA
AN EERBEARRAEA
AREZE -

TREEREREBARAR
RO FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERMTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (continued)

6.

DEER )
W EEF &)

2021 2020
—E-—% —TE-THF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THT FH&TT
Hong Kong B 105,046 105,879
The PRC B 31,203 23,256
136,249 129,135

OTHER INCOME 7. HMlgA
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FETT

Interest income from financial SR T S U A

institutions 579 4143
Sundry income (note) FEEWA (FFEE) 8,576 4,174
9,155 8,317

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$4,132,000 in respect of COVID-19-
related subsidies in relation to Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Hong Kong government.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBWRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

REVERSAL OF ECL/(ECL) ON LOAN

8.

AND TRADE RECEIVABLES, NET &%ﬁ%@?g&’
2020
—E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MEE FHT FAETT
Reversal of ECL/(ECL) BEEHEEEE
on trade receivables B RKERR 2
(EHIEEEE) 34(b) 9,541 (5,409)
ECL on loan receivables BWEREREEEE  34(b) (2,421) —
7120 (5,409)
FINANCE COSTS 9. BERA
2021 2020
s —EC-TE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH&TT
Finance charges on lease liabilities FAE&EZEER 304 643
Interests on bank and loan RITRENERZFE
payables 5,320 11,222
Interests on other borrowings HEmEEZFE 821 —
Interests on corporate bonds NRIEHFZFE 12,811 13,830
Interests on convertible bonds ATRES 2 F8 3,967 32,631
23,223 58,326

TREEREREBARAR
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10.LOSS BEFORE TAX

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBmRME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

10. BREL A ES 18

Loss before tax is stated after charging/crediting:

BRI BB 1R, FEATIIRIA -

2021 2020
—EB=--F —ETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B aE FExT FHTT
Net investment gains/(losses):  R&E W~ (FE) FHE :
Net gains/(losses) on financial EATEYAEZRER
assets and financial liabilities ZeREEREHEBRAE
at FVTPL e (B518) %8 18,952 (13,384)
Other operating expenses: Hih & :
Auditors’ remuneration ZERRT N & 1,300 900
Announcement and listing fee NERETER 452 791
Bad debt written-off on trade B 5 BUER K 2 MisEE iR
receivables 1,650 600
Bank charges RITER 188 962
Computer expenses BIER 1,299 1,142
Depreciation on: E -
— Right-of-use assets —-FAEEE 15 15,584 18,904
— Property and equipment = EY & 15 6,403 10,406
Entertainment e & 1,426 4,041
Exchange losses, net VE W 1858 2,953 5,405
Information and communication fee (=2 ki@ & 2,174 2,556
Lease charges on short term RE R EREBT
leases and leases with WMEERF 167 HEE
lease term shorter than KA/ A
12 months as at initial application ZHEZHEER
of HKFRS 16 1,297 194
Legal and professional fee EEREEE 10,439 3,507
Loss on disposal/written off of R E M KR 2 B8
property and equipment 1,186 2
Membership fee 2E8EH 872 664
Rates and building management ~ ZfRIEFEERE
fee 2,028 2,393
Telecommunication fee ERE 677 956
Travelling expenses ZIRAY 735 3,227
Other expenses HEmAY 5,136 2,933
Total #Et 55,799 59,583
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

e — =
10.L0SS BEFORE TAX (continued) 10. BRBIAT 18 ()
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo5E FHT FET
Staff costs: BIREK:
— Directors’ remunerations — EE=Me 12(a) 17,032 20,531
— Salaries and allowance — ¥re KoEiy 72,789 77,354
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIREFIFT B
contributions (TeEES)
(excluding Directors) 1,305 1,644
91,126 99,529
Less: Staff costs included in cost ¥ : 5 AR A Z
of services BT (24,874) (9,787)
66,252 89,742

TREEREREBARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

M. rEFHEX

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax &8 FI15 %

— Current year — RFE 5,578 9,690
— Over provision in — ATFE

respect of prior years FREBRE (20) (52)

Total income tax expense FriStiA S 4258 5,558 9,638

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended
31 March 2021 is calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying corporation
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of qualifying entities are taxed at 8.25%, and the profits above
HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same basis
in 2020.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. No provision for the PRC EIT has been made
for subsidiaries established in the PRC as (1) the assessable
profits for one of the PRC’s subsidiaries for the years ended
31 March 2021 and 2020 have been fully absorbed by the tax
loss brought forward from prior years; and (2) the other PRC
subsidiaries did not have any assessable profits subject to PRC
EIT Law for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

The tax charge for the years can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

11.

FrEHAX @

FEMERX AT EEAREREME
EREE R < BB AT IR SRR T ¢

2021 2020
—E-—f T -TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Loss before tax BRFRATEE (7,937) (62,176)
Tax at domestic income tax rate BRAMATISEHE16.5%
of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (ZZ=FTF 1 16.5%) st E 2 FE (1,309) (10,259)
Tax effect of expenses not AB I E NI NRFASZ 2 BB E
deductible for tax purpose 853 5,099
Tax effect of incomes not taxable  FFB T & IERFUA 2 RIS L
for tax purpose (1,929) (3,249)
Tax effect of share of losses JEMLEE S AR E s B2
of associates 57 390
Tax effect of share of losses EiE B RBEZHETE
of joint ventures 1 5
Over provision in respect BAETERERE
of prior years (20) (52)
Effect of different tax rates of PRC BB A F, 5 AR NEFHR
subsidiaries/branches and EMRAEHRE 2 8
two-tiered profit tax rate (329) (487)
Utilisation of tax losses not BRATFERER 2 HBEE
recognised in previous years (88) (624)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERVBER MG 2
recognised 8,322 18,815
Tax for the year FERIE 5,558 9,638

At 31 March 2021, the Group had estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$734,229,000 (2020: HK$686,121,000)
available for offset against future profits, the tax losses are

subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue

Department. No deferred tax asset has been recognised for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

RZBE-_—F=ZA=1+—H " &~&£HE
BihET REAIBEEL) 734,229,000
BT (ZZE-ZF : 686,121,000/ 7T)
AEEEAR AR - BB EEARS
RERRE #H#E_ZT-_—Frx_F
—EFEZAZF+—BILEE VER
RIBERIBEE -

TREEREREBARAR
RO FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, tax losses of approximately HK$18,777,000
(2020: HK$17,647,000) attributable to certain subsidiaries in the
PRC had an expiry period of five years. During the year, tax loss
of approximately HK$1,489,000 (2020: HK$1,194,000) has been
expired.

Under the New EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008 onwards
(the “Post-2008 Earnings”). As at 31 March 2021 and 2020,
deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements as the Company’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures did not have any unremitted earnings and the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference of the associates.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021

M. 88X @
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ATHERRHIEEEX 18,777,000
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ER#%1,489,0008 L (ZE T F :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR NRESRESREBAEZ

EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATIONS <

(A] DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS (A] EEH%
Directors’ remunerations, disclosed pursuant to the Listing BE ETRA - BB CREERD
Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies FIBIMNIERAA (HEEEF
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of =EK) BROIFoHMBERENES
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as e T
follows:

Year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_Z-_-F=A=1+-HILEE

Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and Discretionary benefits
Name of Directors Fees other benefits bonus schemes Total
$eR RIKER
E=ng e Hit3EH WA ST st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TiEx TER TiEx

Chairman IE

XIE Zhichun RiEE 120 8,116 - 18 8,254

Executive Directors HTES

HUA Yang (note a) =65 (fiita) 8 204 - 1 213

SUN Qing (note b) %5 (M7Eb) 12 1,265 - 17 1,394

ZHU i KR 120 4,570 - 18 4,708

Non-executive Directors FHTES

CHEN Zhiwei REE 360 — — — 360

HAN Hanting EHE 600 34 - 5 639

WU Ling R 600 — — — 600

Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTEES

Directors

CHAN Kin Sang BRiEE 216 - - - 216

CHIU Kung Chik HAE 216 — — — 216

LI Gaofeng ZRl 216 — - — 216

LIU Xin 2I 216 - - - 216
2,784 14,189 - 59 17,032

TEERTREEBRAR
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12.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

(A] DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBmRME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

1N.BEERESREEBAEZ

£ @)

(A) EEME @)

Year ended 31 March 2020

HE-TBF=A=-ALFE

Contributions

to retirement

Salariesand  Discretionary benefits
Name of Directors Fees  other benefits bonus schemes Total
FER RIEH
BEA% ik H iz BETEAL HE50 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT FHT FRT FHT
Chairman IE
XIE Zhichun RIEE 120 7,880 2,000 18 10,018
Executive Directors HTES
HUA Yang el 120 3,667 2,151 25 5,963
ZHU Yi R 120 1,920 80 18 2,138
Non-executive Directors FHTES
CHEN Zhiwei REE 360 — — — 360
HAN Hanting BHE 600 33 — 7 640
WU Ling R 600 — — — 600
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTES
Directors
CHAN Kin Sang BRiEE 216 — — — 216
CHIU Kung Chik HAE 216 — — — 216
LI Gaofeng ZRl 216 = — — 216
LIU Xin (note d) A GED)) 13 = — — 13
NG Kay Kwok (note c) REE (MzEc) 151 = — — 151
2,732 13,500 4,231 68 20,531

Discretionary bonuses were determined with reference to
the Group’s operating results and individual performance

for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

12.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

(A] DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Resigned all his offices in the Company with effect from
24 April 2020.

(b)  Appointed as an executive Director with effect from
24 April 2020.

(c) Resigned all his offices in the Company with effect from
13 December 2019.

(d)  Appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 10 March 2020.

There was no arrangement under which any Directors
waived or agreed to waive any remunerations for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020. No remunerations have
been paid to the Directors of the Company as inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

N.EERSREEAEZ

@H ﬁ (%)

(A) EEM= (#)

(@ R-ZE_ZTFOMA_+MAR
EERARRZFAR -

(by RZZT_TFMA-+HmHEE
LZERNTES °

(c) RZE-NAFE+-_A+=A#
EERARRBZFBB

(d) R-ZZE-_ZEF=AT+HEZMT
BB IERITES -

BE_ZE-_—FR-_ZE-_FTF=
A=1+—BILFE - fEEAE
EREXFAEREEARHE 2L
F-BE_T_—FK_T_F
F=ZRA=+—BHLFE  ~&E
BEXNME TARRESIER
A% 0 88 sk N B2 7K 5= [ By 2 AR A
S AERBERA(E -

TEERTREEBRAR
RO FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year included, two (2020: two) Directors
of the Company whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining three (2020: three) individuals during the year
are as follows:

12.EEREREBAEZ

£ @)

(Bl ZEZRSMEAL

FALEEREZEFALTHE
EmE (ZE-ZTF: M8 K
RREE  HEZHMEER Lt
Fiolz i Bk o FARERE
BEZA(ZEZZEF: ZA) X
HZBEewmT

2021 2020
B —ECTH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FT

Salaries, allowances e R REAMETR
and other benefits 14,558 14,871
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 2,726 3,226

Retirement benefits scheme  EIREFIFHEIE

contributions 54 54
17,338 18,151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

e MBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

The emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three)
highest paid employees fall in the following bands:

NR.EERSREBAEZ

£ @)

(B] ZEZSMENL (&)
BT=4 (ZE-—FF: =%)
SEMEEE YN TIAT %
:

Number of individuals

2020
—E-EF

Emolument bands Bl &5 &
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 &7t 2 5,000,000 7T 1 —
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7t 2 5,500,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 /& 7T 2 6,500,000 7% 7T —_ 1
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 77t 2 7,000,000 7% 7T _ 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7t 2 7,500,000 7 7T 1 —
3 3

EER SR EEERAT
S i
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE
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13.DIVIDEND 13.[RE
— No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended BHE-_Z-_—F=-HA=1T—HILEE
31 March 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the BERNREZRNEMNRE - BA
end of the reporting year (2020: nil). HE G E AR AR IR R A AR
B(ZE_ZEF : 8)-
14.L0SS PER SHARE 14. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KARIEEANEBECERERNREE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the B8 - TIRA T EBUERTE -
following data:
2021 2020
—E-— —TE-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Loss &8
Loss for the purpose of basic RESTEERERK
and diluted loss per share BEEE BB (13,495) (71,814)
2020
—TETF
000
FhR
(Restated)
(E5)
Number of shares BB EE
Weighted average number of REsTE GIREAR R EEE1E
ordinary shares for the purpose 2 E BRI I B
of basic and diluted loss
per share 915,308 915,308
The calculation of diluted loss per share for the years ended AEEECTE - —FRIZFITF=
31 March 2021 and 2020 does not assume the exercise of the A=tT—BLFESKRESERIT &
Company’s outstanding convertible bonds which had anti- AT AR A M AR IRA I AR E
dilutive effect and would result in a reduction in loss per share. 5 MEBESERREENERS
Therefore, the diluted loss per share is the same as the basic BYBREERD - At KFEZ
loss per share for the year. EREEHEHEGRENEGIEHER -
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mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

14. BREEB @

ERTEBBMEFOHERE_F
“EFE+TATARBRBHERRAER
ERTRODAHZZEELAE &
RBRZERSETRERTRAR
MEHB—REHRD - B HR
“Z-NAFOA—R (BIRFEHREHHE
R BERAE - RO G GHOFISERM
730 °

15. ME R &

14.L0SS PER SHARE (continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue has
taken into account of the effect of share consolidation pursuant
to the shareholders resolution passed on 16 October 2020 on
the basis that every ten issued existing shares be consolidated
into one consolidated share as if the consolidation had occurred
at 1 April 2019, the beginning of the earliest period reported.
Details of share consolidation are set out in note 30.

15.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor  Right-of-use
improvements fixtures  equipment vehicles assets Total
HENERE HGRRKE  BLAERE "B ERREEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT THT TAT TAT
Cost KA
At 1 April 2019 A\_Z-NEMA-A 17,985 1,547 1,153 1,462 33,077 55,224
Additions RE — — 25 — 685 710
Disposals i — (17 = = — (17
At 31 March 2020 and RZB-TF=A=1-H
1 April 2020 RZZ-ZTE5MA-A 17,985 1,530 1,178 1,462 33,762 55917
Additions NE 4,854 — 4 — 18,073 22,931
Disposalsfwritten off e /HiH (17,985) (1,530) = = (685) (20,200)
At 31 March 2021 R-E--§=B=+-H 4,854 - 1,182 1,462 51,150 58,648
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHTE
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NENA—A 2,555 347 298 1,049 — 4,249
Provided for the year EREE 9,440 386 275 305 18,904 29,310
Eliminated on disposal i1 R 3 - (15) = — — (15)
At 31 March 2020 and R_Z2-ZF=A=1-H
1 April 2020 RZZEZFEMA-A 11,995 718 573 1,354 18,904 33,544
Provided for the year FREE 5,705 315 275 108 15,584 21,987
Eliminated on disposal/ e /M #
written off (17,296) (1,033) — — (685) (19,014)
At 31 March 2021 RZB--%=f=1+-H 404 - 848 1,462 33,803 36,517
Carrying values REE
At 31 March 2021 R-B--%=A=1+-H 4,450 - 334 - 17,347 22,131
At 31 March 2020 RZE-EF=F=1—-H 5,990 812 605 108 14,858 22373

HEE% S M EEARAR
—E-—FERH
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continueq)

15. MMERFE

As at 31 March 2021, the net carrying amount of right-of-use

assets included in property and equipment are as follows:

RZEZ—F=RA=+—H" iAWY
ENEEEREEEZREFELD
T

Carrying amount Depreciation
fREE ik
For the For the
As at As at year ended year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2021 2020 2021 2020
Bz Bz

—g--F  CBCEF

R-B--§ R-ZT-BF =ZfA=+-H Z=A=t-H
=A=+-A =A=+-H LLFE LLFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TET THET TET
Office premises, warehouse and MOEYE BERHEN
car parking spaces 17,347 14,858 15,584 18,904

During the year ended 31 March 2021, total additions to right-
of-use assets included in property and equipment amounting
to HK$18,073,000 (2020:HK$685,000). The details of lease
liabilities as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are set out in note 26.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021

REBEE_TE-_—F=A=+—HILHF
CETAMERBEZERAEEER
B4 518,073,000 L (ZE =&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continueq)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group received
rent concessions in the form of a discount on fixed payments
during the year of severe social distancing and travel restriction
measures introduced to hold down the spread of COVID-19.
The amount of fixed lease payments with rental concessions for
the year ended 31 March 2021 is summarised below:

15. MMERFE

BE-_ZT-—F=ZA=+—HB1t#E
B AEBRZEHHEERBESMHA
9 175 T HE 17 42 32 BE B I Bk 202 PR I 78 e
FENBERSFHNENKRAEE
B-HE_ZTZ-_—F=ZA=+—H1t
FEzETHeZEHEREZERE
B

COVID-19
-Related
Fixed Rent Total
payments Concessions payment
FRBRES
fi% - 158
Ehadicka HeHE HemE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TBT TET TEL
Car parking spaces EE5 78 (13) 65

As disclosed in note 3, the Group has early adopted
the Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions” and has applied the practical expedient
introduced by the amendments to all eligible rent concessions
received by the Group during the year.

16. GOODWILL

IR BFAIRER - AEE D RFRAE
B IBREERE 165K ZEFT A [#
WERmEmA — HEESEHR]
VEHAAKRERAFEZRERAAE G
ERECEBERBZEARENE
REETA ©

16. B2

2021 2020
—E_—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Carrying amount at the beginning  FH#I & FR 2 BREE
and end of the year

3,994 3,994

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the corporate
finance segment. No impairment loss has been recognised as
at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

FHEZEREERIEELERES
e MRZBE-—FR T -_FTF=A
=+—8 ' BEERREEIE -

TREEREREBARAR
RO FER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEe

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 — & —

16.

17.

B HmRME ()

— = A=A

GOO DWl LL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the corporate finance operation
is determined based on value in use calculations using cash
flow projections based on financial budget approved by the
management covering five-year period with average growth
rate of 9.77% (2020: 56.55%), zero growth rate is applied to
extrapolate the cash flows beyond five-year period during
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 14.70% (2020: 13.61%). Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculation related to the estimation of cash inflows and
outflows which include budgeted sales and budgeted net profit
margin. This estimation is determined based on the unit's past
performance and management’s expectation for the market
development.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in

16. B& =)

ERE ¥ 2 PJ B 5 HIRIEE
REEFNEET  AEMAZEER
ERADEREEEIERBERER
iﬁﬁfﬁzﬁ?fﬁﬁﬁ”* BEHEREE
R9T77%( —ZF — T F : 56.55%) °
ﬁai—f:—i&_?_gi:ﬂ
=+—HLEFE BRAZAFTFHEZ
EE@//lbgﬁlJTﬁﬁﬁﬁ%gi§$ °© Jﬂiiﬁ
EERBBTE B RIBAERE
TEERBATEZFHRBALEER
o %ﬁﬁufﬁﬁmgﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁfﬁﬁz\%
1470%(_ T~ T4F :13.61%) ° &f

EFABEMACEMEZRZER
ﬁ//lbk&/)lbl-luj (@%ﬁ%ﬁ%’ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁ%%@
) BEETER - T HRRZE
MNZBERBELREEBYHMEREL
TBHATE ©

EEERS ET‘JEZﬁﬁi&ﬁfﬁEﬂ

any of these assumptions would not result any impairment to the B H M SER AR ER
goodwill. (=
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17. HttERBEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ks FHT FHET
Club membership o 6,610 6,610
Regulatory deposits EEEE 230 230
Financial assets at FVOCI ERAHEYAEMEE
Wiz eBEE (a) 138 138
Intangible asset mEE (b) — -
6,978 6,978

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

17.0THER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17. A RBEE =@
(Continued)
The regulatory deposits were made with the Stock Exchange EERERIAEERBBEZHRE R
and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited BAHERBIFARESTREEGR
(“HKSCC”), in relation to the Group’s regulated businesses in NA) ([EBEEM]) 1B -
Hong Kong.
(A] FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FvVOCI (A] #Z2-FESAAMGZEH

Wat o EHEE

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Financial assets at FVOCI 2 A EY A2 ERE

ZEBMEE
— Unlisted equity securities — JE_ETRANE S 138 138
The fair value of the unlisted equity investment is referenced RZEZ—FRZZ_FF=H
to the net asset value of the respective investees as at =+—H  FLETRAEEZA
31 March 2021 and 2020. FEDL2RERNKKREHHEE
FE ©
P
(B) INTANGIBLE ASSET (B) BIEEE

License right

fE R

HK$'000

FHT

At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 HR=Z—AFMNA—H »
and 31 March 2021 —E-EF=ZA=+—H8K
—E-—%=ZA=+—H

Cost DEN 2,261
Accumulated impairment ZETRIAE (2,261)

TREEREREBARAR
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mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

17.0THER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(Continued)

(B) INTANGIBLE ASSET (continued)

The intangible asset represents a license right acquired
as part of a business combination of a subsidiary. The
license carries a right to conduct asset management
business in Hong Kong, and has no foreseeable limit to
the period over which the Group can use to generate net
cash flows. As a result, the license right is considered
by the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life and is not amortised. It is tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that it may
be impaired.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the
Directors of the Company conducted a review on the
recoverable amount of the Group’s license right, which
was determined based on higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use calculation and determined
that the recoverable amount was lower than its carrying
amount, therefore, the carrying amount of the license right
was fully impaired.

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(B] #JE

Cost of investments in unlisted

RIE LB E R B Z R E KA

17. Bt ERBEE

\\

P i <N
H)E (/&)

\

BIVEER —BNBRREKE
B T W B 2 R BRE o 3% e BRI
BRENANEELEEEETESR
1% AREB AR BAFEAERAE
AR REFR  WEA AR S
BR o dhtt - ANEREE IR E R R R
BESTEBETAERES . B
AT #H - BRESFRBETR
Al REh BB ERETTRE R

BHE_T-_—FR-FT-_FTF=
A=+—HLEFE  ARRES
MK E RRE 2 AT e B
T8 ZeBREBEATERT
ERAWIZFEABESEZER
HET  METEURESEER
HIFAEE - BiteRE REE
BEAERE °

18. REF&E N 7] 2 s

2021 2020
s ZECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT

associates 64,131 64,131

Share of post-acquisition profits FEMRW R s F R H v 2 E s
and other comprehensive income 38,319 31,035
102,450 95,166

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continueq)

Set out below are the particulars of the principal associates as
at 31 March 2021 and 2020 in the opinion of the Directors of
the Company, to give details of other associates would result in
particulars of excessive length:

Place of Particulars of

Form of incorporation issued and

Name of entity entity and operation paid up capital
HERRIR BEARERE

(151 L1075 Eenk B5iE
Starlight Financial Holdings Limited Limited liability Hong Kong 234,000,000
(“Starlight’) company ordinary shares
hEENERHERALA ERAR B 234,000,000
(T24])) REaR
City Eagle Holdings Limited Limited liability Hong Kong 100
company ordinary shares
MERRERAA BRAR EE 100REER
Chongging Liangjiang New Area Limited liability The PRC Registered
Runtong Small Loans Business company capital of
Limited* (“Runtong’) USD30,000,000
BEMMINEER) B8 BRAT G HER
BRAR (B8] 30,000,000
Chongaing Run Kun Management Limited liability The PRC Registered
Consulting Company Limited company capital of
(‘Run Kun') HK$10,000,000
EE R EERRRAR AT BRAA HE e
(&) 10,000 0007
China Runking Financing Group Limited liabiity Hong Kong 1 ordinary share
Limited company
hE RS EERERAR ERAR B 1RERR
* The English translation of the Chinese name in this annual report,

where indicated, is included for information purpose only, and
should not be regarded as the official English name of such
Chinese name.

Note:

1. The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Starlight
and its subsidiaries (“Starlight Group”) because it has the power
to appoint two out of the six directors of that company under the
provisions stated in the shareholders’ agreement.

18. REEE NRIZ R o)

TREIR -_F-_—FR-_F_FF
A=t -RZEEBERFFE -
ARREZRR RERMGEEAT
ZRBEEEHAERBRITE

Percentage of nominal Proportion of voting
value of issued capital right held by the
held by the Group Group at board level
ARERECRS AEEfESE
RAEERDY RERLA

25%

25%

25%

25%

25%

2020 2020 Principal activities

ka5 CICTE O 1ERR
25% 33% 33%  Investment holding

(note 1) (note 1)
(1) () RERR

25% 33% 33%  Investment holding
RAER

25% 33% 33%  Provision of secured
financing services and
microfinance services
in Chongging of the
PRC

RPREEHRRER
HERK R EER
AR

25% 33% 33%  Financial consulting
services

B

25% 33% 33%  Provision of loan
financing services

RUGTRERS
Y AFRPRXBREOENEE (B
) BH2E  TEERZTXEHE
M IER AT

n

1. AEEAHEARENMBEAR (T2
XEE]) TEERFEN RAR
AERBIRIRAIR % FT DI O IR SR 48
REZRBRRBESTHOME

HEE% S M EEARAR
—E-—FERH
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e MBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # %2 — & ——

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continueq)

China Runking Financing Group Limited, City Eagle Holdings
Limited Run Kun and Runtong are wholly-owned subsidiaries of

Starlight.

As at 31 March 2021, included in the cost of investments in
associates was goodwill of HK$4,052,000 (2020: HK$4,052,000)

F=H="+—HILFE

arising on the acquisition of associates.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associates, Starlight Group, which is accounted for

using the equity method is set out below.

18. REEE NRIZ R o)

EP?EJ%JE% RBEBAA - RAE
BRERAR - BHEEBHAEEAZ
2EMBA ﬂo

RZTEZ—F=A=+—8 BEQ
AIIRERARENEHBE A AREEY
724,052,000 T (Z T =T F:
4,052,000 7T) °

REFSEABZ AR ENEE (s
FHNRR) < BRI RN T XXt -

2021 2020

:g:—qi — 7 —% ZE'E

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FH&TT

Current assets MENEE 645,435 528,365
Non-current assets ERBEE 30,765 39,558
Total assets BERE 676,200 567,923
Current liabilities mENE G 281,671 201,160
Non-current liabilities ETBEE 934 2,305
Total liabilities B Eey 282,605 203,465

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

18. REtE N B 2= )

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

BZE HE

—B=-—-F —ECTEF

=H=+—H =A=+—H

LtEE LFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue WA 52,273 86,547

Loss for the year FNEBE (1,388) (9,450)
Other comprehensive FREMEENE (LX)

income/(expense) for the year 30,525 (19,613)
Total comprehensive FR2EKE (LX) @5t

income/(expense) for the year 29,137 (29,063)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interests in the associates recognised
in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

RSB AR BEREA M BRERN
FIRABE AT 2 2 BEEY

FRAAE -

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHT

Net assets of Starlight Group ENEBEETE 393,595 364,458

Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREBERE N EE 2 A

in Starlight Group Frfs L A3 25% 25%

98,398 91,114

Goodwill e 4,052 4,052
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERENEE 2 s REE

interest in Starlight Group 102,450 95,166

TREEREREBARAR

—E-—FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

19.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES =
2020
—E-—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
Cost of investments in unlisted RIELETEERTZHEKAR
joint ventures 1,415 1,415
Share of post-acquisition losses FEEREEEEREMEERST
and other comprehensive
expenses (351) (423)
1,064 992

Details of the joint ventures as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are

RZEBEZ—FR_F-_FTF=HA

as follows: =+—H &ERRIZFBROT :
Percentage of nominal Proportion of voting
value of issued capital right held by the
Place of Particulars of held by the Group Group at hoard level
Form of incorporation issued and REERACRS TEEfRESS
Name of entity entity and operation paid up capital RAEER A RERLA
ERRIR EETRER 2020 2020 Principal activities
LiE1 BBy Eenk B5iE “EoEF ZRTEE FERE
Shenzhen Qianhai Fortune Financial Limited liability The PRC Registered capital 30% 40% 40%  Inactive
Service Company Limited* company of RMB754,000
(“Qianhai Fortune Financial’)
MmasER Rk BRAT G e gELR
ERAA (ThgEREH)) AR 75400070
Shenzhen Qianhai Fortune Equity Limited liability The PRC Registered capital 30% 40% 40%  Inactive
Investment Management Co, Ltd.* company of RMB2,989,000
(“Qianhai Fortune Equity’)
AT REREER BRAR G Raius gELR
EROA (A ERmE) AE%2,9890007
* The English translation of the Chinese name in this annual report, * ARERPP X ELEHEEZE (B

where indicated, is included for information purpose only, and
should not be regarded as the official English name of such
Chinese name.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

19.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

The Group holds 30% of equity interests of Qianhai Fortune
Financial and controls 40% of the voting power in the board
meeting. Under a shareholders’ agreement, the major financing
and operational decisions of Qianhai Fortune Financial should
be unanimously approved by the Group and other venturers.
Therefore, Qianhai Fortune Financial is regarded as joint
ventures of the Group.

The Group holds 30% of equity interests of Qianhai Fortune
Equity and controls 40% of the voting power in the board
meeting. Under a shareholders’ agreement, the major financing
and operational decisions of Qianhai Fortune Equity should
be unanimously approved by the Group and other venturers.
Therefore, Qianhai Fortune Equity is regarded as joint ventures
of the Group.

The financial information and carrying amount, in aggregate, of
the Group’s interests in joint ventures that are not individually
material and are accounted for using equity method are set out
below:

19. AEE AT 2R @)

AEERENEERERE30% 2 ’A
Ban ARt EEeg@m 0% RERE -
BE—HORRGE AISERE/2
FTEMEREEARALAEERH
HEER —BitERB - At - 518
EREREGEALAEEAEE QA o

REBR B AE E 58 A 30% 2 AR AN
BEAZEFHEZTSRHI0%RREE-
REBE—DEEREGZ  fEERKREZ
TEMENEERRBLARERE
e & —BHAERB - Atk - pIE
B RBER A R A REEERF] o

BREMs Y AEALIREREINRZ
AREERGBERRZEBEZHMBHER
KMEREEAFTHIIMNT

2021 2020
—E——fF ZEZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
The Group's share of loss REEEGER (5) (30)
The Group’s share of other AEERGEMEE
comprehensive income/(expense) Wk, (FIs) #8% 77 (65)
The Group’s share of total AEEREGEE
comprehensive income/(expense) Wz, (Fis) 4858 72 (95)
2021 2020
—E-——fF ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRTEREE AR
interests in immaterial W 2 BREE
joint ventures 1,064 992

TREEREREBARAR
RO FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERMTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
FET
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEIIAEREZSMEE
Equity securities listed: LTRAES
— in Hong Kong — REE 14,206 21,807
— outside Hong Kong — BELAIN 8,129 15,009
22,335 36,816
Debt securities listed: EEEES
— in Hong Kong — BB 77,670 100,880
— outside Hong Kong — BELAIN — 84,477
77,670 185,357
Derivative financial instruments PTESHBITA 1,225 —
101,230 222173
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFEIAEZER2SHMAE
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA 420 —
The fair values of the above listed equity and debt securities bt TR R EBE S RITES R
and derivative financial instruments are determined based TEAZAFETDIBRERBRZFETHR
on the quoted market bid prices available from the relevant ZTSEANREETE -
exchange.
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, all the bonds were pledged to a RZEBZ_—FR_ZF_ZFTF=FH
bank for the secured loans as set out in note 27. =+—H FIEEHFCHMT27FTHE
ZEEHRERER T —MERIT -
204 China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

Loan and trade receivables comprise i) trade receivables arising
from securities brokerage business and other businesses and ii)
loan receivables arising from money lending business.

FA

21.5%%5%&&%155&14&&5

R ERNE S EUERBRED) KRB
EFREFHREMETZE 5B
B K il) 2R B B RS RWETR -

2021 2020

—EB-—%F —E-THF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

BfaE T T FiET

Trade receivables = E TN a) 58,994 72,469
Loan receivables — current JEWER — RE b) 62,183 281,149
121,177 353,618

Loan receivables — non current JEWER — IERB b) 31,107 3,448
152,284 357,066

[A) TRADE RECEIVABLES

The followings are the balances of trade receivables, net

(A) EZ BN

B P RWARR 2 &E5r (R TR

of ECL: EEER) BT
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Trade receivables from REBHELEE 2B HRIERR
securities brokerage
business
— cash clients — REeRP 6 44
— HKSCC — BBEER 2,713 —
— margin clients — FREP 48,716 76,446
Trade receivables from other 2R B8 B2 2 & 5 EUER X
businesses 7,613 5,574
59,048 82,064
Less: ECL B TEEMEEEE (54) (9,595)
58,994 72,469

TREEREREBARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERMTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 1. ERERRE S BEKER

(Continued) /T‘k (#&)
[A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) (A) EZEWRREL (&)

The settlement terms of trade receivables from cash
clients and HKSCC arising from securities brokerage
business are two trading days after trade date. The
Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
customers from other businesses.

No aging analysis is disclosed for the Group’s margin
clients as these margin clients were carried on an open
account basis, and only fall due on conditions or on
demand by the Group. The Directors consider that an
aging analysis does not give additional value in the view
of the nature of these receivables.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables
(excluding margin clients), net of ECL, as at 31 March
2021 and 2020 based on the invoice date was as follows:

EFREEGRELEZRBRE
BEPLBBREEM B SRV
FENHRAEE A REMER
A - AEBEREMEBNEP
BT T30 BERIEER -

HRAREZ FREF THRER
BRPEEDRR - BERTREXK
BAKBENRTARE  HAE
BREAHREON - EFRA
ENZFRWFIRZEEEA
FRER DT EERIMETE ©

ERNBEZELAHEBEFEKERR (7
BREPKRIN RZTEZ—FR=
TE-EF=A=+—H (kE
HEEEBR) 2RRAT -

2021 2020

—E_—F —E-TF

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Less than 30 days PR30 H 9,518 3,266
31 to 60 days 31260H 17 120
61 to 90 days 612 90H — 134
Over 90 days 90 B k£ 797 2,098
10,332 5,618

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

21. BB K & 5 B W AR

K@)

[A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) (A) EZEIERZ (%)

Trade receivables from cash and margin clients are
secured by the clients’ pledged securities at quoted
market value of HK$204,555,000 (2020: HK$139,656,000)
which could be realised at the Group’s discretion to settle
any margin call requirements imposed by their respective
securities transactions. The trade receivables from
cash and margin clients are repayable on demand and
bear interest at commercial rates. As at 31 March 2021,
included in the total trade receivables, HK$48,668,000
(2020: HK$66,895,000) was interest bearing whereas
HK$10,326,000 (2020: HK$5,574,000) was non-interest
bearing. There is no re-pledge of the collateral from
margin clients in both years.

The movement of ECL on trade receivables during the
year is as follows:

RERFREFPZE SHEWEER
FHURP 2\ FHIRT ISR
82045550008 T (ZE =&
F : 139,656,000/ jr) K ¥ -
BAREEARIESRE@EKTFE
F NEEEMRESESEET
CEBEERGMBLHCHRBRE
FeHeERFTFREFPZESHEK
BRARAIREREE WikmE
FEFE - RZTZ—F=A
=+—H BSRUEREEE
486680008 T (Z T =%
% :66,895,000% ) Bt 8
110,326,000/ 7T ( = T =
& :5574,00087T) ATEHE °
MEFERTFRES ZEAYH
MR o

Al

A

FRE NIRRT B
ARBIT

2021 2020

—B=-—F —TTF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At the beginning of the year A1) 9,595 4,186
(Reversal of ECL)/ (B EIEHEEESR)

ECL recognised FANHERZ
during the year, net BEMEEEEFE (9,541) 5,409
At the end of the year RER 54 9,595

Further details of the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 34(b).

ERAEBEEERRRE SR
BRARATEAEERRME— T
BRI EE34(b) °

TREEREREBARAR
RO FER

207



208

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

2. ERERKE Z BWER

K@)

(B] LOAN RECEIVABLES (B] BILEFL

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH&T FiBT

Non-current portion IERENT 2
Secured loan receivables JEUWE I ER 11,107 2,137
Unsecured loan receivables  JEUEIKIRE K 20,000 1,311
31,107 3,448

Current portion "B

Secured loan receivables B I IRE K 5,185 185,801
Unsecured loan receivables  FEUMmIKIRE R 59,419 95,348
64,604 281,149
Less: ECL B TBEIEEEE (2,421) —
93,290 284,597

As at 31 March 2021, the secured loan receivables are
secured by all monies, deposits and equity shares of
listed companies with fair value of HK$5,736,000 (2020:
HK$534,807,000) in the securities account and second
mortgage over certain property units and carried interest
at a fixed interest rate at 13% to 15% (2020: 12% to 15%)
per annum.

As at 31 March 2021, the unsecured loan receivables are
guaranteed by the independent third parties, and carried
interest at fixed interest rate at 12% to 15% (2020: 12% to
15%) per annum.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021

R-E-_—F=ZA=+—8" EKE
BERERDUEBEBSEPP AN
B - B AR AFEAS5,736,000%8 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 21.J?ELI&E IR E S EWER
(Continued) b A (#&)
(B) LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continuea) [B) EIREZ ()

TREINHEAREREEZ
EREFRIBEREHRBE D 2
REDIT NBREHERER)

The following is an aging analysis, net of ECL, based
on the loan drawdown date, of the loan receivables
outstanding at reporting date:

2021 2020

s =T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Less than 30 days LR 30 H 387 2,440
31 to 60 days 31260H 107 1,922
61 to 90 days 612 90H —_ 9,462
Over 90 days 90 B k£ 92,796 270,773
93,290 284,597

The movement of gross balance of loan receivables is as
follows:

FEE R < FESRERRE BT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
F—Re -l ok
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEFMA—H 237,410 = 237,410
Amounts originated EEZ&R 124,816 — 124,816
Amounts recovered or FRAYERER 28
repaid during the year (77,629) — (77,629)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 N=Z =% ¢ A=+—H
“E-TFNA—H 284,597 — 284,597
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 EH%—I%&?%%’??E%_[%EX (4,482) 4,482 —
Amounts originated EEZER 62,492 661 63,153
Amounts recovered or FAWEHER 2
repaid during the year (251,839) (200) (252,039)
At 31 March 2021 RZE-—F=RA=+—H 90,768 4,943 95,711

TREEREREBARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(B) LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movement of ECL of loan receivables is as follows:

21. BB K & 5 B W AR

K@)

(B) EIRE L (%)
K ENR 2 BREEBRZEM
T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
F-RR FoRR B
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tz Tz Tz

At1 April 2019, 31 March 2020  R-ZE—AFMNA—H -

and 1 April 2020 ZEZTE-A=+-HRK — — =
—Z-TFMA-A

ECL recognised during the year ~ FRER Z BHEEEE — 2,421 2,421

At 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=A=+—H — 2,421 2,421

The loan receivables are due for settlement at the date
specified in the respective loan agreements. Further
details of the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising
from loan receivables are set out in note 34(b).

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

22.CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 22. 6N EERENERE
LIABILITIES

2021 2020
—E-—f —TE-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contract assets EHEE
— arising from corporate finance ~ — REGTEMERBEL
services contracts 519 1,132
Contract liabilities EBREE
— arising from billings in advance — RAGEMEREELHZ
of corporate finance services TEfTEIE
contracts 380 110
Contract assets related to the Group’s right to consideration HEASEFEELENRTRSE B EER
for corporate finance services transferred but not billed at the FE 2 PERERBEKEIKE ZEF
reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to receivable HEZEHNEE ZZEEHNEERA
when the right become unconditioned. AR B A IR R B R E RO o
Contract liabilities related to the Group has an unconditional HAEEESBGEHENATRNAEE
right to receive consideration before the Group recognises the BWRR B EREEE 2 RBWAR
services income from corporate finance business. WEHRERBcEHA%E -

TREEREREBARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

23.0THER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

23. b R U 5
faf

RIH - BER

PREPAYMENTS JT™IE
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Other receivables Hoh pE Y ERIE 19,709 16,501
Interest receivables JE W F B 1,902 4,557
Rental and other deposits HERHEMIZS 4,733 5,700
Prepayments TERTFRIE 1,190 401
27,534 27,159

Other receivables mainly represent monies placed in various

brokers accounts.

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

(A] BANK BALANCES AND CASH — TRUST

24. $RAT

Hi WA ZHEFATRKLRK

FHES e

mHRREAE

(A) IRITHEEER B E — 157

(B)

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
licensed banks to hold clients’” monies arising from its
securities brokerage and margin financing business.
The Group has classified the clients’ monies as bank
balances and cash — trust under the current assets
of the consolidated statement of financial position
and recognised the corresponding trade payables to
respective clients on the grounds that it is liable for any
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group
is restricted to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH — GENERAL

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the bank balances
and bank deposits carried interest at market rates ranging
from 0% to 2.3% (2020: 0% to 3.8%) per annum.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

25.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES

BEZENERM - HME
NRERETEH

AND ACCRUALS
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Trade payables from the securities R BB HFELER 2 B MR
brokerage business:
— margin and cash clients —HFRMREEF 260,940 103,549
— HKSCC — BAEEM — 8,283
Other payables and accruals HAb eI RIA R EETE A 32,970 221,847
293,910 333,679

The settlement terms of trade payable to HKSCC is two trading
days after the trade dates.

No aging analysis is disclosed for the Group’s trade payables
to margin and cash clients as these clients were carried on an
open account basis. The Directors of the Company consider
that the aging analysis does not give additional value in the view
of the nature of these payables.

As at 31 March 2021, the other payables and accruals mainly
represent accrued bonus and commission to the staff.

As at 31 March 2020, the other payables and accruals mainly
represent the outstanding principal of convertible bonds upon
maturity. The amount was fully settled during the year ended 31
March 2021.

EEREMZEIRNEREENR
BEERHRMERSAE -

HRARB 2 FRERE TP IRE
KEEPEEIR BMUBREEHE
FRENFIAZREDN - RRARES
RE ERZAFERMNRBAZEERE
R REDITAEERIMERE -

R-ZE-_—F=A=+—H EftfE
NREREHERATERET 2B
TEAL R -

R_Z-_EF=-_A=+—8 HtfE
NRIEREFTEAEZZERIBAE TR
BREHFZREERE - ZHNEREE
T F=ZA=+—HIEFEEXE
HERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

26.LEASE LIABILITIES

— The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
of the Group’s lease liabilities:

26.FHEEE

TRETAEEHEABEZRGEHN

WA

2021 2020
—B=-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHB T FET
Total minimum lease payments: SEMRENHRRE -
Due within one year —F RN EIH 8,069 14,179
Due in the second to fifth years E_FRERFANDIH 11,451 1,276
19,520 15,455
Future finance charges HEBBEZARAKRRBEEA
on lease liabilities (630) (180)
Present value of lease liabilities HERELRE 18,890 15,275
Present value of minimum lease REREMNKZEE
payments:
Due within one year —F RN EH 7,696 14,006
Due in the second to fifth years F_FEEFERAFAREH 11,194 1,269
18,890 15,275
Less: Portion due within one year & : st AREIBEBEE
included under current liabilites ~ Z —FRZ|HIEEH (7,696) (14,006)
Portion due after one year included st AFERBIEEE T
under non-current liabilities 2 — R EIERE S 11,194 1,269
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 2 —=%F—

26.LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group entered into four leases for
office premises and warehouse with a range of remaining lease
term of 2 months to 33 months. All the leases for office premises
have the extension option and termination option, the Group
considered that no extension option or termination option would
be exercised at the end of the reporting date.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group entered into four leases for
office premises and two leases for parking spaces with a range
of remaining lease term of 2.50 months to 16.04 months. All
the leases for office premises have the extension option and
termination option while the leases for carparking spaces
only have the renewal option, the Group considered that no
extension option or termination option would be exercised as at
31 March 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the total cash outflows
for the leases are HK$16,059,000 (2020: HK$19,324,000).

eV BBRETE (&)

—F=H=+—HIFE

26. HEEE »

R-ZFE-_—F=ZA=+—H8  ~5E
ARMAENEMREILANHEE
RABEPANF2AAE33M@A - A
MAEMEHEHAFEREEREN
RIDEEE  ARERSRREAH
AT ETHEEREERIR RS
1o

RZZE_ZTF=A=+—H x&H
MM AEWERBEN D RIET S HD
NmHEE - FerHE N F2.501E A
£16.0418R - FTEMAEYFHEEN
BEEEHBERERKRLERE  mH
BAEBEHEERE AEERAERN
ZEEF=A=+—HBBTETE
BB ERE SRR o

REBEE-_ZTE-_—F=-_A=+—HItHF
€ HERE R ETEA16,059,000
BT (CZ -4 1 19,324,000 7T) ©

TEERERMEEERAR
B 55K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

27.LOAN PAYABLES

27. ERHER

2021 2020
—B=-—F —ECTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAET

Bank loans, wholly repayable —FAFIREFBHEE

within one year or on demand: RISRITEI :

Secured IR 60,860 152,379
Unsecured AR 100,458 100,221
161,318 252,600

As at 31 March 2021, the unsecured bank loan amounted
to HK$100,458,000 (2020: HK$100,221,000) borne variable
interest rate and guaranteed by the corporate guarantee given
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Fortune Finance
Limited. The rate as at 31 March 2021 was 2.74% (2020: 3.83%)
per annum.

As at 31 March 2021, the secured bank loans amounted to
HK$60,860,000 (2020: HK$152,379,000) were secured by the
debt securities of HK$77,670,000 (2020: HK$185,357,000) (note
20) and the entire share of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Marvel Champion Investment Limited, borne variable
interest rate and guaranteed by the corporate guarantee given
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Fortune Finance
Limited. The rate as at 31 March 2021 was 2.19% (2020: 3.22%-
4.24%) per annum.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 28. A IR &35
The Group employs convertible bonds as one of its sources of AEEMNARMEKREFAEFR—IHE
financing. B o
At reporting date, carrying amounts of the convertible bonds is REE B FIRRES ZREER
as follows: ™

2021 2020
—B=-—-F —ECTHF
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FHT FHBT

Convertible bonds AR E S
— Current —n® 21,604 61,937
— Non-current — IERE — 19,300
21,604 81,237
Convertible bond reserve AR ES RS 5,161 19,159

TREEREREBARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

28. A IRESH =

Particulars of convertible bonds issued during the respective REFERITZIBRRESFIBHT
years were set out as below: W
Issuer
Effective earlier
Issue Maturity Coupon interest redemption
date date rate rate Principal right
BEITA
BT Ef =) FEX BERA= Ke@ RAIE D
HK$'000
TAET
Year ended
31 March 2019
HE-Z—NF
ZA=t-RLEE
2019 A 5July 2018 5 July 2021 2% 11.74% 60,000 No
—E)N\F —E-F it
+ARA +ARA
Year ended
31 March 2018
HE2-T-N\F
“A=1T-RLHFE
2018 A 28 June 2017 28 June 2020 2% 11.17% 60,000 No
—E—+F —ZCEF it
~NAZTNH ~NAZTNH
Year ended
31 March 2017
HE-Z—+F
“A=T—-BLFE
2017C 30 March 2017 30 March 2020 2% 12.47% 390,000 No
2t —ZCEF it
=A=1+H =A=1+H
218 China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eV BBRETE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFZE

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

All of the convertible bonds were unsecured, did not contained
any issuer’s early redemption rights, unless previously
converted, each of the convertible bond shall be redeemed at
100% of the principal amount outstanding on the maturity date
together with the outstanding interest payable on the maturity
date and any other outstanding amount due but unpaid under
the convertible bonds (if any).

Each of the convertible bonds were convertible to ordinary
shares at the conversion price of HK$0.06 per share upon
its issuance. Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed on
16 October 2020 by the shareholders, every ten issued and
unissued ordinary shares of par value at HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company has been consolidated into one
consolidated share of par value at HK$0.10 each, accordingly,
the conversion price per share on the convertible bonds was
adjusted to HK$0.60 per share.

28. [ EF =@

FrEREFAEER YESS
EABITAZIREBEOE - BrcaIE
]oh - F I MRESHER BB B IRK
BIEARESEERN 100% ER - ERZHA
M AR EE B A R AT R EHTE
TEMEMERERIBERTERE
(mA) -

EARRESFAIREITERALRES
AR 17 0.06 8 TT K3 B E AR o IRB
BRERZZE_ZEF+AT+ABBZ
TERBR ARRBRAFE+RE
BRI BTZEEITRRETE
BREAMHA—REESRO0I10E T
ZERERM - Bt TBRREFE
IR HIRE AR AT, 0.60 87T °

TEERERMEEERAR

RO FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBmRME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 28. AIA R &S @)
— Movements in carrying amounts of the liability components and BENS RERE D 2 REEZEH
equity components are summarised below. s o

Convertible Bond Series

AR ES 25
Total
2017C 2018 A 2019 A @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THT T
Liability components af&Hs
At 1 April 2019 R-ZE—FNA—H 195,244 55,586 17,237 268,067
Interests at effective interest rates BERMEIEZFIE 24,217 6,351 2,063 32,631
Redemption upon maturity FIBRER (12,422) — = (12,422)
Reclassified to other payables upon INENSEE
maturity HARERTFUR (207,039) — — (207,039)
At 31 March and 1 April 2020 R-_ZE-TF#=A=+—H
RHA—H — 61,937 19,300 81,237
Interests at effective interest rates REBFRAE 2FE — 1,663 2,304 3,967
Redemption upon maturity Z B ER — (63,600) — (63,600)
At 31 March 2021 R-B--%$=A=1+-H - - 21,604 21,604
Equity components DD
At 1 April 2019 R-ZE—-NEMA—H 52,823 13,998 5,161 71,982
Lapse of conversion option upon maturity 5/ BRI 4 2% (52,823) — — (52,823)
At 31 March and 1 April 2020 RZZZFTF=HA=1—H
KmA—H — 13,998 5,161 19,159
Lapse of conversion option upon maturity 5/ ERRSHA AR 4 K — (13,998) — (13,998)
At 31 March 2021 R-B--%$=HA=t+-A - — 5,161 5,161
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29.CORPORATE BONDS

The Group employs corporate bonds as one of its sources of
financing. At the reporting date, carrying amount of unsecured

corporate bonds at amortised cost includes:

e MBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

29. A EfESH

AEEAMBAREZREFT—RES
KR - REE B H - B ARSI R
ZEERARESZREERSE

2021 2020
—E-—& ZETHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Current RE 78,955 43,064
Non-current FERED 52,337 108,322
131,292 151,386
Particulars of outstanding corporate bonds at the reporting date RBEBBHAREEQARGES ZFHBE
were set out below: HEA -
Annual

coupon Effective Carrying
Issue in the year ended Terms rate interest rate Principal amount
HENTRELERNEL £ 30X (T 5% BEE
HKS§'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn

At 31 March 2021 R-B=-£=f=1-H
31 March 2014 “E-MEZF=1-H 75-8.67 years & 7% 9.20%-9.50% 20,000 20,505
31 March 2015 “2-1%=fA=1-A 7years £ 6%-6.5% 8.59%-9.12% 57500 58,603
31 March 2016 “E-rEZA=1-R 7years £ 6.5% 9.12% 12,000 12,182
31 March 2017 “E-+F#=A=1-A 7-75 years & 65%  9.10%-9.12% 30,100 29,836
31 March 2021 “E--%zf=1-A 1year £ 6% 6% 10,000 10,166
131,292

At 31 March 2020 R-B-RE=H=1-H
31 March 2014 “E-RFZA=1-H 7-75 years F 6%-7% 8.59%-9.66% 43,000 43179
31 March 2015 “2-R%=A=1-A 7years & 6%-6.5% 8.59%-9.12% 57,500 57,289
31 March 2016 “2-nFZfA=1-A 5-7 years & 65%7%  9.12%-976% 21810 21,765
31 March 2017 “F-+#=fA=1-A 7-75 years F 6.5% 9.10%-9.12% 30,100 29,153
151,386

EER SR EEERAT
S i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERMTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

29. CORPORATE BONDS (continued) 29. REIES @)
— These corporate bonds are repayable as follows: ZENREFARATFHERS -

2021 2020
—E=--F —TTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Within one year —F LR 78,955 43,064

More than one year but not —F LA LB HBAMRF
exceeding two years 22,501 67,261

More than two years but not ME A BT BEAF
exceeding five years 29,836 41,061
131,292 151,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

30.SHARE CAPITAL 30. R 2
Number
of shares Amount
B8 E Gk
Notes ‘000 HK$'000
BisE Tk TAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZE-AFMA—B -
at 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 “E-ZEF=A=1+—H
and 1 April 2020 RZZ-FTFWA—A
B EE0.01 T SR 20,000,000 200,000
Share consolidation Bin & Bt (a) (18,000,000) —
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each A-_E-_—F=R=+—H
at 31 March 2021 BREFE.10ABT L LK 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZZE—NFNA—H -
at 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 —E-ZEF=A=1+—H
and 1 April 2020 F_E_ZTFMA—H
BREEO.01 AT EiBR 9,153,079 91,531
Share consolidation BHAEHE (a) (8,237,771) —
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each R-E-—F=A=1+—H
at 31 March 2021 FREE0.108 T2 ik 915,308 91,531

[A) SHARE CONSOLIDATION

On 8 September 2020, the board proposed to implement
the share consolidation on the basis that every ten issued
and unissued ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company be consolidated
into one consolidated share of par value of HK$0.10 each.
On 16 October 2020, the ordinary resolution was duly
passed by the shareholders and the share consolidation
became effective on 20 October 2020.

(A) R &0

R-ZZE-ZTFHANB EFg
BREEROEH  EERET
RE BT RARBEITARARAEF
BRMEE.01B T LBARA O
AE—RERAEECI0ETZE
HRH c RZE_FE+ A+
A TRRBERDERRIERR
B MR EHERZTE_ZTF
F+AZ+HER -

HEE% S M EEARAR
—E-—FERH
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31.RESERVES

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition under the
corporate reorganisation of the Group.

The capital reserve represents the contributions made
by the then controlling shareholder under the corporate
reorganisation of the Group.

The other reserve mainly represents premium arisen from
the acquisition of additional 20% equity interest in Fortune
Financial Capital Limited (“Fortune Financial Capital”)
at cash consideration of HK$1,793,000, additional 25%
equity interest in Fortune Wealth Management Limited
at cash consideration of HK$1,125,000 from non-
controlling interests on 18 May 2012 and 10 January 2013
respectively and additional 20% equity interest in & 3854
AR (&Y BFE /A7) at cash consideration of RMB 100,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$114,000) from non-
controlling interest on 30 November 2016.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

31. # &

AEBEZBERFEHEREASHE
ZRREMR - FRENBARZ
B EEREREBEFERETAR
AR ZEEMERZZH °

AR e B R IR &
AEBZ AREHEELHZHE -

HinREEZEED IR =T —=
FRAA+NBRZZE—=F—
ATHREEREZURE K
81,793,000 T W fiE = & &
MEABRAG ([ERESRE
x]) BEIN0%ARHE - LA SR
1,125,000 T EE AN =
EIRBR R A REIN2E5% MR AE
WER=ZZE—XRE+—HA="TH
MR R UREREBARK
100,000 7T (#8E R 49 114,000 %
7T) WHE = s AR ORI B
BRA B IN20% AR AEFTEE £ 2

N4 EE
B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS N2.BEABMALIRS
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRRGEMBERERESBHREIN #E
statements, there are no significant related party transactions in BT FRIECEF=ZA=1+—
the normal course of the Group’s business for the years ended HIEFE RAKBEREBBESD
31 March 2021 and 2020. WHREBREAMALRS -
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT TEEFENSZHIE
PERSONNEL
All executive Directors were considered to be the key EPRITEESHEALIEEBCETEE
management personnel of the Group. The remunerations of BAB -HTESHNESFEZHFMN
executive Directors for the years were as follows: ™
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Short-term benefits 2 HRtE A 14,515 18,058
Post-employment benefits RIKAET 54 61
14,569 18,119

33.0FFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSET AND 33

HETHEEREME
&

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following financial assets and financial liabilities are subject TremEEREMARA TEHE -
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and WA 1T 5 I 2 B R AU
similar agreements. ZHAR o

The Group maintained accounts with the HKSCC through which REEBEREEEMAREKR, BB
they conducted securities trading transactions and settlement ZERPETEFEERHWIRFE
on a net basis. AL o

TREEREREBARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

33.0FFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSET AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continuea)

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC (included
in trade receivables or trade payables with clearing house), the
Group has offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable
from and the gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC.
The amounts offset and the net balances are shown as follows:

WBEFEHMEEREHE

& @

REFIRE N ENEBEEMRZA (G
ARWHEERR 2 EDRRKLIEN &
BREIZESER) & - AEEDEH
RUBEEGEEM I NBRERENE
BEEM 2 RIBEER - WA KA
TR

Net amount
Gross Amount receivable
amount offset (payable)
el (ef)
TRRE BRI TEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT FHT
As at 31 March 2021 RZZ=-$=ZA=+-H
Trade receivable from HKSCC R EEEE 2 EHRT 5,263 (2,550) 2,713
Trade payable to HKSCC ENEEERM B HEN (2,550) 2,550 -
As at 31 March 2020 RZEZZF=A=1-H
Trade receivable from HKSCC ERARBEEFR 2 B2ER 5304 (5,304) —
Trade payable to HKSCC EREBEER EHER (13,587) 5,304 (8,283)

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 34 U BEREER X FE
=

-
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT &t
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL (A) £ T HAIEF
INSTRUMENTS
2021 2020
s —E TR
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FETT
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial assets REBEK AT R SRVEE
at amortised cost:
— Regulatory deposits — BEEE 230 230
— Loan and trade — EREZRRE FEUIRR
receivables 152,284 357,066
— Other receivables and — Hip R TE MRS
deposits 26,344 26,758
— Bank balances and — RITEB LIRS — 55T
cash — trust 267,419 114,565
— Bank balances and — RITEBEIRE — &
cash — general 263,850 315,132
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEEIABREZCRIBE
— Equity securities listed — REBREBLSN T
in Hong Kong and 2 WA S
outside Hong Kong 22,335 36,816
— Bonds listed in — REBBREBUIN T Z2ES
Hong Kong and
outside Hong Kong 77,670 185,357
— Derivative financial — e EAYIRT A
instruments not ZUTESRMT A
designated as hedging
instruments 1,225 —
Financial assets at FVOCI: BAFEINAE MRS
LERBE
— Unlisted equity securities — JE TR ARE 5 138 138
811,495 1,036,062
Financial liabilities ot ek
Financial liabilities at HEHEKAY R S BEE
amortised cost:
— Trade payables, other — B ENRR - EMER
payables and accruals SKIBNMEETER 293,910 333,679
— Loan payables — ERNER 161,318 252,600
— Corporate bonds — RaElfEH 131,292 151,386
— Convertible bonds — AR &S 21,604 81,237
— Lease liabilities —HEAR 18,890 15,275
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: R AFEFIABZEZ SRAE -
— Derivative financial —IEEEAYHMIA
instruments not ZITESBMTA
designated as hedging
instruments 420 _
627,434 834,177

TREEREREBARAR
RO FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBmRME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 34 U BEREER X FE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continueq) AT E ()

(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B] BRI B A ERE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include regulatory
deposits, loan and trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, bank balances and cash — trust and
general, equity and debt investments, derivative financial
instruments, trade payables, other payables and accruals,
loan payables, corporate bonds, convertible bonds and
lease liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rate relating to foreign
currency denominated in equity and debt investments,
derivative financial instruments, loan receivables,
other receivables, bank balances, trade payables,
other payables and accruals. The Group’s exposure to
currency risk is minimal. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign exposure should the
need arise.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated in monetary assets and liabilities at the
reporting date are as follows:

Chinese Yuan Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR ([ AR#])

UYHEBEERNFE

T8 ®

(B) SRR EEERE
R (&)

EXmm (&)

REIEBH - AEREAINESIE

CEREERABGBEZEREEEBEN

I

Assets Liabilities
EE 8

2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--f e e 23 —B--f ZETE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THL TR FTHT
14,215 98,954 140 790
186,168 316,941 63,040 61,211

United States Dollar (“USD”) Erx([%Ex))

As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the USD/HK$ exchange rates.
In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the foreign
currency sensitivity analysis does not give additional
value in view of insignificant movement in the USD/HK$
exchange rates.

MR TTES T - AR E
FEHMERISE T, BT B EKE
XN/ BIEXZEHV IS
R INEBREST T EELR
SMEME °

EER SR EEERAT
S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

I FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(Continued)

As at reporting date, the sensitivity analysis of RMB

U.FHEAREERAFE

T8 ®

(B) BF B EEEERY
R (#&)

RBEBH - ARBLBTZH
g

against HK$ is as follows: RREDHAT
Increase/
decrease in Increase/
Sensitivity loss for decrease in
rate the year equity
FE
B i
HRE L X Em/w Em/wd
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
2021 —B--F
RMB ARHE 5% 588 588
2020 —T-ZF
RMB NG 5% 4,098 4,008

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to certain trade receivables, bank balances —
general and loan payables. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its assets and liabilities at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly relating to
the fluctuation of Hong Kong prime rate (“prime rate”) and
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising from
the Group’s interest bearing financial instruments.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

UYHEBEERNFE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) =

T8 ®

(B] 7175 /E e EFE B 4 KB

Par:

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at reporting date, the Group’s financial instruments with
variable interest rate were as follows:

“ax ==\
m (&)
FIZRE B (&)

WIS BB - A B BT BT
B SBTAMT -

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Assets BE
Trade receivables g IR
— cash and margin clients —IR&RHFERF 48,668 66,895
Bank balances — general RIT4EH — — R 263,850 315,132
Liability =N
Loan payables BB 161,318 252,600

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rates at the end
of the reporting year. The analysis is prepared assuming
the amounts outstanding at the end of the reporting
year were outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
points (2020: 100 basis points) increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

As at 31 March 2021, if the interest rate had been 100
(2020: 100) basis point higher/lower, the Group’s loss for
the year would decrease/increase by HK$1,263,000 (2020:
HK$1,081,000).

TSR E DT TR R E F
ERZZEHNNERREE - %9
MIHBRERBREFERHREER
ZHIERBREFEHREEMR
BlomEEEIEABRNIERF
3 B B B ER AR _E A3 N IR AY 100
HAEZ (ZE T F : 100@E
) RREEBEHMEA&
RAEE AR E) 2 5 o

R-E-_—F=A=+—8 " ¥
MEEFH,/ TE100E (=
T 100f8) E& - AKEZ
FEEBEBBRLD 1,263,000
B (ZE=FF : 1,081,000
JT) °

TREEREREBARAR
RO FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REDBHKRME (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 34 U BEREER X FE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continueq) AT E ()

[B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) g{f%/ﬂ G ETTE 12 R
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) R (#)

The Group is exposed to price risk through its investment
in listed debt and equity securities and derivative financial
instruments. The Group’s price risk is mainly concentrated
on debt and equity securities and derivative financial
instruments quoted in the related stock exchange. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the reporting date.

As at 31 March 2021, if the prices of the respective debt
and equity securities and derivative financial instruments
had been 5% (2020: 5%) higher/lower, loss for the year
ended 31 March 2021 would be decreased/increased by
HK$4,209,000 (2020: HK$9,276,000).

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivatives financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

U.YEEBEERQFE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Gontinued)

T8 ®

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(B) SRR EEERE

-
e
(%)

7= E: (T /fgf
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBERRE (#)

More than
Within More than 2 years Carrying
1year or 1 year but but Total amounts
on less than less than undiscounted asal
demand 2 years 5 years cash flows 31 March
e —EpE MENL AAEE  R=A=t-H
BEX BARRE BARRE iegee pd: T
HK§000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Fhr Fhr Fhr Fhr Fhn
2021 TEC-F
Non-derivative financial iabilties FiEsRak
Trade payables, other payables and accruals BHRMAER  AibEN
FEREER 293,910 - - 293,910 293,910
Loan payables ERER 161,581 - - 161,581 161,318
Corporate bonds RAEF 83,411 24,339 31,382 139,132 131,292
Convertible bonds TaRES 22,260 - - 22,260 21,604
Lease liabiites REak 8,069 11,451 - 19,520 18,890
569,231 35,790 31,362 636,403 627,014
Derivative financial iabilties fiEsRak
Derivative financial instruments fESEIA 420 = = 420 420
2020 kS
Non-derivative financial iabilies HiteRak
Trade payables, other payables and accruals BHREMAER KRR
FEREER 333679 = = 333679 333,679
Loan payables ERER 253612 = = 253612 252,600
Corporate bonds KAES 52,906 74299 47671 174876 151,386
Convertible bonds MiRES 63,600 22,260 = 85,860 81,237
Lease liabilies HEaR 14,179 1,276 = 15,455 15,275
717976 97,835 47,671 863,482 834,177

TREEREREBARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBmRME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND 34 B EKBEER AFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continuea) T2 ()
LA At
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) B1H5Ef2 EFE B 1E R B
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) R (&)
(Continued) Col
The aggregate undiscounted principal and interest of E SR ESRE B IERZ EN
the loan payables with on demand clause as set out ER KRB AR S RF SR
above are based on the scheduled payment terms as the BEXNFHARESAESRL
directors do not believe that it is probable that the bank “SRBRITEN_E_—F k=
will exercise its discretionary rights to demand immediate T_EF=-A=1+—HIFEEM
repayment as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. TEREAZE KA EK ©
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a EERRESRTIAESFHRE
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation BiEem T AGRBETHEHEEL
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a HASBERK Eﬁ%ﬁ@gﬁﬁ'}ﬂ B o
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit rEEEHNEERREERE
risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers in the REBRE %ﬁ%i@?iq:' ﬁg}iﬁﬁ
ordinary course of its operations. 58 -
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the REBRZZEZ—FR=-T=F
components of the consolidated statement of financial ¢ = )EJ = ‘f‘— ?v?/m\ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂjiﬂ%z
position at 31 March 2021 and 2020 is the carrying D E=EERR AN
amount as disclosed in note 34(a). ( )Pﬁ?ﬁ&%ZEEETE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

UFHEEBEER NFE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continueo) =

T8 ®

[B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) g{f%@ e ETFE H 1Z R I
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) & (&)

(Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each debtor
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
ECL are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regards,
the management of the Group considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Trade receivables [excluded margin clients) and
contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide the
ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected credit loss provision.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables (excluded margin
clients) and contract assets have been grouped based
on the days past due. The ECL also incorporates forward-
looking information, which was taken into account the
possible impacts associated with the overall change in the
economic environment arising from COVID-19.

REREEERR  AEEEERE
ERXR—X/EEEEEREER
B EEfRRETEMEER
Fr o DARELR BREX BRAE 15 5t 1 [B1 38
HIEIR - WS AEBEEEER
BEPREHSHERUKERZ A
WElIEE  ARERRT A E S
BMIEHEHCAMEERER
et AREEEER/AN
SEZEERRBCERERE

B ZEWES (FFREF B
REHNEE

AEBEZRBEMGEREENF
BRERBECOEHEREES
BEHEEE - ArEREZ RS
SE RSB -

RETERHEEEE  BHEK
ER(FREFPKRIN REHWE
ECRBPREETOMA - AN
EEBERTSENELEN &
HEERE A EEFUENES
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(Continued)

Trade receivables [excluded margin clients] and
contract assets (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts consist of
gross trade receivables (excluded margin financing) and
contract assets amounted to HK$10,851,000. Based on
the Group’s internal crediting rating and the above basis,
except for certain trade receivables (excluded margin
clients) of HK$1,650,000 (2020: nil) have been written
off, no material ECL is recognised for trade receivables
(excluded margin clients) and contract assets for the year
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Loan receivables and trade receivables from margin
clients

The Group assesses the ECL for loan receivables and
trade receivables from margin clients individually and
measures the ECL equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.

The credit risk on substantial portion of loan receivables
and trade receivables from margin clients are limited
because significant amount of balances are secured by
the pledged listed securities and certain property units
and the counterparties have no historical default record.
The directors expect that the general economic conditions
will not significantly changed for the 12 months’ after the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 34 U BEREER X FE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continueq) iTE (@)
[B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B] g{iﬁ/ﬁ G & FE 5 1Z RS I
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) R (%)

(Continued)

Loan receivables and trade receivables from margin
clients (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of
trade receivables from margin clients amounted to
HK$48,662,000 (2020: HK$66,851,000) (net of ECL of
HK$54,000 (2020: HK$9,595,000)). During the year ended
31 March 2021, ECL amounted to HK$9,541,000 (2020:
HK$5,409,000 has been recognised) has been reversed.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of loan
receivables amounted to HK$93,290,000 (2020:
HK$284,597,000), no ECL has been recognised for
loan receivables in stage 1 during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020 as the borrowers are in good
repayment record and the Group maintains long-term or
on-going relationship with the borrowers. ECL amounted
to HK$2,421,000 (2020: Nil) for a loan receivable in
stage 2 has been recognised during the year ended
31 March 2021.

Regulatory deposits, other receivables and deposits

The Group considers the ECL is low based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The Group has
assessed that the ECL of these financial assets are not
material under the 12-month expected loss method. Thus
no ECL (2020: nil) has been recognised during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

BUREFRAFREFESZEK
R ()

RZZE-_—F=A=+—H"
BREFESRKEREEES
48,662,000 7C (ZE =T F :
66,851,000 7T) (FIRRTEHAEE
B8 # 54,0008 (Z =%
% :9,595,000%7T)) - HE=F
—T—®#=ZA=+—HBILEE B
o] 78 BA{E & 18 549,541,000
B (ZZEZFF : 5,409,000
TLEHER) °

RZE-_—4F=ZA=+—H" 'k
W & 3% BR M 1A % 93,290,000 4
TL (ZZEZFF : 284,597,000 %
) RBEZZT=-—FK=F
“TEF=-A=+—HLFE I
EERE-—RRZERERNTE
HMEEEBE  WIHHERMERAR
BRCHERIFERNSEHEBRA
RERANFERR BEZT
——®=ZA=Z+—HLFE" B
BR—EF_RBRZERERL
TEEA(=E &8 2,421,000 7T (=
ToTF M)

ZEERE - A ERFBERE
&

ERNBEAELHRBELR
AEERABEHREESBERE -
AEBEEZ12EABHEBERER
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BYTEKRN - AtEE—2——
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/) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(C]

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(Continued)

Bank balances — trust and general

The credit risks of bank balances — trust and general are
considered to be insignificant because the counterparties
are banks/financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are
categorised into the three level fair value hierarchies as
defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.

Level 1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

Level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the financial
instruments, either directly or indirectly, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs for the financial
instruments.

The following table gives information about how fair values
of these financial instruments are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and input(s) used).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBWRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

(C] FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value
asat
31 March
Financial instruments 2021
$RIE R-%B=-%
ZRzt-H
2098
HK$'000
TER
Financial assets at FVTPL BOTEIINBEER Z SBEE
— Equity securies listed — REBRBBMNI L2 RS 2,335
in Hong Kong and
outside Hong Kong

—Bond isted nHong Kongand ~~ — INEEREEMI T2 EH

outside Hong Kong 77670
— Derivative financial instruments ~~ —fTASBIA 1,225
Financial assets at FVOC RATEAAEMEENE S REE
— Unlisted equity —FEMRAER() 138
securities (i)

Financial liabilties at FVTPL BATEFINERE 2REE
— Derivative financial —TE4RIA
instruments 420

U.FHEAREERAFE

T8 ®

(C) TR T A2 FlEFE

(&)
Fair value Valuation
asat technique(s)
31 March Fair value and key
2020 hierarchy input(s)
e Sl 2
ZA=1-H fhfERATR
DY ATHEER IEGNTR
HK$'000
TEn
36,816 Level 1 Quoted bid prices
in active market
i NG v
BARE
185,357 Level 1 Quoted bid prices
in active market
R WERTAM R
B\RE
— Level 1 Quoted bid prices
in active market
Eh N i v
ELE
138 Level 3 Net asset value
=4 BERE
— Level 1 Quoted bid prices
in active market
E RERTHHRL
ENE

TREEREREBARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

I FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

(C] FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level
3 of fair value hierarchy during the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020.

(i)  The fair value of the unlisted equity investment is
by reference to net asset value of the respective
companies.

(i) The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial instruments classified within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

U.FHEAREERAFE

T8 ®

(C) TR T A2 FlEFE

=

HEZ - —FEK-_ZF-FF=
A=+—HIEFE A FEER
ME— F_REFE=FRHE
AW EE R o

(i) JELEMBRAETEZAFETY
2ELZRREZEEFAESR
ﬁo

(iy AEBOBR/RFERBRE
=M T A REES
BRAN -

Unlisted equity

securities

JELET

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFHA—H 264

Deregistration of the THeREE

financial assets (126)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-BFR-_F-_—F

and 2021 =BA=+—H 138

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

5. X AFZ2ETEKME AT

COMPANY
Place of Particulars of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ issued and interest and voting
registration paid up power held by the Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital Company activities
HARL/ BRTRER FARfERERERER
WEARZHE REEnY xR FEEDM IERH
2021 2020
“E--f i 3
Fortune (HK) Securities Limited Hong Kong 310,000,000 100% 100% Provision of securities
ordinary shares brokerage and margin
financing services
ERESFBRAA & 310,000,000 &8k REESELR
FRREmRY
Fortune Asset Management Limited Hong Kong 69,000,000 100% 100% Provision of asset
ordinary shares management services
(2020: 66,000,000
ordinary shares)
ERAEERARAA B 69,000,000 B % Rk REEEERR
(ZB3-%%:
66,000,000 & & BR)
Fortune Finance Limited Hong Kong 10,000 100% 100% Provision of money
ordinary shares lending services
ERMBBRAA &k 10,0005 & B RUSERS
Fortune Wealth Management Limited Hong Kong 9,200,000 100% 100% Provision of insurance
ordinary shares brokerage services
(2020: 8,200,000
ordinary shares)
ERNEERARLA Bt 9200000 ¥ @k RERRELRY
(ZB-%%:
8200000/ E &)
Fortune Financial Capital Limited Hong Kong 31,700,000 100% 100% Provision of corporate
ordinary shares finance services
ERERARERAA & 31,700,000 R E @R RECERERH
Fortune Case Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Provision of corporate
administrative services
to group companies
BEARAT & TRE AR MERRRRE
PETHRS

TREEREREBARAR
RO FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

C 0 M PA NY (Continued)
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
registration paid up
Name of subsidiary and operations capital
HMARL/ R BRIRAR
WELRER REEHY EA5
(Galaxy Way Development Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of
US§1 each
HBRLHS 1RERRER 1%
Marvel Champion Investment Limited BYI 1 ordinary share of
US§1 each
HEREERAR ABRES 1REBRER 1 ET
EREARE (M) ERAT The PRC Registered capital of
RMB500,000
HE HMERARE
500,000
BHEE (M) RiEREES The PRC Registered capital of
ERERAA RMB30,000,000
(2020:
RMB100,000,000)
e HMERARE
30,000,000
(ZF2%F:
AR 100,000,0007T)
EREwhRREREAR S The PRC Registered capital of
RMB10,000,000
el HERARE
10,000,000

All subsidiaries are companies incorporated with limited liability
in the respective jurisdictions.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year or at any time during the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particular
excessive length.
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Percentage of ownership
interest and voting
power held by the Principal
Company activities
RAAMRRAERLR
£ P TEXH
2021 2020
B> “3CTE
100% 100% Equity investment
BARE
100% 100% Equity investment
hARE

100% 100% Equity investment
(2020: Provision of
corporate finance services)

usie
(ZE-E%:
RIECFRERS)

100% 100% Provision for administrative
services (2020: Equity
investment)

RETERS
(=255 WARR)
100% 100% Equity investment
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

— S: M
36.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 36. RN F 2 BER
COMPANY
(A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF (A) K2\ 8] 2 Bk 27
THE COMPANY
2021 2020
—EB-—%F —E T
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FH&TT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property and equipment L E YN 31 70
Investments in joint ventures & & AR Z 1,415 1,415
Investments in subsidiaries ~ RMIB AT ZEE 93,851 410
95,297 1,895
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits £ th FE U 718
and prepayments e RIENHIA 456 414
Amounts due from FEURB B R B FE
subsidiaries 685,705 1,088,462
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEMNIRE 147,990 135,469
834,151 1,224,345
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables, other Z ZEMNERR - HMEMNHKIE
payables and accruals LIEETER 2,049 208,958
Amounts due to subsidiaries EHTE A A 357,603 212,425
Loan payables ERER 161,318 252,600
Convertible bonds AIBAR ES 21,604 61,937
Corporate bonds NEES 78,955 43,064
Tax payable FEEFI IR 21 21
621,550 779,005
Net current assets REEEFE 212,601 445,340
Total assets less current EEHABRRBAR
liabilities 307,898 447,235

EER SR EEERAT
S i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

36.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 36. RN FBZMBER »)
COMPANY (continuea)
(A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF (A) K2\ 8] 2 BBk R 2 ()
THE COMPANY (Continued)
2021 2020
—E_—F —E-EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE T FHBT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Corporate bonds NEES 52,337 108,322
Convertible bonds AR E & — 19,300
52,337 127,622
Net assets BEFE 255,561 319,613
Capital and reserves MR R e
Share capital &N 30 91,531 91,531
Share premium 10 a8 36(b) 689,003 689,003
Convertible bond reserves  AI AR (&5 28 5,161 19,159
Translation reserve HHEFHE 36(b) 740 740
Contributed surplus BEHEH 36(b) 80,657 80,657
Accumulated losses RETEE 36(b) (611,531) (561,477)
Total equity R 255,561 319,613
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

36.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

CO M PANY (Continued)

(B)] RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

36. R FZHMEER =)

(B] AL\ a]Z e

Convertible
Share bond  Translation  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserves reserve surplus losses
T]RES
REE i BERE BEaBEs RitER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT TR TAL FAR

At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA—-H 689,003 71,982 742 80,657 (499,655)
Loss for the year FEEB — = — = (114,645)
Exchange differences arising  #EGINEBEL 2

on translation of foreign EHEE

operations — — 2 — —
Lapse of conversion option 2| EARS A AR SRR

upon maturity (note 28) (F13x28) — (52,823) = = 52,823
At31 March 2020 and RZZ_FF=A=t—-HRK

1 April 2020 “Z-ZFNA-A 689,003 19,159 740 80,657 (661,477)
Loss for the year FEEE - — — = (64,052)
Lapse of conversion option ~ Z| EREHARRIER K

upon maturity (note 28) (KE28) — (13,998) = = 13,098
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—4=A=1-H 689,003 5,161 740 80,657 (611,531)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the fair values of the underlying
net assets of the subsidiaries at the date on which they
were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued under the corporate

reorganisation of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

37.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to Shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of lease liabilities,
loan payables, convertible bonds, corporate bonds, cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the Directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the associated risks with each
class of capital, and take appropriate actions to adjust the
Group’s capital structure.

For certain subsidiaries of the Group, they are regulated by
Securities & Futures Commission (“SFC”) and are required to
comply with certain minimum capital requirements according
to the rules of SFC. Management monitors, on a daily basis,
the subsidiaries’ liquid capital to ensure it meets the minimum
liquid capital requirement in accordance with the Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules, the range of liquid
capital is from HK$100,000 to HK$3,000,000 or 5% of their total
adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher.

Another subsidiary of the Group is a licensed insurance
intermediary under the Insurance Ordinance and is required to
maintain a minimum net asset value of HK$100,000 at all times.

There is no non-compliance of the capital requirements imposed
by the respective regulators during both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

38. COMMITMENTS 38. 7K
[A] LEASE COMMITMENT (A] HE#AE
The Group as lessee REBEREEA
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group had KRB —FR-_ZF_FTF=H
commitments for short-term leases which fall due as =1+—H8  AEBEZEHES &
follows: ERT 5B EIER

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$000
FE T T

Within one year —F A 173 —

TREEREREBARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

38. COMMITMENTS (continuea)

(B) CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group had the following capital commitment at
reporting date:

38. R&IE )
[B]) EF#HE

REE RS - KEBE BN
AHE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHT

Contracted but not provided for: 2 &4 iH AR -
Investment in joint ventures REBE AR ZIRE

5,610 5,053

Other than the capital commitment of joint ventures as
mentioned above, there was a subscription agreement
dated 23 January 2017 entered into by the Group in
relation to the establishment of a joint venture which was
terminated on 9 November 2017 due to a change in the
shareholding structure of the joint venture company. On 9
November 2017, the Group therefore entered into a new
subscription agreement with independent third parties in
relation to the establishment of the joint venture at total
investment amount of RMB1,000 million and the Group
shall contribute an aggregate amount of RMB300 million
and hold 30% shareholding in the joint venture. The
establishment of the joint venture is subject to approval
by the China Securities Regulatory Commission. As at the
date of this report, the approvals had yet to be obtained in
this regard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

39.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

V.MEETHELENAERY
ARISING FROM FINANCING AR

ACTIVITIES
Loan Corporate  Convertible Lease
payables bonds bonds liabilities
FEFTER RAESF  RRES MERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT FHT TR
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NFNA—H 100,259 158,252 268,067 33,077
Cash-flows: HeRE:
— Repayment of lease liabilities —BEHEAR — — — (18,487)
— Repayment of corporate bonds —BEADES — (10,000) = =
— Repayment of loans —BEEX (778,545) = — =
— Proceeds from loans —BRZFBHA 930,180 = — =
— Redemption upon maturity — HHRER — — (12,422) =
— Interest paid —BRFE (8,270) (10,696) = (643)
Non-cash: ¥HE:
— Addition of lease liabilities —AEMERR - — — 685
— Reclassified to other payable — SR ENIE
upon maturity ZHMENFE - — (207,039) =
— Finance costs recognised — ERRRERA 8976 13,830 32,631 643
At 31 March 2020 RZEZZE=A=1-HK
and 1 April 2020 R-ZE-TFMA—H 252,600 151,386 81,237 15,275
Cash-flows: ReRE:
— Repayment of lease liabilities —RENERRE - — — (14,458)
— Proceeds from issue of corporate — BIARES
bond ZPRETA — 10,000 — —
— Repayment of corporate bonds — BEDAES — (32,810) — —
— Repayment of loans —BEEX (748,251) — — —
— Proceeds from loans — BRZ B3R 657,469 = = =
— Redemption upon maturity — HERER — — (63,600) =
— Interest paid — BHAE (5,591) (10,095) = (304)
Non-cash: E3k
— Entering into new leases —:uHiE - — — 18,073
— Finance costs recognised — ERRRERA 5,091 12,811 3,967 304
At 31 March 2021 R=B=-%=A=+-H 161,318 131,292 21,604 18,890
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFZE

40.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employee’s basic salaries and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Group in PRC participate in respective
government retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Scheme to fund
the retirement benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions
made to the Scheme are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under
the requirement in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the
retired employees. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contribution under
the Schemes.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of HK$1,364,000 (2020:
HK$1,712,000) represents contributions payable to the schemes
by the Group in respect of the year ended 31 March 2021.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEeEMBRRME (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F=H=+—HIFFE

< ) =
41. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 41. LEE B F
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to enhance ETHREFETEFHSE - ANk
comparability with the current year consolidated financial BAARFEHLREWBwER 2N -
statements.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFFHBERE

For the year ended 31 March

S —— BE=A=t+-BLEE
- 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
= = | —I-RF T NF T )\& ZT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT TAET THEL

RESULTS EF

Revenue /0N 131,718 179,401 108,072 94,042 49,880
Net investment gains/(losses) BEWz/ (B1B) F8 18,952 (13,384) (646) (8,038) 6,454
(Loss)/Profit before tax BEA (B18) /5F (7,937) (62,176) (102,743) (62,224) 30,907
Income tax expense FIEHAY (5,558) (9,638) (1,436) (3,226) —

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable A A% A AREIERERE

to owners of the Company (B18) /& H (13,495) (71,814) (104,179) (65,450) 30,907
(Loss)/Eamnings per share §ik (B18) /BF (Bl)

(HK cents) (Restated) (mE7))
Basic N (147) (7.85) (13.75) (9.54) 8.49
Diluted %% (147) (7.85) (13.75) (9.54) 8.46

As at 31 March

R=A=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
== —T-TF  —T-NF T\ ZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT THT THT THT TR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BELH 955,444 1,166,730 1,485,500 1,353,930 988,835
Total liabilities afEes (631,136) (843,216)  (1,077,774) (978,164) (711,169)
324,308 323514 407,726 375,766 277,666

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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